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This Prospectus includes particulars given in compliance with the listing regulations of the Bermuda Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors collectively and individually accept full respansibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this
Prospectus and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries that, to the best of their knowledge and belief there are no other facts, the omission of which
waould make any statement herein misleading.

The Bermuda Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this Prospectus, makes no representations as to its yor I
and expressly disclalms any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon any part of the contents of this Pmspcetus

Terms used in this Prospectus are as defined in the section headed “Definitions”.

The details contained in this Prospectus are applcable as at the date of this Prospectus. This Prospectus is subject to updating and it is the responsibility of
anyone relying on its contents to ensure that it is the most current version and that no corrections or revisions have been made. Investors should read the
whole of this Prospectus.

This Prospectus Is impartant. You are advised to consult your lawyer, bank manager, or other professional adviser, who specialises in advising on the
acquisition of shares and other securities before investing in the securities offered in this Prospectus. Investment in the Shares invoives above average
risk and your attention Is drawn to Section Four “Risk Factors™ in this P The i tment is only suitable for sophisticated or professional
Investars.

No company in the Investec Group (as defined in the section “Definitions” below) makes any representations or gives any warranties or undentakings with
regard ta the suitability of any investment in the Shares or the accuracy of this Prospectus and Investors should obtain independent legal, tax, accounting,
investment and other relevant advice when contemplating any i ent in the Company

The Diractors have na intention to market the Shares or send this Prospecius, to Investars domiciled or with a registered office in any Member State of
the European Economic Area ("EEA"), the United Kingdom (“UK”) or The United States of America ("US"). This sectlon is more clarlfied in SECTION ONE
of this Prospectus. Accardingly, the Shares may NOT be marketed to investors domiclled or with a registered office in any Member State of the EEA, the
UK or the US and the Prospectus may NOT be sent to any such investors.

The Companies and Intellectual Property Commission of South Africa (“CIPC”) takes no responsibility for the contents of this Prospectus, makes nc
representations as ta its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howscever arising from or in reliance upon
any part of the contents of this Prospectus,

Signed on this 27 February 2024

For: China Seas Basket Limited

Janine Lewis David Stephenson
Signed by Duly Authorised Director Signed by Duly Authorised Director
Name: Janine Lewis Name: David Stephenson

Keri Lancaster-King

Signed by Duly Authorised Director

Name: Keri Lancaster-King
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DEFINITIONS
The following definitions apply throughout this Prospectus, unless the context requires otherwise:-

“A Class Shares”

The "A” class AUD denominated ordinary shares in the Company, as described in Section One of this Prospectus, ISIN number GGO083wW45R94 Bloomberg
ticker: CHSEBAS GU

“Administration Agreement”

The agreement between the Administrator, the Company and the investment Adviser In terms of which the Administrator has been engaged to provide
administration, registrar and secretarial services

“Administrator” and/or “Designated Manager” and/or “Company Secretary and Designated Firm"

Sanne Fund Services [Guernsey) Limited (a Guernsey registerad company number 43046), (formerty Praxis Fund Services Limited), 1 Royal Plaza, Royal
Avenue, 5t Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 2HL

“Aggregate Minimum Subscription®

A minimum aggregate of 5,000 (five thousand) Shares being subscribed for pursuant to this Prospectus and/or retained by existing sharehaolders in the
Company, with an approximate value of some USD1174 per Share

“Annual and Listing Sponsor”

Clarien BSX Services Limited (registration number 24587)

“Application fForm”

The application form available from the Distributor or the Administrator, to be completed by an Investor wishing to subscribe for Shares
“Articles of Incorporation” or “Articles”

The articles of incorporation of the Company as amended or replaced from time to time
"AUD"

The lawful currency of Australia

"Auditor”

Grant Thoraton Limited

"B Class Shares”

The "B” class USD denominated ordinary shares in the Company, as described in Section One of this Prospectus, ISIN number GG00BM7T0367 Bloomberg
ticker CHSBLBU GU .

"Business Day"

Any day, other than a Saturday, Sunday ar public holiday, an which banks are normally open for full banking business in Guernsey
"Call Date"

The First Call Date and every quarterly date thereafter
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"Call Option™

The Debt Issuer’s right ta elect to redeem the Debt Instruments on the Call Date

"CIPC”

The Companies and Intellectual Property Commission of South Africa

"Company”

China Seas Basket Limited, a Guernsey registered company, registration number 51929 of 1 Royal Plaza, Royal Avenue, St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 2HL,
The registered office address is also the business address of the Directors of the Company and the principal operating address of the Company

“Company's Funds”™

The total subscription monies received from Investors on the Fourth Closing Date, less all Front End Fees, plus the aggregate €15 Price of the Existing |ssued
Shares retained by existing Sharehalders in the Company

"Credit Event”

Bankruptcy, Failure to Pay, Obligation Acceleration, Restructuring, Repudiation/Moratorium and Government Intervention, as such terms are defined in the
2014 Credit Derivative Definitions of the international Swaps and Derivatives Asseciation

"CRS™
Common Reporting Standard

“Debt Instruments Maturity Date”

The date that is
1) a maximum of § years after the issue date of the Debt Instruments if the Debt Instruments are senior Debt Instruments;
2} a maximum of 10 years after the Issue date of the Debt Instruments if the Debt Instruments are subordinated Instrument

"Debt Instruments”™

1} Unsecured USD denominated senior debt instruments, to be issued by the Debt Issuer by not later than 10 (ten) Business Days, or as close as
possible, after the Trade Date, which debt Instruments
- may contain a Call Option, as further described in Section Two “Capital Preservation” In this Prospectus; and
. may have a First Call Date that is 5 {five} years after the issue date of the Debt Instruments.
The debt instruments may be credit linked, where the payment of interest and principal is contingent on the credit performance or credit
deterioration of each Reference Entity, in the proportion equal to the percentage determined in respect of each Reference Entity as referred to

in the definition of Reference Entity;
or

2)  Unsecured USD denominated subordinated debt instrurments that rank as tier 2 capital of the Debt Issuer in terms of applicable laws and
regulations, issued by the Debt Issuer not later than 5 {five) Business Days after the Trade Date, which debt instruments

- contain a Call Option, as further described in Section Two “Capltal Preservation” in this Prospectus; and
- have a first Call Date that Is 5 [five) years after the issue date of the Debt Instruments;

Investors’ attention is drawn to the “Risks associated with the Debt instrumeants” in Section Four,
“Debt Issuer”

IBL or another debt issuer to be selected by the Investment Adviser, which debt issuer will bave a long-term rating equal to or better than IBL’s rating
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“Directors” or "The Board”

Directors of the Company

"Distributor”

An entity or person approved by the Directors and party to a Distribution Agreement through which the Investor may be introduced, or have access, to the
Company, if not directly

"Distribution Agreement”

The agreement entered or to be entered into between the Company and the relevant Distributor, on terms to be finalised by the Directors, pursuant to
which agreement the Distributor will be paid an annual fee as more fully described in Section One “Commissions or Distribution Fees Paid” in this Prospectus

"EIS Price”

The Fair Market Value per Share as reviewed by the Auditor on the Third Termination Date, which price is estimated to be between USD 871.79 and USD
1,300 per Share. New B Class Shares shall be issved at the EIS Price. Each new A Class Share shall be issued at an amount that is the AUD equivalent of the
€15 Price as calculated at the Third Termination Date.

*Equity Exposure®

A targeted basket of offshore indices, namely the Nikkei 225 {between 10% and 50%), S&P500 {between 10% and 50%), Eurostoxx50 {between 10% and
50%), iShares MSCI Emerging Markets ETF (between 10% and 50%) and the FTSE 100 (between 10% and S0%) or an alternative world index/s, or exchange

traded fund with equity exposure as determined by the Investment Adviser to the Company

“Equity Investment Provider|s)”

An international bank{s) or an entity(ies) in the group of companies of an international bank(s), with a long-term credit rating of at least A (Standard & Poors)
as selected by the Investment Adviser

“Equity Linked Investment{s}"

An equity investment{s) linked to an Investment in the form of a note, a warrant or an over the counter traded option transaction, issued by an Equity
Investment Provider(s) as further described in Section Two “Upside Linked to Equity” in this Prospectus

“Exlsting Issued Shares” or {"EIS”)

The issued Shares in the Company as at the date of this Prospectus
"Expense Provision”

An estimated 0.5% of the Company's Funds

“FATCA"

Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act

"Fair Market Value per Share”

The fair market value of gach Share as determined by the lnvestment Adviser on the first Business Day of each month (as reviewed by the Auditor on the
Termination Date or the liquidator on a winding up) acting in good faith and in a fair and reasonable manner

"First Call Date"

The date that is 5 {five) years after the issue date of the Debt Instruments
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“First Offering”

47,415,399 Ordinary Shares In the Company issued to Shareholders at AUD1,000.00 per QOrdinary Share on 06 September 2010

"Foreign Portfolio Investmant Allowance™

The foreign portfolio investment allowance (asset swap) granted to institutions in respect of investrnents, in terms of circular B2{Biil issued by the Financial
Surveillance Department of the South African Reserve Bank

“Fourth Closing Date”

21 May 2024, or a later date as the Directors may decide but not later than 30 May 2024

“Faurth Offering " ar “This/The Ofter” or *This Offering”™

65% of the Existing Issued Shares are estimated to remain invested in the Company plus a minimum of 2,000 new A Class Shares and 10,000 B Class Shares
are estimated to be issued, which would equate to a minimum total of approximately 16,180 A Class Shares and 40,745 B Class Shares being issued against
the EI5 Price pursuvant to this Prospectus

"Fourth Opening Date™

The later of 28 February 2024 or the date on which the Prospectus has been registered with CIPC

"Fourth Redemption Date”

The date of redemption of Shares, being the date that is 5 Business Days after the Fourth Termination Date

“Fourth Termination Date"

Either: (i) the Call Date if the Debt Issuer exercises the Call Option of the Debt Instrument, in accordance with its terms;

or

{ii} the Debt Instrument Maturity Date, being up to ten years from the Issue date of such Debt Instrument, if the Debt Issuer does not exercise the
Call Option [if any) in accordance with its terms,

as the case may be.
"Frant End Fee"

An amount not exceeding 2% {plus South African value added tax where applicable} of the amount subscribed for per Investor pursuant to this Prospectus

"GBp"

The lawful currency of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland

“GFSC”
The Guernsey Financial Services Commission

“eL”

Investec Bank Limlted, a company incorporated in the Republic of South Africa (registration number 1969/004763/06)

"Investec Bank Plc”

Investec Bank Plc, a company registered in England and Wales with registration number 00489604
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“Investec Group®

Investec Limited and Investec Pl¢ and thelr subsidiaries, which Include Investec Bank Plc and IBL

“Investec Limited”

Investec Limited, a company Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa {registration number 1925/002833/06)
“trvestec Plc”

Investec Plc, a company registered in England and Wales with registration number 035633621

"Investment Adviser”

Investment adviser to the Company, being Investec Corpoarate and Institutional Banking, a division of IBL
"Investment Adviser Agreement"

The agreement between the Investment Adviser and the Company in terms of which the Investment Adviser has been engaged to provide investment
advisory services to the Company

"Investment Period”
The perlod from the Trade Date to the Termination Date
"Investor”

Any person who may potentially subscribe for Shares in the Company, being a sophisticated or professional investor who can afford to take a higher degree
of risk, which may include the risk of the loss of his entire investment, and who has extensive knowledge and experience in financial and business matters
and is capable of evaluating the merits and risks assoclated with an investment in the Company

“Last Practicable Date”

The last practicable date prior to the finalisation of this Prospectus

Law"

The Companles (Guernsey) Law 2008 as amended, extended or replaced and any Ordinance, statutory instrument or regulation made thereunder
"Management Shares”

The Management Shares with a par value of AUD1 each having the rights and entitiements set out in the Articies

"Minimum Subscription Amount™

The subscription price per Share will be equal to the £IS Price or the AUD equivalent thereof, however subscriptions for investment may not be less than
AUD16,000 for Class A Shares or USD10,000 for Class B Shares

“Memgorandum®

The Memorandum of Incorporation of the Company as amended or replaced from time to time

"Potential Fallure to Pay™

A Potential Failure to Pay, as defined in the 2014 Credit Derivative Definitions of the International Swaps and Derivatives Association
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"Promoter™

Investec Corporate and Institutional 8anking, a divislon of 1BL

"Proportionate Recovery Percentage™

The recovery percentage of an obligation of an applicable Reference Entity, determined by the Debt Issuer, acting in a reasonable and commercial manner,
calculated on the proportion that the applicable Reference Entity bears in relation to the aggregate nominal amount of the Debt Instruments, as referred to
in the definition of Reference Entity

"Prospectus”

This document as registered with or without supplements

“Redemption Date”

Either the Third Redemption Date or Fourth Redemption Date (as the context requires)

"Reference Entity”

One or mare local and/or international banks to be selected by the Investment Adviser on or before the Trade Date, each with a long-term rating equal to
or better than I18L's rating, in the proportion of the nominal amount of the Debt Instruments, the specific proportion of which is to be recommended by the
Investment Adviser to the Directors on or before the Trade Date

“Reglstrar”

Sanne Fund Services {Guernsey) Limited

"Register of Shareholders"

The register of Shareholders of the Camparny kept by the Administrator

The rules applying to a registered closed-ended investment companies in Guernsey issued by the GFSC

"Second Offering”

70,168.968 Ordinary Shares In the Company issued to Sharehalders at AUD1,010.74 per Ordinary Share on 15 March 2016
“Shareholder”

A holder of Shares in the Company

"Shares”

The A Class Shares having a par value of AUD0.01 each and the B Class Shares having a par value of USD0.01 each in the capital of the Company, as well as
fractions of such ordinary shares, as the context requires. All other rights attributed to the A Class or B Ciass Shares are identical

“South African Companles Act”

The Companies Act. No. 71 of 2008 of the Republic of South Africa
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"Special Resolution™

A resolution passed by a majority of not less than 75% of the votes of the Shareholders entitled to vote and present in person or by proxy and vofing, at the
meeting convened with the proper notice of the meeting having been provided to Shareholders

"Termination Date”

Either the Third Termination Date or the Fourth Termination Date, as the context requires

“Third Offering”

69,114.719 Shares in the Company issued to Shareholders, consisting of 21,814.634 A Class Shares at a price of AUD 1,232.63 per A Class Share and
47,300,085 B Class Shares at a price of USD 871.7% per B Class Share on 20 July 2020

"Third Redemption Date"

10 June 2024

*Third Termination Date”

Either: (i) the call date {that is the first date that the Debt Issuer is entitled to early redeem the Debt Instrument and every quarterly date thereafter)
if the Debt Issuer exercises the Call Option of the Debt Instrument, currently held by the Company, in accordance with its terms;
or
{ii} the Debt Instrument Maturity Date, currently hetd by the Company, being up to ten years from the issue date of such Debt Instrument, if
the Debt Issuer does not exercise the Call Option (if any) in accordance with its terms,

as the case may be

"Trade Date”

Any date that is no later than 25 Business Days after the Fourth Closing Date, being the date on which the Company will invest the Company’s Funds

“the Trust”

The trust known as The Basket Trust constituted by a declaration of trust dated 2 September 2009 and made by Praxis Trustees Limited (registered number
16783)

“usp”

The tawful currency of the United States of America

“US-Guernsey IGA™

As defined in the section of this Prospectus headed "Risk Factors = FATCA and similar measures™

“Write-Off"

A partial or total write-off of the Debt Instruments as described in Section Four "Risks associated with Debt Instruments”
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SECTION ONE: Information about the Company whose securities are being offered
1. Name, Address and Incorporation Information

The Company was incorporated in Guernsey on 26 May 2010 with registration number 51929, The registered office and business address of the Company is
1 Royal Plaza, Royal Avenue, 5t Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 2HL. The Company is neither a holding company nor a subsidiary. The Company has an unlimited
life. The Administrator will act as the transfer agent. The registered office and business address of the Administrator is 1 Royal Plaza, Royal Avenue, St Peter
Port, Guernsey, GY1 2HL.

The Directors particularly draw Investors’ attention to the following restrictions:
South Africa

Under Section 99{1)(b} of the South African Companies Act, the Memorandum and Articles of the Company together with the names and addresses of the
Directors will be filed with the South African Companies and Intellectual Property Commission once the Prospectus Vetting Committee of the South African
Companies and Intellectual Property Commission has completed its review of this Prospectus. The Company is a Guernsey registered closed-ended
investment company listed on the Bermuda Stock Exchange. The Directors” and Auditor’s reports are made with every ethical degree of care and skill. The
Directors’ integrity and good governance is measured by the transparency of reporting to the regulatory and listing authorities under which the Company is
registered and listed and wherever practically possible the Company has made every effort to comply with the King Committee Principles on governance for
South Africa {King M) and will make every effort to comply with applicable Principles of the King Committee Principles on Governance for South Africa 2016
{King V).

South African Investors may utilise the following investment options and are encouraged to discuss these further with their Distributor;

. Offshore allowances {or any South African Reserve Bank approved offshore allowance)
. Disclosed amnesty and foreign assets

. International assets held by South African investors

. Foreign Portfolio Investment Allowance facility {asset swap)

Enforcement of this Prospectus by South African courts may be limited by the effect of laws of general application in South Africa relating to, or generally
affecting, the scope of application of South African law, the geographical area of application of South African law, and the rights of parties to contracts,
agreements, and undertakings, including the principles of public policy and interpretation.

United States of America

The Shares have not been registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933 (the "1933 Act”), nor has the Company been registered under the United
States Investment Company Act of 1940, or any state law. Except in a transaction which does not violate such Acts, the Shares may not be directly or
indirectly offered, sold or delivered In the United States (as defined In Regulation S under the 1933 Act} or to or for the account of any US persan [as defined
in Regutation S under the 1933 Act), or to any person purchasing the Shares for re-offer, delivery or transfer in the United States or to any US person as part
of the distribution of such Shares. The Shares may not be acquired by any person subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as
amended or Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

United Kingdom

The distribution of this Prospectus and the offering of Shares in centain jurisdictions may be restricted by law. In particular the communication constituted
by this Prospectus is directed at persons who {i} are outside the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland; or {ii) have professional experience in matters
relating to investments; or {ili} are persons falling within Article 49{2){a) to {d) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 [Financial Promotion) Order
2001 (all such persons together referred to as "relevant persons™). This communication must not be acted on or relied on by persons who are not relevant

persons. Any investment or investment activity to which this communication relates is available only to relevant persons and will be engaged in only with
relevant persons.

Member State of the EEA

National law and regulations In certain EEA Jurisdictions may impose reporting, disclosure and compliance obligations on the Company that result in costs
and expenses to the Company and that affect the management and operation of the Company, if the shares In the Company are marketed to investors
domiciled or having their registered office in the EEA. The Directars have no intention to market the Shares or send this Prospectus, to Investors domicied
or with a registered office in any Member State of the EEA. Accordingly, the Shares may not be marketed to Investors domiciled or with a registered office
In any Member State of the EEA and the Prospectus may not be sent to any such investors,

Bermuda

There is no intention to market the Shares to residents of Bermuda,
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Guernsey

The Company was incorporated with limited liability in Guernsey under the provisions of the Law as a non-cellular company limited by shares and is
registered with the GF5C as a registered closed-ended investment company. This Prospectus may only be distributed ar circulated directly or indirectly in or
from within the Bailiwick of Guernsey by persons licensed to do 30 by the GFSC under the Protection of Investors (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 2020, as
amended. The Company complies with the GFSC's “Finance Sector Code of Corporate Governance” (the “Code®) which applies to all companies that hold a
license from the GFSC under the regulatory laws or which are authorised or registered as an investment company, the Code Is similar to the applicable
Principles of the King Committee Principles on Governance for South Africa 2016 {King IV),

The Company is registered for FATCA under GIIN 9CZFLI.99999.5L.831.

The Company’s LEl number is 21380044R7GIKVBUG376

2 Directors, Qther Office Holders aor Third Parties

The Directors of the Company are lanine tewis, David Stephenson and Keri Lancaster-King. More details about the Directors, their accupations and
experience are provided below. The Directors are appointed as directors of the Company in terms of the Administration Agreement. The Directors'
appointment is indefinite snd will continue until the Company is liquidated or they resign or are removed from office or the Administration Agreement is
terminated.

The registered office address of the Company i$ also the business address of the Directors of the Company.

As described in the Administration Agreement, an annual fee {which includes the appointment and services of 3(three} Directors) is paid to the Administrator.
The Directors are indemnified through directors’ and officers’ insurance which includes professional indemnity cover for work undertaken on behalf of the
Company.

Janine Lewls (British]

Born in 1965, Janine Is a resident of Guernsey residing at Coco De Mer, Folie Lang, Vale, Guernsey, GY3 550 and is a director of the Administrator, She has
worked in the finance industry for over 40 years, qualifying as a Chartered Company Secretary in 1995 and becoming an Associate of the Institute in 1996,
Janine has worked in the funds industry for the past 25 years where she has been involved in the establishment and administration of various funds, varying
in complexity but in particular has concentrated on structured products and property funds, listed on various exchanges

Janine holds the fallowing directorships:

Advanced Investment Holdings Limited International Titans Basket Limited

Asia Pacific Basket Limited Sanne Directors (Guernsey) Limited

Britannic Opportunities Limited Investec Wl International PCC Limited {as alternate director)
China Seas Basket Limited Optimal lnvestment Growth Basket Limited

East Asian Growth Basket Limited Fundstore International Fund PCC Limited {as alternate director}
Pangbourne Asset Management {Channel Islands) Limited DPIF Plaza holdings Limited

Sanne Fund Services {Guernsey} Umited DPIF CIC Holdings Limited

Diverse Property Income Fund Limited DPIF LLS holdings Limited

DPIF Ford Holdings Limited Tenzing PE General Partner Limited

Butterfield Bank PCC Limited Investec Life (Guernsey Branch) Assets Limited -

One Peak European Growth One GP limited {as alternate director) One Peak Expansion Europe GP Limited {as alternate director]
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One Peak Expansion One GP Limited (as alternate director)
One Peak Growth One GP Limited (as alternate director)

One Peak Growth Capital One GP Limited (as alternate direct
g ( ernate director) One Peak Investment One GP Limited {as alternate director]

One Peak Investment Carry GP Limited {as alternate director)
One Peak Management {Guernsey] Limited {as alternate director)

One Peak Opportunities One GP Limited (as alternate director) . )
One Peak Co-Invest Il GP Limited (as alternate director)

One Peak Co-Invest 11 GP Limited {as alternate director) '
One Peak Co-Invest | GP Limited {as alternate director}

One Peak One GP Limited (as alternate director} ) .
One Peak Coople GP Limited {as alternate director)

Davld Stephenson {British)

Born in 1962, David is a resident of Guernsey residing at Riniac, Route de Cobo, Castel, Guernsey, GYS 7UH and is a senior manager in the financial reporting
team at the Administrator. David has warked in the finance industry for over 35 years, having trained at Coopers and Lybrand before joining Investec Trust
Guernsey in 1987. He served as Financial Controller at Investec Trust Guernsey, before switching to a fund accounting role. David has significant fund
experience having worked with various fund profiles including listed investment and property funds, private equity and structured products.

David holds the following directorships:

Advanced Investment Holdings Limited East Aslan Growth Basket Limited

Asia Pacific Basket Limited International Titans Basket Limited
Britannic Opportunities Limited Optimal Investment Growth Basket Limited
China Seas Basket Limited Sanne Directors (Guernsey) Limited
Investec Life (Guernsey Branch) Assets timiyed

Kerl Lancaster-King [British)

Born in 1979, Keri is a resident of Guernsey at Papillonner, Cordler Hill, 5t Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 1JH. She is a director of the Administrator. After working
abroad, she started her fund administration career managing a company secretarial team at Investec Administration Services Limited which was acquired
by PraxisIFM Group in 2009. In December 2021 the entire fund administration arm of PraxisiFM group was acquired by Sanne Group Plc and in August 2021
Sanne Group plc was purchased by Apex Group. In 2011 she formed the new business team and now manages the responsibility for the take on,
establishment, listing and launch of all new regulated and unregulated investment funds or investment vehicles for the Administrator. She is also acts as a
director on 2 number of companies. Kerl has a degree in English.

Keri holds the following directorships:

Advanced Investment HoldIngs Limited International Titans Basket Limited

Asia Pacific Basket Limited Sanne Fund Services (Guernsey) Limited
Britannic Opportunities Limited Sanne Directors (Guernsey) Limited

China Seas Basket Limited Investec Life {Guernsey Branch) Assets Limited

East Asian Growth Basket Limited

Optimal Investment Growth Basket Limited
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Other Office Holders or Third Parties

Annual and Listing Sponsor
Clarien B5X Services Limited
25 Reld Street, Hamilton
HM11

Bermuda

Administrator, Secretary, Registrar and Nominated Firm

{also being the business address of the Directors)

Sanne Fund Services [Guennsey) Limited
1 Royal Plaza

foyal Avenue

St Peter Port

Guernsey

GY1 2HL

Investment Adviser and Promoter

Investec Corporate and Institutional Banking
a division of

Investec Bank Limited

100 Grayston Drive

Sandown, Sandton

South Africa, 2156

Independent Auditor
Grant Thoraton Limited
St James Place

St James Street

St Peter Port

Guernsey

GY12NZ

China Seas Basket Limited Prospectus 2024

Bankers

Investec Bank {Channel Islands} Limited
Glategny Court

5t Peter Port

Guernsey

GY13LpP

Legal Adwisers in Guernsey
Carey Olsen [Guernsey) LLP
Carey House

Les Banques

St Peter Port

Guernsey

GY14BZ

Legal Advisers In South Africa
Cliffe Dekker Hofmeyr Inc.

11 Buitengracht Street

Cape Town

South Africa, 8001
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Investment Adviser

The Investment Adviser to the Company is Investec Corporate and Institutional Banking, a division of IBL. IBL is regulated by the South African Reserve Bank
in terms of the Banks Act, 1990 and the South African Companies Act, 2008. Mo criminal convictions or disciplinary actions were taken against IBL by a
securities, supervisory or other regulatory body during at least the past five years.

The directors of IBL are as follows:

Executive Directors, being Richard John Wainwright [CEO), Rupesh Govan {FD}, Fani Titi and Non-Executive Directors, being Morris Mthombeni, Zarina Bibi
Mah d Bassa, V, a Olver, Mvuleni Geoffrey Qhena and Philip Alan Hourquehie {Chalr).

The Global Head responsible for the Corporate and Institutional Banking division of IBL is Mr Lourens Janse van Rensburg of Villa 55, 279 Sidney Street,
Waterkloof Village, South Africa. Mr Janse van Rensburg has a Bachelor of Commerce (Honours: Financial Management) degree from the University of
Potchefstroom, a Certificate of Theory of Accounting {"CTA”) degree from the University of Potchefstroom, is a qualified Chartered Accountant and also
holds a CFA. Mr. Janse van Rensburg completed his articles with Coopers & Lybrand {now Price Waterhouse Coopers) in 1998 and joined Gensec {now
Sanlam Capital Markets) where he managed the financial contral of the equity derivative team, as well as risk management for the interest rate derivative
desk. He was also responsible for setting up thelr Investment products business. Mr Janse van Rensburg, joined IBL in 2001, working in the interest rate
structuring team, preference share funding and investment products areas. He was appointed the head of Investec financial Praducts in 2010 and in
December 2015 was appointed executive officer of Investec Corporate and Institutional Banking.

IBL is a wholly owned subsidiary of Investec Limited {"Investec”) {previously Investec Group Limited), and IBL is one of the 5{five} largest banks in South
Africa. Investec was founded in South Africa In 1974 and is an Independent international banking group that provides a specialised range of products and
services to its select clients. It has expanded through a combination of substantial organic growth and a series of strategic acquisitions in South Africa, the
United Kingdom and other countries in which the Investec Group operates. In July 2002, Investec implemented a dual listed compantes structure with listings
in Johannesburg and London. For the year ended 31 March 2023, Investec had R435.1 billion in funds under management.

The Corporate and Institutional Banking Division of IBL provides a wide range of preducts, services and value-added solutions to select corporate clients,
public sector bodies, financial institutions, {ocal and foreign banks and financial brokers. The Corporate and Institutional Banking Divislon specialises in the
creation of financlal products and derivative instruments, which are designed to enhance investment values and minimise or remove potential downside
risk for investors. In view of the aforegoing IBL has the necessary expertise and experience available 1o fulfill its obligations under the Investment Adviser
Agraement, as the investments to be entered into by the Company, as described in this Prospectus, are of a speciatised nature.

Description of the business ged by the | Adviser

Ouring the course of its appointment as investment adviser, the Investment Adviser shall have the duties and obligations normally assumed by an investrnent
adviser and in particular shall Include:

{1) identifying, securing, and researching potential investments, conducting physical and legal due diligence and evaluating the same, making
recommendations to the Board regarding suitable investments and taking instructions from the Board on investment opportunities;

2} negotlating and supervising borrowings of the Company within such limits as the Board may from time to time specify;
(3} analysing the performance of the investments and advising the Company in relation to the investments;

4) providing the Board with such information, and making such recommendations to the Board, concerning the investments as it may from time to
time request;

(5) at the Board's request providing a representative to attend meetings of the Baard in connection with any of its duties specified above;

(6} providing to the Administrator all such information in relation to the investments as it may reasonably require to carry out its duties under the
Administration Agreement; and

{7 performing such other duties as may be reasonably necessary or incidental to the above or as may be agreed between the Company and the
Investment Adviser.
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Annual Fee of the investment Adviser

The Investment Adviser is entitled, for its services as investment adviser, to receive an annual fee of 0.60% of the Company’s Funds (as reduced by any
redemptions of Shares prior to the Redemption Date) payable in advance on the first Business Day of each year, until the Call Date, If the Debt Issuer does
not exercise the Call Qption on the First Call Date, then the fee shall reduce to 0.15% per annum for the period subsequent to the First Call Date. The
Investment Adviser Agreement does not contain any provisions for the alteration of the Investment Adviser’s remuneration. The Investment Adviser shall
also be paid an amount equal to the amount of interest earned by the Company on such amount, calculated from and including the date en which the
Investments (as defined in the Investment Adviser Agreement) have been made uatil but excluding the date of payment of the relevant amount to the
Investment Adviser.

Registration Fee

The Investment Adviser will alsc earn a settlement and registration fee of up to 0.75% of the total value of each early redemption transaction as set out In
Section Four "Sale Arrangements and Redemptions”.

Administrator

Sanne Fund Services {Guernsey) Limited, formerly Praxis fund Services Limited, has been appointed to act as designated administrator, company secretary
and nominated firm under the Administration Agreement. Sanne Fund Services {Guernsey) Limited Is a wholly owned subsidlary of Apex Acquisition
Company Limited as part of Apex Group. The Apex Group employs over 12,000 people worldwide and administers In excess of £3 trillion of assets under a
variety of structures and funds.

The Administrator’s registered office is 1 Royal Plaza, Royal Avenue, St Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 2HL, The Administrator Is licensed under the Protection of
Investors (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 2020, as amended, to conduct administration business. The Admini has been appointed as the Nominated Firm
(such term as defined in the Commission’s Handbook on Countering Financial Crime and Terrorlst Financing).

Sanne Fund Services {Guernsey} Limited employs qualified members of respective professional disciplines which include members of the Association of
Chartered and Certified Accountants and members of the Institute of Chartered Secretarles and Administrators.

The Administrator provides a range of administration services including entity establishment and project management, corporate governance and company
secretarial services, transaction ad ministration, accounting and financial management/reporting, safe custody, shareholder services and investor reporting,
stock exchange sponsorship and outsourcing management,

Description of the business managed by the Administrator

The Administrator shall provide the Company with administration, registrar and company secretarial services. During the course of its appointment as
Administrator, the Administrater shall have the duties and obligations normally assumed by an administrator and secretary and in particular shall include:-

(1) the convening of the meetings of Directors and Shareholders in accordance with the Articles and the provision from time to time if requested of
representatives of the Administrater to attend tings, the taking of minutes and the collation of all necessary papers therefor;

(2} the keeping and updating of the statutory books and records of the Company;

{3} the delivery of information and all returns required by applicable law to any competent autharity in Guernsey, Bermuda or elsewhere including, in
particular, the GFSC and assistance with the reporting requirements and listing rules of the market on which the Shares may from time to time be
listed, currently the Bermuda Stack Exchange;

{4} dispatching to Shareholders, the Directors and the Auditor and any other person entitled to recelve the same or as the Company may require, all
circulars, notices of meetings, reparts, financial statements and dealing with all other correspondence from and to Shareholders of the Company
and circulating board meeting information, at least S(five) days prior to a Board meeting, to each member of the Board and the Investment Adviser;

{5} the holding of meetings of Shareholders, receiving and tabulating votes cast by proxy and communicating to the Company the results of the
tabulation;

{6} maintaining the register of Shareholders and acting as the transfer/paying agent (if applicable};

{n administering all transfers and redemptions of Shares as described in the Prospectus and payment of the proceeds to the applicable parties;

{8} all duties to be performed by the secretary of a company under applicable law and by the secretary of the Company under the Articles;
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19 the provision of the registered office of the Company and a place where notices may be served on the Comgpany; and

{109 without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing performing such other administrative and company secretarial duties, obligations and functions
as the Company may from time to time agree with the Administrator.

Annual fee of the Administrator

Under the Administration Agreement, the Company has agreed to pay or procure te be paid to the Administrator, for its services as Administrator, Secretary
and Registrar a fee of 0.13% in the first year following the Trade Date and an annual fee of 0.11% of the Company’s Funds (as reduced by any redemptions
of Shares prior to the Redemption Date) payable each year thereafter until the Redemption Date. The Administrator shall also be paid an amount equal to
the amount of interest earned by the Company on such amount, calculated from and including the date on which the Investments (as defined in the
Administration Agreement) have been made until but excluding the date of payment of the relevant amount to the Administrator.

The Administrator shall also be entitled to charge disbursements incurred on behalf of the Company te the Company, which include fees for courier,
telecommunications and printing.

Pursuant to the Administration Agreement, the Administrator shall provide {3} three employees to act as Directors to the Company. The Director
remuneration farms part of the annual fee of the Adrministrator under the terms of their Agreement. The Directars appolnted will have no formal or separate
cantract in place with the Company.

Transaction and Registration Fea

The Administrator will alse be pald an administration fee of GBP150 {or currency equivalent) for facilitating the cash flow of the sale per Shareholder
transaction and a settlement and registration fee of up to 0.50% of the total value of each early redemption as set out in Section Four “Sale Arrangements
and Redemptions” in this Prospectus,

3. History, State of Affairs and Prospectus of the Company

History

The Company was incorporated on 26 May 2010 with limited labillty in the Island of Guernsey under the provisions of the Law as a non-cellular company
limited by shares and is registered with the GF5C as a registered closed-ended investment company (Registered Number 51329). Potential investors have
the history In which te evaluate the Caompany’s ability to achleve lts investment Policy

First Offering

The First Offering of Ordinary Shares provided Shareholders with 133.50% participation In AUD in a basket of Indices, together with 100% principal
preservation provided the investor remained invested for the full 5.5 year term.

Second Offering

The Second Offering of Ordinary Shares provided Shareholders with 200% participation In a basket of offshore indices up to a maximum return of 45.22%,
together with 100% principal preservation provided the investor remained invested for the full 4,3-year term,

Third Offering

The Third Offering of Ordinary Shares provided Shareholders with 120.1% participation uncapped to the Euronext® CDP Environment World EW
Decrement 5% Index {(WLENV), together with 100% principal preservation in USD should the investor remain invested for the full 3.8 year term.

This Offering

The Company has made an Offer to the holders of Existing Issued Shares to elect to continue to remaln invested on the Third Redemption Date. Shareholders
who wish to accept the Company’s Offer must accept the Offer in writing. Written notice must be received by the Company by no later than
14 May 2024, failing which the Offer will lapse. The holders of Existing Issued Shares that do not return an election shall be disinvested from the Company
on the terms and canditions on which such Shares were issued. As part of the election, the holders of Existing Issued Shares may also subscribe for further
Ordinary Shares in the Company based on the terms and conditions set out in this Prospectus and the Articles. An Aggregate Minimum number of Shares must be
retained or subscribed for pursuant to this Prospectus and election. The rights attaching to Existing ssved Shares in respect of which the Offer has been accepted
shall be as set out in this Prospectus and the Articles.
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Public Company

The Law does not recognise a distinction between “public cormpany” or "private company” as types of company capable of registration In Guernsey. Any
conversion to a public company would therefore entail migration of the Company from Guernsey. As per the Law, Shares of the Company may not be offered
directly to the public in Guernsey but may be offered to regulated entities in Guernsey or offered to the public by entities licensed under the Protection of
Investors (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law 2020, as amended.

Material changes to the business of the Company

There have been no material changes to the business of the Company in the past three years.

Prospects of the business

The Company will provide Investors with a debt investment and an equity linked investment that are structured to provide USD capital preservation on the
Company’s Funds and the potential for enhanced capital growth {denominated in USD).

State of affairs of the business
At 29 December 2023 the Shares had a value of approximately USD1,134.37 per B Class Share and AUD1,663.79 per A Class Share, giving existing
Shareholders a return of approximately 30.12% per B Class Share and 34.98% per A Class Share since 24 July 2020, despite market volatility. The index

selected when Shares were offered to Shareholders in the Third Offering was based on the high growth potential of the index.

The waderlying table shows the value of the Company's investments since the Third Offering of Shares in the Company per & Ctass Share. The final column
simulates the value of the investments at the Third Redemption Oate should the Index level remain at the level for this period.

Inception date Market value for this Indicative expiry for this
Split 24.07.2020 overview overview
Standard Bank Group Limited Subordinated 8Bond 722.84 848.54 871.79
Equity Option (G51) 101.77 285.83 301.86
Fees 44.20 0.00 0.00
Expenses 2.98 0.00 0.00
Total USD 871.79 1,134.37 1,173.65
Overall share price
usp
Issue price | 871.79 | USDAUD inception rate - 24.07.2020 1.4139
Mark-to-market value | 1,134.37 USDAUD current rate - 29,122023 1.4667
Indicative expiry value 1,173.65 Option expiry date 31 May 2024
Immovable property

The Company has no immaovable property.

Financial commitments of the Company

The Company is an investment company and therefore has no buildings, machinery or plant

Company financial particulars

Please refer to Annexure A of the Prospectus for further information of the Company’s turnover, profits and/or losses. The Company has tax exempt status
in Guernsey.
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Dividends

The Company may pay dividends. The Directors will consider declaring a dividend if such dividend appears to be justified by the financial position of the
Company. Any dividends paid will only be paid in line with the policy of the Bermuda Stock Exchange and the Law.

Itis envisaged that, if a Call Option is not exercised by a Debt Issuer on the First Call Date, then the Company will

(a)

(b

b}

g}

d}

¢

i

k)

m)
n}

a5 soon as possible after such First Call Date, declare and pay a dividend equal to the proceeds {if any] received by the Company from the Equity
Linked Investment, less taxes (if any); and

thereafter declare and pay annual dividends equal to the interest payable under such Debt Instrument({s}, less costs, fees and taxes to be paid by
the Company.

Share Capital of the Company

Each Share in the Company will carry with it all the rights and privileges as contemplated in the Articles and nothing in this Prospectus shall be
construed as granting any Shareholder any right, title and interest in or to the assets or investments of the Company.

The Company has not offered its Shares to the public for subscription or sale or altered its capital during the preceding three years from the date
of this Prospectus.

The Company has a share capital comprised of Management Shares of AUD1 each and has A Class Shares of AUDD.01 each and B Class Shares of
USD0.01 each. There are 10 Management Shares in issue and the Directors do not intend to issue any further Management Shares. As at the date
of this Prospectus there are 21,814.634 A Class Shares and 47,300.085 B Class Shares in issue. The Company Is incorporated under Guernsey law
and is permitted to issue an unlimited number of shares and shares of different classes without the need for shareholder authorisation prior to
each issuance. Accordingly, the Company does nat have “authorised shares” as envisaged in the South African Companies Act. New B Class Shares
shall be issued at the EI5 Price, which price is estimated to be between USD871.79 and USD1,300 per Share. Each new A Class Share shall be issued
at an amaunt that is the AUD equivalent of the EIS Price as calculated at the Trade Date, The 10 Management Shares in issue were issued at par
and are held by the Trust.

The Management Shares do not receive any economic benefit from the Company, These shares exist for the sole purpose of voting on purely
administrative s at the Company’s annual g I meeting only if there is no quorum of Shareholders on such date. This enables the Company
to function effectively. Prior to a redemption of all the Shares, the Management Shares can only vote on Ordinary Resolutions relating to
administrative matters such as the appointment of the Auditor, approving the annual financlal statements and the Directors’ appointments, After
all the Shares have been redeemed, then the Management Shares can vote on all matters and on Ordinary and Speclal Resclutions,

The A Class Shares are AUD denominated shares held by each existing Shareholder who, on the Fourth Closing Date, remain nvested in the Company
as well as by each new Investor who chooses to subscribe for A Class Shares in the Company.

The B Class Shares are USD denominated shares held by each existing Shareholder who, on the Fourth Closing Date, remain Invested In the Company
as well as by each new investor who chooses to subscribe for B Class Shares in the Company.

All other rights attributed to the A Class Shares and the 8 Class Shares are identical.

The Directors may issue fractions of Shares, and, if so issued, a fraction of a Share |calculated to three decimal places) shall be subject to and carry
the corresponding fraction of liabilities {whether with respect to any unpaid amount thereon, contribution, calls or otherwise), limitations,
preferences, privileges, qualifications, restrictions, rights {including, without limitation, voting and participation rights) and other attributes of a
whole Share.

Except as disclosed above, no share or loan capital of the Company has been issued or agreed 1o be Issued and no share or loan capital of the
Company is proposed to be issued or Is under option or agreed unconditionally tc be put under option. As far as the Directors are aware ho person,
other than the Trust has a direct or indirect interest of 5% or mare of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstance at general meetings of the Company. All Shares shall be redeemed on the Third Redemption Date, except in respect of those Existing
Issued Shares for which Shareholders have accepted the Company's Offer to have their Existing lssued Shares retained in the Company, All Shares
in respect of which the Company's Offer, to retain Shares in relation to the Fourth Offering was not accepted, shall be redeemed by the Company
on the Third Redemption Date.

To the extent that the holders of the Existing Issued Shares elect not to continue to remaln invested In the Company pursuant to the Offer described
in the paragraph above , the Shares not redeemed on the Third Redemption Date shall be redeemed on the Fourth Redemption Date, unless the
holders of the Shares that were retained in the Company elect to continue to remain invested in the Company pursuant to a subsequent offer by
the Company made prior to the Fourth Redemption Date. With regard to redemption arrangements prior to the relevant Redemption Date, refer
to Section Four "Sale Arrangements and Redemptions” In this Prospectus.

The rights attached to each class are identical 5o the rights may only be altered, abrogated or varied with the consent in writing of the holders of
not less than three-fourths of the issued Shares of both classes or with the sanction of a Special Resolution of the holders of the Shares of both
classes.

The Company may also be wound up in accordance with the Law,

There have been no changes to the share capital since the Third Offering.

The Directors will not use their authority to issue or allot any shares In addition to the Shares to any 'nvestor unless that has been approved by a
special resolution of the Shareholders.
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5. Options or Preferential Rights in Respect of Shares

There are no provisions of Guernsey law which confer pre-emption rights on existing Shareholders on the allotment of equity securities for cash. No parson
has, ar is entitled to be given, an option to subscriba for Shares.

[ Commissions or Distribution Fees Pald

Should a Distributor be appointed, it shall be entitled to the fees as set out below.
Annual fee of the Distributors

An annual fee of 0.60% calculated on that portion of the Company’s Funds that is derived from the aggregate of subscription amounts subscribed for by
Shareholders introduced by the Distributor (as reduced by any redemptions of such Shares prior to the Redemption Date) will be payable to the Distributor
in terms of the relevant Distribution Agreement If any Debt Issuer does not exercise its Call Option on the applicable First Call Date, then the fee shal reduce
to 0.15% per annum for the period subsequent to such First Call Date.

These fees are independent of any transfer fees payable on sales as described in Section Four "Sale Arrangements and Redemptions” in this Prospectus.
Front end fee

The Distributor is entitled to an ameunt not exceeding 2% {plus South African value added tax where applicable} of the aggregate of subscription amounts
subscribed for by Shareholders introduced by the Distributor.

T Materlal Contracts

The following contracts, not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business, have been entered into by the Company since its
incorporation and are, or may be, material and will be dated on or around the Fourth Closing Date:

{a) the Administration Agreement between the Company, the Administrator and the Investment Adviser provides that the appointment of the
Administrator will continue until terminated by any party giving to the other not less than a minimum of 3{three) months’ notice, although the
agreament may be terminated forthwith by notice in writing from any party to the other, where a party goes into liquidation or ceases to be able
to pay its debts or breaches its obligations under the agreement {not having remedied such breach within 30 days of notice requiring it to do so) or
where it is no longer lawful for the Administrator to perform its obligations under the agreement or where the Administrator ceases to hold any
license or consent necessary for the conduct of its business. The agreement provides that in the absence of fraud, gross negligence or wilful defauit
by the Administrator the Company Is obliged to indemnify the Administrator for any losses it suffers in the proper performance of its duties under
the agreement (see also the section "Administrator” in Section One in this Prospectus);

{b} the investment Adviser Agreement between the Company and the lnvestment Adviser provides that the appointment of the Investment Adviser
will continue until terminated by either party giving to the other not less than 3{three) months’ written notice or forthwith in the event of the
Insolvency of the other party or the breach by the other party of its obligations under the agreement {not having remedied the breach within 30
days of notice requiring it to do so} or where the Investment Adviser ceases to hold any license or consent necessary for the conduct of its business.
The agreement provides that, in the absence of fraud, gross negligence, wilful default or breach of the agreement by the Investment Adviser, the
Company is obliged to indemnify the Investment Adviser against all costs, actions, claims and expenses, which may be incurred byit or made against
it in connection with the agreement.

Inspection of Documents

Copies of the following documents are available for inspection free of charge, for a period of not less than 10 days from the date of this Prospectus at any
time during normal business hours on any day, except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays in Guernsey or Bermuda (as appropriate), and copies of them
may be obtained on payment of a reasonable fee, at the registered office of the Company and, also at the offices of the Annual and Listing Sponsor:

{a} the Memorandum and Articles of Incorporation of the Company;

(b} the contracts referred 1o under the heading "Material Contracts™ above;

{c} copies of the most recent annual reports;

{d} the Law;
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{e) a list of past and present directarships and partnerships held by each Director over the last five years;
[{}] a copy of the Prospectus;

{g) the written consents required in terms of section 102 of the South African Companies Act; and

(h) the relevant Board resolution authorising the sign-off of the Prospectus.

The Register of Shareholders of the Company is avaitable for inspection at any time during normal business hours on any day, except Saturdays, Sundays
and public holidays in Guernsey, at the offices of the Administrator.

8. Interests of Directors, Investment Adviser and Distributors
Directors
As menticned in Section One “Directors, Other Office Holders ar Third Parties” above: (i) there will be no Directors’ emoluments paid and there are no

outstanding Directors’ emoluments due to be paid at the date of this Prospectus; and {ii) the Directors are indemnified through directors and officers
insurance for work undertaken on behalf of the Company,

A Director may own Shares, but there is no requirement that he or she does so. Other than as disclosed in this Prospectus, the Company does not know of
any person who, directly or indirectly, has an interest in the Company’s capital or voting rights which is notifiable under Guernsey law. None of the Directors
has any contract or arrangement existing at the date of this Prospectus in which the Director is materially interested and which is material in relation to the
business of the Company, save for as disclosed in this Prospectus and the Administration Agreement.

Investment Adviser interest in Shares

The Investment Adviser and any of its associates may have an interest or position in Shares. The lnvestment Adviser is not acting for, or advising, or treating
as its customer, any other person (unless other arrangements apply between the Investment Adviser and such person) in relation to investment in the
Company and will not be responsible for providing to any other person best execution or any other of the protections afforded to its customers.

Distributor interest in Shares

The Distributor may have an interest in the promotion of the Cempany as it will earn a commission on the Shares subscribed for by Shareholders introduced
by the Distributor.

9. Loans and Borrowing Powers

As at the date of this Prospectus the Company has not concluded any loan agreements with any person nor has it created or issued any mortgages, charges,
debentures or other borrowings or indebtedness in the nature of borrowings, including bank overdratts, liabilities under acceptance or acceptance credits,
obligations under finance leases, hire purchase commitments, guarantees or ather contingent liahilities.

The Company may borrow up to 10% of the vaiue of the net assets of the Company for temporary purposes to fund short-term liquidity, for the benefit of
the Company. It is not however the current intention of the Directors to engage in any borrowing in respect of the Company.

10. Shares issued ar to be Issued atherwlise than from cash

During the 3 {three} years Immedlately preceding the date of this Prospectus the Company has not issued any securities or agreed to issue any securities
other than in cash.

11 Property acquired or to be acquired

The Company does not own or intend to acquire any real property.
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12 Amounts paid or payable to the Investment Adviser and Distributors

The Promoter is not entitled 1o receive any fees for its role as Promoter, For the services provided as Investment Adviser the Promoter is entitled to receive
afee.

Amounts paid) to the Investment Adviser and Distributors are described below:

2021 2022 2023
AUD AUD AUD
Investment Adviser 480,810 507,046 552,884
Distributors 479,427 499,080 544,241

Amounts to be paid:
The Investment Adviser Is entitled to an annual fee as set out in Section One “Investment Adviser”.
Distributors are entitled to the fees set out in Section One *Commissions or Distribution Fees Paid”™,

The Administrator is entitled to the fees set out in Section One "Administrator”.

13, Preliminary Expenses, ssue Expenses and Ongoing Expenses (in AUD)

Annual Expenses 2::; 2::; ?::
Guernsey Statutory Fees 3,025 2,816 3,235
Guernsey Licence Fees 6,108 6,714 7,094
Investment Adviser 480,810 507,046 552,884
Distributors 479,427 499,080 544,241
Administrator 104,417 96,024 112,948
Auditor 15,393 12,428 17.502
Bermuda Listing & sponsorship 11,538 10,684 11,668
Other fees and expenses 9,126 10,295 27,309
Front end fees

The Distributor is entitled to a front end fee from each Investor they introduced to the Company, as set out in Section Cne "Commissions or Distribution
fees Paid”.

Expenses

The Expense Provision will be utilised to meet all expenses of the Company for the period from the Fourth Ciosing Date to the Redemption Date. The
expenses exclude the annual fees of service providers.

Initial and Ongoing Expenses

The Expense Provision is utilised to meet the payment or reimbursement of the initial expenses (including the launch fee for the Fourth Offering), the ongoing
expenses and any other expenses of the Company as the same become payable by the Campany from time to time, Such ongoing expenses will include,
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without limitation, fees payable to the Administrator for the winding up of the Company, such fees to be agreed in writing with the Investment Adviser
covering the time reasonably spent by the Administrator.

Any surplus or shortfall of the Expense Provision will be attributed to or borne by the ordinary Shareholders of the Company. This would be pro-rata and
effected on redemption. If necessary, any shortfall will be provided for using an interim loan facility approved by the Directors.

The Company is responsible for allits operating expenses including, without limitation, Directors’ expenses, legal costs, bank charges, Auditor's remuneration
and exp , costs of dealing in the assets of the Company, Interest on any borrowings effected by the Company, the fees of the GFSC, faes for listing the
Shares on the Bermuda Stock Exchange, expenses of holding Shareholders’ and Directors’ meetings, taxes, duties, penalties, government charges, banking
fees, annual filing fee and exempt company fee and the costs and expenses of the preparation, printing {if applicable) and, where appiicable, distribution or
publishing of certificates, tax vouchers, warrants, proxy cards, contract notes, this Prospectus and annual financial statements and all ather documents in
connection with the Company.

Share Transfer and Redemption fees

Fees payable on the transfer or redemption of Shares prior to the Redemption Date are described more fully under the Section Four "Sale Arrangements
and Redemptions” in this Prospectus.

Fees Payable Annually

Annual Fee of the Investment Adviser

The annual fee payable to the Investment Adviser Is set out in Section One “Investment Adviser”.
Annual fee of the Administrator

The annual fee payable to the Administrator is set out in Section One "Adminlstrator”.

Annual fee of the Distributors

The annua fee payable to the Distributor is set out In Sectlon One “Commissions or Distribution Fees Paid”.

Summary of Fees Payable Annually

Administrator first year fee of 0.13% followed by 0.11% per annum thereafter

Investment Adviser 0.50% per annum and reduced to 0.15% per annum If the Call Option of any Debt Instruments is not exercised
on the applicable First Call Date

Distributors 0.60% per annum 3nd reduted to 0.15% per annum if the Call Option of any Debt Instruments is not exercised

on the applicable First Call Date

SECTION TWO: Information abaut the offered securities
14. Purpose of the Offer

{a} Introduction

The Company was incorporated In Guernsey as a non-cellular company Hmited by shares on 26 May 2010. It is a closed-ended investment company.
Its issued share capital, with the exception of 10 Management Shares issued for administrative reasons, will consist entirely of Shares, being A Class
Shares and B Class Shares. Shareholders who have not made an election to retain their Existing Issued Shares pursuant to the Company’s Offer, will
have their Shares redeemed on the Third Redemption Date. To the extent that the holders of the Existing Issued Shares elect to continue to remain
invested upon such Offer, shareholders whose Shares were not redeemed on the Third Redemption Date will be redeemed on the Fourth
Redemption Date unless pursuant to a further offer by the Company they elect to remain invested in the Company subsequent to the Fourth
Redemption Date.

A minimum of five (S) Shares per Investor (subject to the Minimum Subscription Amount) are offered from the Fourth Opening Date specified to
the Fourth Closing Date. Shares are offered until the Fourth Closing Date at 3 price equal to the EIS Price or the equivalent thereof in AUD
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The Company’s Memorandum provides that the Company’s objects are unrestricted.

{B) Investmant Policy and Objective

In the Investment Adviser’s opinion, uncertaln recent worldwide economic conditions created demand from Investars for investments that provide
capital preservation and growth potential in a relatively stable currency.

The Investment objective of the Company is to provide the Investor with a unique equity-linked investment with a USD principal preservation
together with any potential growth in the return, if held until the Call Option has been exercisad by the Debt Issuer, or if the Call Option has not
been exercised by the Debt Issuer, until maturity of the Debt Instruments, provided that, if the Debt Instruments are credit-linked, ng Credit Event
has occurred,
The Company’s Memorandum does not restrict the investment policy or the investment of the Company’s assets.

(e} Investment Criteria
Investment decisions will be made by the Board advised by the Investment Adviser and will reflect the long-term investment objective.

[d) Capital Preservation

A perc ge of the Company's Funds will be invested in the Debt Instruments. The AUD funds to be invested will be converted to USD at the spot
rate on or before the Trade Date. The Debt Instruments will be issued by the Debt Issuer,

The percentage of the Company’s Funds invested in the Debt [nstruments will be determined so that the amount received by the Company at the
end of the Investment Period in USD will be equal to at least 100% of the Company’s Funds in USD, should there have been no default by the Debt
Issuer and provided that, if the Debt Instruments are credit linked, no Credit Event in respect of a Reference Entity has occurred.

If the Call Option Is not exercised by any Debt Issuer on the First Call Date, then the Company may declare and pay dividends as described under
the Section "Dividends” in this Prospectus.

Example of how the Company’s Funds are calculated:

uso
al Gross subscription monles received pursuant ta this Prospectus 110,000,000
b) Less: Front End Fees {up to 2%) 2,200,000]
107,800,000
c) Plus; Aggregate EIS Price retained by existing Shareholders 10,000,000
Campany’s Funds equals [a-b)+ ¢ 117,800,000

Shareholders of A Class AUD denominated Shares should note that the example above is provided in USD and on a simplified bass, that is on the
assumption that the exchange rate between AUD and USD on the Trade Date will be the same on the maturity of the investment in the Debt
Instruments.

Effect of a Credit Event:

Should a Credit Event oceur in relation to a Reference Entity, then the aggregate nominal amount of the Debt Instruments will be reduced in
accordance with the following formula:

A=BxC

where A is the reduced aggregate nominal amount of the Debt Instruments
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B is the aggregate nominal amount of the Debt Instruments prior to the occurrence of the applicable Credit Event
C is the Proportionate Recovery Percentage

The amount equal to the Proportionate Recovery Percentage may {1) during the Investment Period be paid to Shareholders as dividends, or be
reinvested, as the Directors may deem appropriate, acting on the advice of the Investment Adviser; or (2} be paid to the Company on maturity of
the Debt Instrument.

Investors® attention Is drawn to the “Risks assoclated with the Debt Instruments” in Section Four.

{e} Upside Linked To Equity

The balance of the Company’s Funds available for investment after the investment in the Debt Instruments will be invested in an Equity Linked
Investment(s}. The Equity Linked investment(s) will be issued by an Equity Investment Provider(s) to be selected by the Investment Adviser. The
Equity Investment Provider{s) will have a long-term credit rating of at least A (Standard & Poors) on the Trade Date and the Equity Linked
Investment({s) will be invested in Equity Exposure. The final index level will be the average of the monthly closing Index levels, over a period to be
decided by the Investment Adviser on the Trade Date, being a period not exceeding 12 months immediately prior to the exercise date of the Equity
Linked Investment(s). The Equity Linked Investment(s] will be effected under appropriate contractual arrangements to reflect the transaction
between the Equity Investment Provider(s) and the Company. The Equity Linked Investment will provide at least 100% participation in any positive
performance of the indexfindices up to the First Call Date and up to an index performance cap {if applicable] as determined on or before the Trade
Date.

Investors’ attention Is drawn to the risk factors set out in Section Four "Risk Factors” In this Prospectus.
n Changes to Investment Objective, Investment Policy, Borrowings and Investment Criteria

The Board may resolve to change the Investment Objective, Investment Policy, Borrowings or Investment Criteria of the Company by amending,
supplementing or relssuing this Prospectus. However there Is no current intention to make any changes during the Investment Period. Any proposed
change during the Investment Period must first be approved by a Special Resolution of the Shareholders.

(&) Aggregate Minimum Subscription

This Offer is subject 1o a minimum aggregate of 5,000 Shares being {i} subscribed for pursuant to this Prospectus, and the listing of such Shares on
the Bermuda Stock Exchange, and/for (ii} retained by Shareholders of Existing Issued Shares who made an election not ta have their Shares
redeemed, failing which the offer will terminate.

15. Time and date of the opening of the Offer and the closing of the Offer

This subscription is open for a fixed offer period only at a date as the Directors may decide. This period runs from the Fourth Opening Date, anticipated to
be 28 February 2024, provided the Prospectus has been registered with the CIPC by this date, until the Fourth Closing Date, being 21 May 2024 (or such
later date as the Directors may decide, but not {ater than 30 May 2024). Only fully completed applications received by the Fourth Closing Date, with cleared
funds in the Company’s nominated account, will be acceptable for investment (this Is the offer deadline),

16. Particulars of the Offer

This Prospectus is issued in relation to an Offer for subscription of Shares in the Company. A Class Shares and 8 Class Shares, in an aggregate of
500,000 Shares, will be offered to existing Shareholders in the Company and to new Investors, at the EIS Price per Share or the equivalent thereof in AUD. The
Directors will issue and allot Shares such that the maximum aggregate issue amount of such issue and allotment, together with the aggregate EIS Price of
the Existing lssued Shares that have not been redeemed on the Third Redemption Date, is equal to or more than the Aggregate Minimum Subscription. The
exact amount will be known after the Fourth Closing Date of the Offering and will be notified to the CIPC.

The Ofer is not underwritten.

Any subscription monies remaining after 2 whaole number of Shares has been issued will not be returned to the applicant and instead fractions of Shares will
be issued. Fractions of a Share shall be issved to three decimal places and shall carry the corresponding proportion of rights, Habilities and other attributes
of the whole Shares.

Any company or companies in the Investec Group shall be entitled but not obliged to subscribe for any number of Shares.
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The Company has not issued any securities during the three years immediately preceding the date of this Prospectus.

In the event of termination of this Offer, all subscription amounts already receivad by the Company in respect of the Offer shall be returned to the Investors
as soon as possible, but in any event not later than 20 Business Days following such termination, through electronic funds transfer into an account in the
name of the relevant Investor only, without interest and less any bank charges.

Neither the delivery of this Prospectus nor any application made in connection herewith shall, under any circumstances, constitute a representation or
create any fmplication that the information herein is correct as of any time subsequent to the date hereof.

Although application will be made for the Shares to be fisted on the Bermuda Stock Exchange, this does not imply a commitment by any member firm of the
Bermuda Stock Exchange (o make a rmarket in the Shares. In view of the specialised nature of the Company, it is unlikely that third parties will make an active
market in the 5hares. It is not proposed to list the Shares on any other stock exchange.

No copy of this Prospectus has been registered in any jurisdiction other than in Bermuda, Guernsey and South Africa in connection with the issue of Shares.
No person receiving a copy of this Prospectus in any territory may treat the same as constituting an invitation to them to purchase or to subscribe for Shares,
unless in the relevant territory such an invitation could lawfully be made to them without compliance with any registration or other legal requirements.

The contents of this Prospectus are not to be construed as a recommendation or advice to any Investor in relation to the subscription, purchase, holding or
disposition of Shares and Investors should consult their professional advisers accordingly.

17. Minimum Subscription

Subscription for Shares

The Directors have determined that the aggregate minimum amount raised under the Cffer must equal the Aggregate Minimum Subscription multiplied by
the EIS Price or the equivalent thereof in AUD, as the case may be.

The subscription price per Share will be equal to the EIS Price or the AUD equivalent thereof, however subscriptions for investment may not be less than the
Minimum Subscription Amount, provided that the Directors may, at their sole discretion, accept applications for less than the Minimum Subscription
Amount, where the shortfall is minimal. Should Investors subscribe for the Shares in any currency other than in AUD or USD then such monies shall be
converted to AUD or USD upon receipt by the Guernsey bankers. The procedure for the subscription of Shares is as described under the "Applications”
section below.

The Company may accept any application from an Investor, subject to the Emplayee Retirement income Security Act of 1974 as amended or Section 4975
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Payment for Shares must be made as set out in the Procedure for Application, Itis the Investor’s responsibility to ensure funds are received by the Company
in its nominated bank account prior to the Qffer deadline. Any interest earned on the subscription account will be for the benefit of the Company.

A contract note is Issued to each successful Investor detaillng the amount invested, the issue price and number of Shares lssued, within twelve [12) Business
Days after the Trade Date, provided that no contract note will be issued and the investor will have no access to his/her/its shares, until the Administrator is

satisfled with the due diligence documents {as described in the Application Form) provided by the investor,

The Distributar (if ary) will be entitled to a commission on the subscription of Shares by parties it has introduced as set outin Section One "Commissions or
Distribution Fees Paid”.

The Company will not purchase any real property out of the proceeds of the issue.

The Company has not borrowed any money 1o pay for the commission to the Distributor.

The working capital of the Company Is the Expense Provision that will be utilised to meet all the expenses incurred in the operation of the company including,
but not limited to, legal and professional expenses, audit fees, public relations fees, for listing the Shares on the Bermuda Stock Exchange, printing and

distribution expenses, the annual accounts, expenses of holding Shareholders’ and Directors’ meetings, taxes and duties, penalties, government charges,
banking fees, printing, electronic dispatching of cantract notes, annual filing fee and exempt company fee.
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18. Applications

An Investor who wishes to apply for Shares must obtain an Application form from the Distributor, ar Administrator. The Investor must complete the
Application Form in accordance with the instructions printed therecn and send a copy of the signed Application Form and copies of the required due diligence
{as described in the Application Form) to the investment Adviser and/for Administrator as soon as possible. The copy of the signed Application Form, the
certified copies of the investor due diligence and the subscription manies must be received by the Company, by the Offer deadline being the Fourth Closing
Date.

The fully completed original signed Application Form, together with the original certified due diligence and the tax documentation as described in the
Application Form must be received by the Administrator. The Administrator shall confirm to the Investor that the documentation is acceptable. The
subscription monies shouid be placed into the Company's neminated client bank account prior to the Fourth Closing Date. Any monies recelved in a currency
other than AUD or USD, as the case may be, will be converted to AUD or USD, as the case may be, at the prevailing spot rate available to the Company at
the date of receipt of said monies. The Company, the Administrator and the Investment Adviser do not accept any liability for unfavourable rates of exchange
alt the date of receipt of subscription money.

Banking details or any further information with regard to the Application Form, may be requested from either the Administrator or the Investment Adviser,
using the details below.

Administrator: Sanne Fund Services {Guernsey) Limited
Address:

1 Royal Plaza

Royal Avenue

St Peter Port

Guernsey, Channel Islands

GY1 2HL

Telephone +44 (0) 2035 3036500

Email Address basketsrollover@apexfs.group

Investment Adviser: Investec Bank Limited
Address:

36 Hans Strijdom Avenue

Cape Town

8001

Telephone +27 11 291 3092 Adrin Team
Email Address SPSupport@investec.co.za

When making the payment, Investors should ensure that the deposit reference is in the name of the Invester. Failure to do so, may result in Investors funds
being returned to the remitting bank. Meither the Administrator, investment Adviser, the Company nor Investec Bank {Channel Isfands) will accept
responsibility for incorrectly referenced payments which will result in non-allocation of funds, nor will they be held liable should any consequential loss
occur. Faflure to remlt the correct currency may result in funds being returned at investors own cast, which may also result in FX or cumrency loss,

Payments must come from the account in the name of the Investorfs. No third party payments will be accepted.

An application will not be valid unless all the above requirements have baen fulfilled.

investor undertakings

By completing and delivering an Application Form together with payment in full for the Shares applied for, each Investor agrees with the Company as fallgws:

{a) the Directors shall be entitled to accept or refuse any application in whale or in part, in such manner as they may in their sole and absolute discretion
decide;
()] the Company shall be entitled to scale down applications and to reject applications in whaole or in part, In such ¢ase application monies will be

retumed to applicants by electronic transfer into the account specified by the applicant in the Application Form without interest, less any applicable
banking fees;

{c) any application shall be irrevocable and any payment will be honoured on first presentation {and cleared before the Fourth Closing Date),
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(d)

(e}

()

{h}

i)

the application and any issue of Shares are made on and subject to the terms and conditions of this Prospectus, the Application Form and the
Articles;

the application for Shares is based solefy upon the informatien in this Prospectus and no other informaticn or representation has been relied upon;

any monles returned to the applicant will be net of bank charges and will not include any interest which may have been earned while the Company
held such monies;

all risks in respect of the method of payment will be borne solely by the Investor;

accounts and notices from the Company wlil be sent by email and the applicant shall provide a valid email address for this purpose;

the Company shall be notified, by the applicant, in writing of any change in registered address, email or bank account details; and

the Company makes no representations nor gives any warranties or undertakings with regard to the suitability of any investment in the Shares or

the accuracy of this Prospectus and potential Investors should obtain independent legal, tax, accounting, investment and other relevant advice
when contemplating any investment in the Company.
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SECTION THREE: Statements and reports relating to the Offer
19. Statement as to the adequacy of capital

The Directors are of the opinion that, subject to the Aggregate Minimum Subscription being met, the issued capital of the Company is adequate for the
purposes of the business for at least 12 months from the date of this Prospectus.

The distribution of this Prospectus and the Offering of Shares in certain jurisdictions may be restricted, and accordingly, persons into whose possession this
Prospectus comes are required to inform themselves about and to observe any such restrictions.

This Prospectus does not constitute and may not be used for the purposes of an offer or solicitation by any person in any jurisdiction (i} in which such offer

or solicitation is not authorised or {ii} in which the person making such offer or solicitation is not qualified ta do so or (i) knowingly, to any person to whom
it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation.

The Carnpany is a registered ¢losed-ended investment company pursuant to the Protection of Investors {Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 2020, as amended
and the Rules, The GFSC, in granting reglstration, has not reviewed this document but has relied upon specific declarations provided by the Adminlstrator,
the Company's designated administrator,

The GFSC and the States of Guernsey take no responsibility for the financial soundness of the Company or for the correctness of any of the statements made
or oplnions expressed regarding it.

If you are in any doubt about the contents of this Prospectus you should consult your accountant, legal or professional adviser or financial adviser. The
Directors have taken all reasonable care to ensure that the facts stated in this Prospectus are true and accurate in all material respects as at the date of this
Praspectus, and that there are no other facts the omission of which would make misleading any statement in the Prospectus, whether of facts or of opinien.
All the Directors accept responsibility accordingly. It should be remembered that the price of the Shares and any income from them can go down as well as
up.

The Administrator shali comply with relevant anti-money laundering guidelines applicable in Guernsey from time to time including the Criminal Justice
[Proceeds of Crime) (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 1999 (as amended), the Handbook for Financlal Services Business on Countering Financtal Crime and
Terrorist Financing {as amended) and associated laws, regulations, rules and guidelines,

Persons Interested In acquiring the Shares should inform themselves as to:

{a} the legal requirements within the countries of their nationality, residence, ordinary residence or domicile for acquiring, holding, disposing or
redernption of the Shares;
{b) any foreign exchange restriction or exchange control requirements which they might encounter on acquisition, holding, disposal ar redemption of

the Shares or on receipt of any dividend received in respect of the $hares; and

(c) the taxation consequences which might be refevant to the acquisition, holding, disposal or redemption of the Shares or any dividend received in
respect of the Shares;

Copies of this Prospectus and Application Form may be obtained from the applicable Distributor, the Investment Adviser, or from the Administrator.

The Administrator’'s contact details are as follows:

Telephone number +44 (0) 2035 303600
Email Address basketsrollover@apexfs.group

20. Report by Directors as to material changes

The Directors report that there have been no material changes to the assets or liabilities of the Company since the latest financial year end and the date of
this Prospectus.

21, Statement as to listing on Stock Exchange

it is the intention to retain the listing of the A Class Shares and the B Class Shares on the Bermuda Stock Exchange, subject to the Aggregate Minimum
Subscription being satisfied.
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This Prospectus incudes particulars given in compliance with the listing regulations of the Bermuda 5tock Exchange for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibllity for the accuracy of the information contained in this
Prosgectus and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries that to the best of their knowledge and belief there are no other facts, the omisslon of which,
would make any statement herein misleading.

The Bermuda Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this Prospectus, makes no representations as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upan any part of the contents of this Prospectus.

2. Report by Divectors (where business undertaking to be acquired)

As at the Last Practicable Date, the Company has not identified any business undertaking which it will purchase directly or indirectly from the proceeds of
the issue of the Shares or from any part of such praceeds, or fram any other funds.

21, Report by Directors (Where the Company will Acquire a Subsidiary}

As at the Last Practicable Date, no part of the proceeds of the issue of the Shares, whether directly or indlIrectly, will be used in a manner that results in the
acquisition by the Company of securities of any ather juristic person, with the direct or indirect result that the other juristic person will become a subsidiary
of the Company.

24, Report by the Auditor of the Company - 30 September 2023 Financial Statements

The audited financial statements of the Company are reported on by the Auditor to the Shareholders, as a body in accordance with section 262 of the Law.
The audit is undertaken so that the Auditor might state to the Shareholders those matters that are required to state to them in an Auditor’s report and for
no other purposes. To the fuliest extent permitted by Law, the Auditor does not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Shareholders, as
a body, for audit work, for the report, or the opinions formed by the Auditor.

The audited historizal information of the Company for the financial year ended 30 September 2023 is presented in Annexure A
A copy of the Independent Auditor's Report to the Sharehoiders of the Company as at 30 September 2023 is included in Annexure A,

No dividends have been paid by the Company.

25, Repont by Directors of the Company

‘The Law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the Company
and of the profit and loss of the Company for the audited period. The Directors collectively and individually confirm their understanding of their responsibility
for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and to enable them to
ensure the financial statements comply with the Law, The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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SECTION FOUR: Additional infarmation
26, General

The Articles give powers to the Directors to require the transfer or compulsory repurchase of Shares in a number of specified circumstances, as set out in
the Articles.

Redemptions of Shares prior 1o the relevant Redemption Date are wholly at the discretion of the Company’s Directors. Any request for redemption may be
refused in whole or In part. (See Section Four "Redemption Arrangements prior to the Redemption Date” in this Prospectus).

Any information given, or representation made, by any dealer, salesrman or other person which is not contained in this Prospectus {or any document

expressed to be an addendum or supplement to this Prospactus} or any accompanying report(s) should be regarded as unauthorised and should accordingly
not be relied upon.

All holders of Shares are entitled to the benefit of, are bound by and are deemed to have notice of, the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of the
Company, copies of which are available for inspection as described under “Inspection of Documents” in Section Seven “Material Contracts™ of this
Prospectus.

2. Sale Arrangements and Redemptions

Transfer/Sole Arrangements

The Investment Adviser has agreed to use its reasonable endeavours to make a market in the Shares on a matched basis. In order to assist this process the
Trust has declared its willingness to purchase Shares [although the Trust is not obliged to do so).

If a Shareholder wishes to sell his Shares, there are provisions to do so at the discretion of the Directors. Upon receipt of a request to sell Shares and assuming
normal market conditions the Directors expect that a Shareholder that wants to sell Shares will be able to do so at any time prior 1o the Redemption Date.
The Distributor will immediately notify the Investment Adviser and the Investment Adviser will inform the Adminlstrator that a ¢lient wishes to sell his
Shares. Should a Distributor have a client that wants 1o purchase the Shares, the Distributor will notify the Investment Adviser of the price that its clent is
willing to pay for the Shares,

No sale of less than S Shares per transaction will be permitted, nor any disposal as a result of which a Shareholder wilk hold less than 5 Shares in the Company,
except where a Shareholder dispases of all his Shares.

A seller of Shares wishing to accept the price offered by a purchaser must complete a share transfer form available from the Investment Adviser. Upon
receipt of an original signed Application Form, the required original due diligence, receipt of cleared funds from the purchaser and the original signed transfer
form from the seller of the Shares the Administrator shall have 10 Business Days to effect the sale. Details of the due diligence requirements can be found
in the relevant Application Forms, however if the purchaser requires further information they can contact either the Investment Advisor andfor the
Administrator.

The Administrator shall be entitled to an administration fee of £150 for facilitating the cash flow of the sale per Shareholder transaction effected through
the client money account. This fee shall be deducted by the Administrator from the proceeds due to the seller. Any proposed increase in this fee is subject
to negotiation with the Investment Adviser. The sale proceeds, less applicable fees agreed at the time of sale, will be paid by the Administrator to the
relevant Shareholder. In line with Guernsey regulatary requirements the Administrator will not make any third-party payments.

The Administrator shall not be liable to a seller of Shares for any fallure on the part of the buyer of the Shares to make payment of the sale proceeds to the
Administrator timeously or at all.

All other transfers of Shares effected by the Administrator will be free of charge. The Administrator will only process share transfers when in receipt of an
original completed Share transfer form signed by the transferor, an original application form signed by the transferee and the required original due diligence
of the transferee.

Transfers of Shares may be restricted and Shares may become subject to compulsory repurchass in certain circumstances if, inter afia, new Investors would
cause the Company an economic, tax or regulatery disadvantage.

In the case of ali transfers and sales, the Administrator will effect payments by electronic transfer Into the account specified by such Shareholder in the
original Application Form or the Share transfer form, as the case may be. It Is the Shareholder's responsibility to ensure the receiving account accepts the
specified currency and that the nominated account accepts all telegraphlc transfers. All currency exchange visk and bank charges are borne by the
Shareholder. The Administrator will not make any third-party payments.
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Redemption Arrangements prior to the Redemption Date

It should be noted that prior to the applicable Redemption Date there is no entitlement in favour of Shareholders to have their Shares redeemed by the
Company. Redemptions on a date other than a Redemption Date are wholly at the discretion of the Directors and any request for redemption may be
refused in whole or in part. No redemption shall be permitted unless the Directors are satisfied that they have complied with all applicable law, including
but without limitation, satisfaction of the solvency test as required by the Law. Should Directer consent be granted, and assuming normal market conditions,
a portion of the Company’s assets will be realised in a manner determined by the Directors as may be required to enable it te effect such redemptions ata
fair market price less any costs incurred by the Company in relation to the sale of the assets by the Company to effect such redemption.

If the Directors c t to a redemption prior to the Redemption Date, the Administrator must receive all required correctly completed original
documentation. Upen receipt of all completed documents, the Administrator will have 10 Business Days to effect the redemption. Redemption proceeds
less applicable fees agreed at the time of redemption will be paid by the Administrator 1o the relevant Shareholder into the account specified in the original
Application Form or in the redemption instruction, subject to the Shareholder accepting the offered price. It is the Sharehaolder's responsibility to ensure the
receiving account accepts the specified currency and that the nominated account accepts all telegraphic transfers. All currency exchange risk and bank
charges are borne by the Shareholder. The Administrator will not make any third-party payments.

Unless a redemption request specifies a particular number of Shares to be redeemed, it will be deemed to apply in respect of the total holding of the relevant
Shareholder.

Prior to the applicable Redemption Date no redemption of less than 5 Shares will be permitted except where a redemption request applies in respect of the
total holding of the relevant Shareholder.

All redemptions of Shares prior to the applicable Redemption Date will be subject to a settlernent and registration fee of up to 1.25% of the total value of
the applicable transaction of which 0.75% of the total value of the applicable transaction is payable to and for the account of the Investment Adviser and
0.5% of the total value of the applicable transaction is payable to and for the account of the Admin|strator. This fee will be deducted by the Administrator
from the redemption proceeds due to the applicable Shareholder,

Redemption Policy

Subject to their overall discretion, the Directors have determined o operate the following policy in respect of redemptions:

{b) Redemption of the Shares which are the subject of a redemption request shall take place at the redemption price agreed to between the relevant
Shareholder and the Company;

(4] No redemptions pricr to the applicable Redemption Date will be approved by the Directors where in the opinion of the Directors the redemptions
may be prejudicial to the Company or other Shareholders;

(d} No redemptions pricr to the applicable Redemption Date will be approved by the Directors where such redemption would render the Company
insolvent;
(e) No redemptions prior to the applicable Redemption Date will be approved by the Directors where such redemption would or might leave the

Company with insufficient funds to meet any future contermplated obligations or contingencies
Redemption on the Redemption Date

To the extent that Sharehalders have not elected to retain their Existing Issued Shares pursuant to an offer by the Company, the Shares shall be redeemed
on the applicable Redemption Date, subject to the Debt Issuer and the counterparty{ies) having fulfilled all its/their repayment obligations in respect of the
Debt Instruments and the Equity Linked Investment(s), as the case may be. Should such repayments not have been made, then the redemption may be
deferred until all obligations have been met.

The redemption price of each Share shall be reviewed by the Auditor, acting In a reasonable manner and in accordance with market practice, which price
shalt represent the Falr Market Value per Share.

Subject to receipt of all documentation and original required due diligence the Administrator will process the redemption of the Shares to Praxis Trustees
Limited as Trustee of the Basket Trust {the "Trust™) in accordance with the terms of the offer. Redemption proceeds will be paid from an account in the
name of the Trust to the relevant Shareholder by electronic transfer into an account in the name of the shareholder no later than 10 Business Days after the
Redemption Date. In the event that the redemption proceeds cannot for any reascn be paid to the relevant Shareholder by telegraphic transfer within 10
Business Days after the Redemption Date, the money will be held in the Trust account until claimed by the relevant Shareholder or until three years after
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the applicable Redemption Date, whichever is the earlier, and if not claimed by the Shareholder on such date, then it will be paid to a registered charitable
institution in Guernsey,

No settlement and registration fees will be payable in respect of redemptions effected on the applicable Redemption Date, however all currency exchange
risk and bank charges are to be borne by the Shareholder.

Valuotion of Assets

One of the factors that may influence the price of a Share will be the vaiue of the underlying investments of the Company. Te assist Shareholders and
parties interested in investing in the Shares in assessing potential returns on the Shares, the Investment Adviser will value the Company's assets on the
first Business Day of each month at fair market price and notify the Administrator of the Falr Market Value per Share. This valuation will be based on the
price of the Debt Instruments determined by the Investment Adviser in good faith and on the price of the Equity Linked investment(s) supplied by the
Equity Investment Pravider(s) in relation to the investments made by the Company. Valuations will be made available to Shareholders and interested

parties on the website https://www.apexgroup.com/investec-basket-information/
Temporary Suspenslon of Valuation, Issue, Redemption and Transfer of Shares

The Directors may, from time to time, temporarily suspend both the calculation and valuation of the underlying investments of the Company and the issue,
redemption and transfer of Shares in any of the following instances:-

(a) in any period during which any market in which a significant portion of the underlying investments are currently quoted or traded is closed, other
than for customary holidays and weekends, or during which dealings therein are restricted or suspended; or

{b) when, as a result of political, econgmic, military or monetary events or any circumstances outside the control, responsibility and power of the
Directors, disposal or valuation of the underlying investments Is not reasonably practicable without being seriously detrimental to the interests of
Shareholders or if, for reasons of Eliquidity or other constraints on realisation of underlying investments, monies to meet redemption proceeds are
not immediately available or if, in the opinion of the Directors, redemption prices cannot fairly be calculated; or

fed In the case of a breakdown in the means of communication normally employed in determining the price of the underlying investments or other
assets or when for any other reason the current prices on any market or stock exchange or any assets of the Company cannot be pramptly and
accurately ascertained; or

{d} if the Company is unable to repatriate assets required for the purpose of making payments on the redemption of Shares or during any period in
which the transfer of assets involved in the realisation or acquisition of underlying investments or payments due on the redemption of Shares
cannot, in the opinion of the Directors, be effected at normal prices nor normal rates of exchange

Notice of any such suspension and notice of the determination of any such suspension shall be given to Shareholders if in the opinion of the Directors it is
likely to exceed five Business Days and will be notified to applicants for Shares or to Shareholders requesting the redemption of Shares at the time of
application or fillng of the written request for such redemption. Where the Shares of the Company are listed on a recognised stock exchange, notice of any
such suspension and notice of the determinatior of any such suspension shall be given immediately to the recognised stock exchange. Where possible, all
reasonable steps will be taken to bring any period of suspension to an end as soon as possible.

8. Confiicts of Interest

The Company and the Investment Adviser may place orders and otherwise transact business with or through any company within the Investec Group. In
addition, any cash of the Company may be deposited with the Investec Group or invested In certificates of deposit or banking Instruments issued by the
Investec Group. Banking and similar transactions may also be undertaken with or through any such company.

There will be no obligation on the part of the Investment Adviser or any other company within the Investec Group to account to the Company or Shareholders
for any benefits so arising and any such benefits may be retained by the relevant party provided that such transactions are in compliance with the Rules,
carried out as if effected on normal commercial terms negotiated at arm’s length and are consistent with the best interests of Shareholders and:

{a) a certified valuation of such transaction by a person approved by the Directars as being independent and competent has been obtained; or
(b} such transaction has been executed on best terms on an organised investment exchange in accordance with the rules of such investment exchange;
or
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{c} where compliance with {a} or {b) is not practical, such transaction has been executed on terms which the Directors and Administrator are satisfied
conform with the principle that such transactions be carried out as if effected on normal commercial terms negotiated at arm’s length and are
consistent with the best interests of Shareholders,

Any company within the Investec Group may deal in Shares as principat or on an agency basis and retain any benefits 3o arising.

The Investment Adviser may, in the course of its respective businesses, have conflicts of interests with the Company. Should a conflict of interest actually
arise, the Directors and the Investment Adviser will use their best endeavours to ensure that It is resolved falrly.

In allocating investment opportunities between its clients, the Investment Adviser will at all times act in the best interests of its clients {including the
Company) and will allocate investment opportunities in a manner it considers fair and reasonable.

The Investment Adviser when selecting brokers or dealers to execute transactions must solicit competitive bids and has an obligation to seek the lowest
available commission cost.

Interests of the Directors, if any, are set out in Section One "Interests of Directors, Investment Adviser and Distributors” in this Prospectus and the Articles
specify circumstances in which a Director may or may not vote in relation to a matter in which he may be interested.

a8, Taxation

introduction

The following summary of the anticipated tax treatment in Guernsey applies to persons holding Shares as an investment. The summary does not constitute
legal or tax advice and is based on what is understood to be current taxation law and published practice at the date of this Prospectus. Investars should be
aware that the level and bases of taxation may change from those described and should consult their own professional advisers on the implications of
making an investment in, holding or disposing of, Shares under the laws of the countries in which they are liable to taxation.

Guernsey
{i) The Compuny

The Company has been granted exemption from liability to income tax in Guernsey under the Income Tax (Exempt Bodies) (Guernsey)
Ordinance, 1989 as a ded (“E pt Bodies Ordi ") by the Director of the Revenue Service in Guernsey for the current year.
Exemption must be applied for annually and will be granted, subject to the payment of an annual fee, which is currently fixed at £1,600
per applicant, provided the applicant qualifies under the applicable legislation for exemption. It is the intention of the Directors to
conduct the affairs of the Company 56 as to ensure that it continues to qualify for exempt company status for the purposes of Guernsey
taxation.

As an exempt company, the Company is and will be treated as if it were not resident in Guernsey for the purposes of liability to Guernsey
income tax. Under current law and practice in Guernsey, the Company will only be liable to tax in Guernsey in respect of inco me arising
or accruing in Guernsey, other than from a relevant bank deposit.

Guernsey currently does not levy taxes upan capital inheritances, capital gains, gifts, sales or turnover, nor are there any estate duties {save for
registration fees and ad valorem duty for a Guernsey Grant of Representation where the deceased dies leaving assetsin G v which require
presentation of such a Grant).

No stamp duty is chargeable in Guernsey on the issue, transfer or redemption of Shares in the Company.
1] Shareholders

In the case of Shareholders who are not resident in Guernsey for tax purposes, distributions can be paid to such shareholders without
giving rise to a liability to Guernsey income tax, nor will the Company be required to withhold Guernsey tax on such distribu tions.

Shareholders who are resident for tax purposes in Guernsey {which includes Alderney and Herm), or who are not resident but have a
permanent establishment In Guernsey to which the holding of their Shares is related, will incur Guernsey income tax at the applicable
rate on a distribution paid to them. Provided the Company maintains its exempt status, there would currently be no requirement for
the Company to withhold tax from the payment of a distribution to such Shareholders and will anly be required to provide the Director
of the Revenue Service such particulars relating to any distribution paid to Guernsey resident Shareholders as the Director of the
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Revenue Service may require, including the names and addresses of the Guernsey resident Shareholders, the gross amount of any
distribution paid and the date of the payment.

The Director of the Revenue Service can require the Company to provide the name and address of every Guernsey resident who, on a
specified date, has a beneficial interest in Shares, with details of the interest.

Guernsey currently does not levy taxes upon capital inherltances, capital gains, glfts, sales or turnover, nor are there any estate duties
{save for registration fees and ad valorem duty for a Guernsey Grant of Representation where the deceased dies leaving assets Iin
Guernsey which require presentation of such a Grant).

No stamp duty Is chargeable in Guernsey on the issue, transfer or redemption of Shares.

({11} FATCA and similor measures

Pursuant to US Internal Revenue Service [“IRS") regulations, the Company and its tax advisers hereby inform you that: (i) any tax advice
contained herein is not intended and was not written to be used, and cannot be used by any taxpayer, for the purposes of avoiding
penalties that may be imposed on the taxpayer; (li} any such advice was written to support the promotion or marketing of the Shares
described in this Prospectus; and (iii} each taxpayer should seek advice based on the taxpayer's particular circumstances from an
Independent tax adviser.

The Company is registered for FATCA under 9CZFLI.99999.5L.831. Under FATCA and legisiation enacted In Guernsey ta implement the US-
Guernsey IGA, certain disclosure requirements will be imposed in respect of certain Shareholders who are or are entities that are
controlled by one or more natural persons who are, residents or citizens of the United States, unless a relevant exemption ap plies.
Certain due diligence obligations will also be imposed. Where applicable, information that will need to be disclosed will i nclude certain
information about Shareholders, their ultimate beneficial owners and/or controllers, and their investment in and returns from the
Company. The Company will be required to repart this information each year in the prescribed format and manner as per local guidance.
If the Company does not comply with these obligations, it could be subject to a 30% withholding tax (" FATCA Deduction”) on certain
payments to it of US source income {including interest and dividends) and (from no earlier than two years after the date of publication
of certain final regulations defining "Foreign Passthru Paymenis”) a portlon of non-US source payments from certaln non-US financial
Institutions to the extent attributable to US source payments. The US-Guernsey IGA is implemented through Guernsey's domestic
legislation in accordance with guidance that is published in draft form.

Under the US-Guernsey IGA, securities that are "regularly traded” on an established securities market are not considered financial
accounts and are not subject to reporting, The Bermuda Stock Exchange may not qualify as an "established securities market” for these
purposes. In any event, a Share will not be considered "regularly traded” and will be considered a financial account If the § hareholder
is not a financial institution acting as an intermediary. Such Shareholders will be required to provide information to the Company to
allow it to satisfy its obligations under FATCA. Shareholders that own Shares through a flnancial Intermediary may be required to provide
information to such financial intermediary in order to allow the financial intermediary to satisfy its obligations under FATC A,

Common Reporting Standard

On 13 February 2014, the Organlisation for £conemic Co-operation and Development released the CRS designed to create a global
standard for the automatic exchange of financial account information, similar to the information to be reported under FATCA. On 29
October 2014, fifty-one jurisdictions signed the muitilateral competent authority agreement {"Multilateral Agreement”) that activates
this automatic exchange of FATCA-like information in line with the CRS. Since then further jurisdictions have also signed the Multilateral
Agreement and in total over 100 jurisdictions have committed to adopting the CRS. Many of these jurisdictions have now adopted the
CRS. Guernsey adopted the CRS with effect from 1 January 2016.

Under the CRS and legislation enacted in Guernsey, certain disclosure requirements are imposed in respect of certain Shareholders who
are entities that are controlled by one or more natural persens who may be residents of any of the jurisdictions that have also adopted
the CRS, unless a relevant exemption applies. Certain due diligence obligations will be imposed. Where applicable, information that
would need to be disclosed will include certain information about Shareholders, their uitimate beneficial owne rs and/or controllers, and
their Investment in and returns from the Company. The Company will be required to report this information each year in the preseribed
format and manner as per local guidance. The CRS Is Implemented through Guernsey’s domestic legislation in accordance with local
guldance that is supplemented by guidance Issued by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development.

Under the CRS, there is curréntly no reporting exemption for securities that are "regularly traded” on an established securities market.
Shareholders that own Shares through a financial intermediary may be required to provide information to such financial interm ediary
in order to allow the financial intermediary to satisfy its obligations under the CRS.
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If the Company fails to comply with any due diligence and/or reporting requirements under Guernsey legislation implementing the US-
Guernsey IGA andfor the CRS then the Company could be subject to the imposition of financial penaities, and in the case of the US-
Guernsey IGA, FATCA Deductions. While the Company will seek to satisfy its obligations under the US-Guernsey IGA and the CRS as
implemented in Guernsey in order to avoid the Imposition of any FATCA Deductions or any financlal penalties under Guernsey law, the
ability of the Company to satlsfy such obligations will depend on receiving relevant information and/or documentation about each
Shareholder and the direct and indirect beneficial owners of the Shares {if any). There can be no assurance that the Company will be
able to satisfy such obligations,

The Company reserves the right to request from any Shareholder or potential investor such Information as the Company deems
necessary to comply with FATCA and the CRS, or any obligation arising under the Implementation of any applicable intergovernmental
agreement, inciuding the US-Guernsey IGA and the Multilateral Agreement, refating to FATCA, the CRS or the automatic exchange of
information with any relevant competent authority.

All investors should consult with their own tax advisers regarding the possible implications of FATCA, the CRS and any other similar
legislation and/or regulations on thelr investment in the Company.

Investor Taxation

As the investment is in the Shares of the Company, the taxability of returns will depend on the nature and status of each Investor. If any Investor is in any
doubt about the taxation consequences of acquiring, holding, disposing, transferring or redeeming of the Shares, he should seek advice from his own
independent professional adviser,

South African tax residents will be taxed in South Africa under current South African tax regulation on any dividends and other returns received by them
from the Company.

30,

Dividend Policy

The Cormpany may pay dividends, The Directors will consider declaring a dividend if such dividend appears to be justified by the financial position of the
Company. Any dividends paid will only be paid in line with the policy of the Bermuda Stock Exchange, the Articles and the Law and be paid in the currency
of the Shares held by the applicable Shareholder.

L

Risk Factors

Attention is drawn to the following specific risk factors:-

Making an investment carries a level of Inherent risk. Investors should carefully consider the risks associated with investing in the Company and seek
professional advice before making any decision to Invest in the Company. Set cut below are some of the potential risks which should be considered in
determining whether an investment in Shares is a svitable investment, The risk factors set out below are not, and are not intended to be, a complete list
of all the risks relevant to a decision to purchase or hold the Shares. There may be other risks that an Investor should consider that are relevant to their
own particular circumstances or more generally.

Suitabillty of Investment

Investors are not to construe the contents of this Prospectus as investment, tax, business or legal advice. Prior to offering to acquire Shares, an
Investor should consult with his own legal, business and tax advisers to determine the appropriateness and consequences of an investment in
the Company.

An investment in the Company Is only suitabie for Investors who appreciate the risks Involved, which may include the loss of their entire
investment. An investment in the Company is not suitable for Investors who may wish to realise their investment at short notice.

Investors should make their own independent decision to invest in the Shares and as to whether an investment in the Shares is appropriate or
proper for them based upon their own judgment and upon advice from such advisers as they may deem necessary. investors should not rely on
any communication {written or oral) of the Company, the Investment Adviser or any of their affiliates or their respective directors, officers or
agents as investrent advice or as a recammendation to lnvest in the Shares, it being understood that information and explanations relating to
the Shares will not be considered to be investment advice or a recommendation to invest in the Shares. No communication (written or oral}
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received from the Company, the Investment Adviser or any of their affiliates or their respective directors, officers or agents will be deemed to
be an assurance or guarantee as to the expected results of an investment in the Shares.

b) Counterparty and Credit Risk

There is credit risk on the Debt Issuer, each Reference Entity (if the Debt Instruments are credit linked) and the Equity Investment Provider(s).
The bankruptcy, refusal to pay, governmental intervention, restructuring, acceleration of debts or any other default by any such party(ies), as
applicable, may cause the value of such investment of the Company to be reduced or to become zere, which may adversely affect the Share
price or cause the Shares to become worthless,

If any of the Company’s investments are terminated early for any reason the Directors will take such steps as they, in their sole discretion,
consider practicable In order to enable the Company to achieve its investment objectives. There can be no assurance that this will be possible.

If the Debt Instruments are credit linked and should a Potential Failure to Pay have occurred, then the Termination Date shall be postponed to
determine whether the Potential Failure to Pay will be cured or whether a Credit Event has occurred. The timing for payment of any amounts
may occur at a different time than expected.

The market price of a credit linked instrument may be volatile and will be affected by various factors including, but not limited to, the tHme
remaining to the maturity date of the instrument, prevailing credit spreads in the market and the creditworthiness of the Reference Entity, which
in turn may be affected by the economic, financlal, political and other events in one or mare jurisdictions.

Shareholders should conduct their own investigation and analysis, including, where applicable, obtaining independent expert advice, with respect
to the credit risk of the Reference Entity and the factors that may assist in determining the likelihood of the occurrence of a material adverse
event with respect to the Reference Entity, including, but not limited to, general economic conditions, the condition of relevant financial markets,
relevant political events and developments or trends in any relevant industries.

Shareholders should be aware that any such breach or default by any party In relation to an Investment made by the Company may adversely
affect the ability of the Company to meet its investment objectives.

<) Litigation Risk

Investment in the Company involves certain risks normally assaciated with investment in equity securities, which includes for example the risk
that a party may successfully litigate against the Company, which may result in a reduction in the assets of the Company. The Directors are not
aware of any pending litigation against the Company.

dj Hedglng against market volatility

The investment objective as described in the Prospectus of the Company is twofold: to preserve the Shareholder’s capital in USD; and 1o give
meaningful participation in the growth in international equity markets. Interest rates and credit spreads may show significant volatility if global
infation and the prospect of recession in many countries influence markets. If interest rates and credit spreads are at elevated levels, the
potential equity participation of the Company over the next investment term may improve. The Investment Adviser may then seek to purchase
some instruments (being some of the Debt Instruments as well as interest rate hedges) ahead of the product trade date in order to secure these
attractive levels. it may not possible to purchase all of the Debt instruments ahead of trade date given the uncertain size of the trade. If purchase,
these instruments will be sold on to the Company on trade date at the same levels at which they were acquired. This will ensure that the Company
can still meet its investment cbjectives even if the market yield on the Debt Instruments is lower than current levels on trade date. In addition,
the interest rate hedge will then ensure that the Company still benefits from any further material increases in interest rates. Movement ininterest
rates up until the trade date will have an effect on the payoff and valuation on day one of the investment term

e} Fallure to Achieve Investment Objective

There can be no assurance that the Company will achieve its investment objective.
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Restricted Liquldity in Shares

The Directors do not expect an active secondary market to develop in the Shares and an investment in the Company is therefore only appropriate
for Investors who are prepared to carmmit their investment on a medium to long term basis for at least five years.

Shares carry no rights for the holder to require the Company to redeem the Shares prior to the relevant Redemption Date or repurchase Shares,
although the Directors have the power to repurchase or request the transfer of Shares and the Trust has Indicated its willingness to buy Shares
which Sharehaiders wish to sell {although it is not obliged to do so).

In the event that a Shareholder wishes to sell all his Shares, the Administrator will endeavour to facilitate the redemption of the relevant Shares
to the Trust. The Shares will be listed on the Bermuda Stock Exchange but the Directors do not expect that an active secondary market will
develop.

gl Investars
Whilst investment in the Company can offer the potential for higher than average returns it also involves a correspondingly higher degree of
risk and is only considered appropriate for Investors who can afford to take that risk, which may include the risk of the loss of the entire
investment. An Investor must have extensive knowledge and experience in financial and business matters and be capable of evaluating such
merits and risks. Each Investor represents, as part of his application for Shares, that he satisfies these criteria and that he is acquiring the Shares
for investment.

h) Tax and Regulatory Changes and changes in interpretation, administration or application

The tax consequences to the Company and to Shareholders (in respect of both levels and bases of taxation}, the ability of the Company to
repatriate its assets {including any income and profit earned on those assets) and other operations of the Company are based on regulations
which are subject to change through legislative, judicial or administrative action {or in the interpretation, administration or application of such
legisiative, judicial or administrative action) in the jurisdictions in which the Company, the Administrator and the Investment Adviser, or thelr
affiiates operate.

Any change in legislation or judicial or administrative action {ar in the interpretation, administration er application of such legislative, judicial or
administrative action) in the jurisdictions in which the Debt Issuer and/for Equity Investment Provider(s] or their affiliates operate may adversely
affect the Company’s investments in that the Debt Issuer and/or the Equity Investment Provider{s} may effect an early termination/redemption
of the Debt Instruments andfor the Equity Linked Instrument(s) or adjust the pricing of the Debt Instruments and/or the Equity Linked
Instrument(s).

Exchange Rate Risk

The A Class Shares are denominated in AUD, All the Company’s investments will be made in USD. Any Investor who anticipates a return in a
currency other than USD will bear the risk of an adverse change in the exchange rate between USD and that other currency and any resultant
reduction in the value of the | t when d inated in that other currency. Investors’ attention is drawn to the fact that the A Class
shares are denominated In AUD but all the investments of the Company that provides capital preservation will be denominated in USD, Should
the AUD strengthen against the USD, then the capital preservation that is envisaged may not be effective in AUD.

Lack of Liquidity of Investments

The investments may be illlquid, difficuit to value and subject to legal and other restrictions on transfer. There can be no assurances that the
Company will be able to liquidate a particular interest at the time and on the terms it desires or that the Debt Issuer will call the Debt Instrument.
The investments made by the Company as described in this Prospectus will be medium to long term and of an illiquid nature. The acquisition of
Shares in the Company should be regarded as a medium to long-term investment, as the value of the Company’s assets prior to the maturity of
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the Company’s investments [described under Section Two "Purpose of the Offer” in this Prospectus) may be significantly less and the price of
the Shares may accordingly be adversely affected.

k) Risks assoclated with investments linked to an Index

Performance of an index may be adversely affected by the volatility in the prices of a small number of indices included within the index. Where
there is no positive growth of the index over the Investment Period then the Equity Linked Investment(s) will expire without any value and the
Company shall receive no return (including, for the avoidance of doubt, that portion of the Company’s Funds invested in the Equity Linked
Investmentis)).

[}] Risks associated with the Debt Instruments

Interest rates and credit spreads have shown significant volatility in recent months as global inflation and the prospect of recession in many
countries has influenced markets. The participation of the Company in the growth of internatlonal equity markets Is sensitive to rates. To
llustrate, a 0.1% change in rates will result in a €2.9% change in participation. In order to reduce the uncertainty of meeting the Company’s
investment objectives in these circumstances, the Investment Advisor reserves the right to purchase some or all of the Debt Instruments prior
to the Trade Date, and to on-sell the Debt Instruments to the Company on the Trade Date at the same yield they were acquired. The intention
is to secure the yield on the Debt Instruments prior to the Trade Date. This will ensure that the Company can still meet its investment
objectives even if the vield on the Debt Instruments in the market is lower on Trade Date. However, there is the possibillty that rates increase
after securing a particular yield which would result in a lower participation than if the Debt Instruments were not secured in advance.

The fair value of the Debt Instruments on the Trade Date may he higher or lower, depending on whether Interest rates and credit spreads in
the market have moved since the initial purchase by the investment Adviser. This initial fair value gain or loss will not impact the Investor's
return negatively if held to maturity, as the marketed payoff will still be earned. However, if sold before maturity, there is a passibility of
experiencing a mark-to-market loss if rates have increased between the date of initial purchase of the Debt Instruments by the Investment
Advisor and the Trade Date.

If the Debt Instruments are subordinated debt instruments that rank as tier 2 capital of the Debt Issuer in terms of applicable law or regulations
{*the Regulations”):

» the Debt Issuer is not entitled to exercise the Call Option, or to redeem the Debt Instruments, without the prior written approval of the
applicable regulator;

L] If the Debt Issuer Is placed Into liquidation or is wound-up, be subordinated to the claims of depositors and all creditors In respect of the
obligations {the Senior Obligations) of the Debt Issuer that are expressed te rank senlor to the obligations of the Debt Issuer under the
Debt Instruments;

] If the Debt Issuer is wound-up or put into liquidation, voluntarity or involuntarily, the Company as a holder of the Debt Instruments will
not be entitled to any payments of principal or interest in respect of the Debt Instruments until the claims of depositars and all the
creditors in respect of Senior Obligations which are admissible In any such winding-up or liquidation have been paid or discharged in full.
If the Debt Issuer does not have sufficient assets at the time of winding-up or liquidation to satisfy its Senior Obligatlons, then the
Company as 3 holder of the Debt Instruments will not recelve any payment in respect of the Debt Instruments;

. in addition, the rights of the Company as a holder of the Debt Lnstruments are limited in certain respects. In particular, if the Debt Issuer
defaults on a payment of any amount due on Debt Instruments and has failed to remeady that breach within the remady period stipulated
In the Debt Instruments, the Company as holder may only institute proceedings for the winding-up of the Debt issuer (and/or prove a
claim in any winding-up of the Debt Issuer} but take no other action in respect of that default. Only if an order of court is made or an
effective resolution is passed for the winding-up, liquidation or dissolution of the Debt Issuer will the Company as a holder of the Debt
Instruments be able to declare (upon written notice] the Debt Instruments iImmediately due and payable;

. Furthermore, there is no restriction on the amount of securities or indebtedness which the Debt Issuer may issue or incur which rank
senior to, or pari passu with, the Debt Instruments. The Issue of any such securities or Indebtedness may reduce the amount recoverable
by the Company as holder of the Debt Instruments on a winding-up, liquidation or curatorship of the Debt Issuer

. Accordingly, although the Debt Instruments may pay 2 higher rate of interest than comparable instruments which are not subordinated,
there is a risk that the Company as holder of the Debt instruments may lose all or some of its investment should the Debt Issuer become
insolvent;
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. Pursuant to the Regulations, the Debt Instruments contain a provision to the effect that, at the option of the relevant regulatory authority,
such instruments must be written off, In part or in total, upon the occurrence of a trigger event as described below, The trigger event
(Non-Viability Event) is the earlier of: (1) a decision that a write-off, without which the issuing bank would become non-viable, is
necessary, as determined by the relevant regulatory authority; and (2) the decision to make a public sector injection of capital, or
equivalent support, without which the issuing bank would have become non-viable, as determined by the relevant regulatory authority;

. The possibility of Write Off means that the Company as a holder of the Debt Instruments may lose some or all of its investment. The
exercise of any such power by the relevant regulatory authority or any suggestion of such exercise could materially adversely affect the
price or value of an investment in the Debt Instruments and/or the ability of the Debt Issuer to satisfy its obligations under the Debt
Instruments

. Write-Off of the Debt Instruments will only occur to the extent deemed by the relevant regulator as necessary to ensure that the Debt
Issuer Is viable, as specified in writing by the relevant regulator. Accordingly, any write-off of the Debt Instruments will generally be
effected to ensure compllance with these minimum requirements only

- Upon the occurrence of a Non-Viability Event {as defined above), the Debt Instruments will be cancelled (in the case of a write-off in
whole} or written-off in part on a pro rata basis [in the case of a write-off in part) in accordance with the Regulations relating to Banks

. Further to such cancellation or Write-OF, the Company as a holder of the Debt Instruments will no longer have any rights against the
Debt Issuer with respect to any amounts cancelled or written off and the Debt Issuer shall not be obliged to pay compensation In any
form. Furthermore, any such cancellation or write-off will not constitute an event of default or any other breach of the Debt issuer's
obligations under the Debt Instruments;

. The occurrence of a Non-Viability Event is therefore inherently unpredictable and depends on a number of factors, many of which are
outside of the Debt Issuer's control

. The First Call Date, will be five years after issue date of the Debt Instruments, if the Oebt Issuer exercises the Call Option in accordance
with its terms. Investors should note that, if the Debt Instruments are subordinated debt instruments, the maturity date of the Debt
Instruments Is ten years after the issue date of the Debt Instruments, if the Debt Issuer did not exercise the Call Option in accordance
with Its terms;

. If, for any reason, the subordinated Debt Instruments are cancelled or redeemed prior to its scheduled maturity date and the proceeds
(if any) are received and retained by the Company, the Company will then Invest the proceeds {If any) In other debt instruments. In this
regard Investors should take note of the counterparty and Credit Risk factors described in [b) above. There can be no assurance, upon
the early cancellation or redemption of the Debt Instruments, or if any Write-Off occurs under the Debt Instruments, that the Company
will have sufficient funds to redeem or repurchase all of the Shares in full

If an event of default occurs in respect of the Debt Issuer, then the Debt Instrument may terminate prior to its scheduled maturity date at a
value that is less than the value that it would have been at its scheduled maturity date. Assuming that early termination occurs and the early
termination proceeds {if any) are received by the Company, then the Company will invest the early termination proceeds {if any) in another debt
instrument. In this regard Investors should take note of the Counterparty and Credit Risk Factors described above. There can be no assurance,
upon the early termination of the Debt Instruments, that the Company will have sufficient funds to redeem all of the Shares in full.

The First Call Date will be five years after the issue date of the Debt Instruments. The Debt Issuer is then entitled to exercise its Call Option in
accordance with its terms. Investors should note that, if the Debt Instruments are senlor debt instruments, the maturity date of the applicable
Debt Instruments will be six years after the issue date of the Debt Instruments, if the Debt Issuer did not exercise its Call Option in accordance
with its terms.

If, for any reasan, a senfor Debt Instrument is cancelled or redeemed prior to its First Call Date and the praceeds {if any) are received and retained
by the Company, the Company will then invest the proceeds {if any} in other debt instruments. In this regard Investors should take note of the
counterparty and Credit Risk factors deseribed in (b) above. There can be no assurance, upon the early cancellation or redemption of the Debt
Instruments, that the Company will have sufficient funds to redeem or repurchase all of the Shares in full.

m) Fixed Income Investment

The percentage of the Company’'s Funds that needs to be invested in the Debt Instrument with the intention of providing capital preservation to
Investors wilt be dependent on market conditions and may therefore exceed 75% of the Company’s Funds and consequently a reduced amount
may be invested in the Equity Linked Investment(s).
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n) Forward Looking Statements and Forecasts

To the extent that this Prospectus contains forward looking statements, (including, without limitation, statements containing the words
"believes”, “estimates”, “anticipates”, “expects”, “intends”, "may”, "will", or "should” or, in each case, their negative or other variations or
similar expressions}, such forward looking statements involve unknown risk, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual results,
financial condition, performance or achievement of the Company to be materially different from any potential future results, performance or
achieverments expressed or implied by such forward locking statements.

Given these uncertainties, Investors are cautioned not to place any undue reliance on any forward looking statements contained in this
Praspectus.

L] Marketing of the Company’s Shares

The Directors have no intentlon to market the Shares, or send this Prospectus, to investors domiciled or with a registered office in any Member
State of the EEA, the UK or the US.

1] Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act

The Company and/or interests in the Company could be subject to the application of the Foreign Account Tax Compliance provisions of
the U.5. Hiring Incentives to Restore Employment Act 2010, which implemented sections 1471-1474 of the U.5. Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended ("FATCA"). FATCA generally imposes a reporting regime and potentially a 30% withholding tax with respect to
certain U.5, source income {including dividends and interest) and {from no earlier than two years afier the date of publication of certain
final regulations defining “foreign passthru payments”) a portion of non-US source payments from certain non-US financial Institutions
to the extent attributable to US source payments ("Withholdable Payments”). As a general matter, the rules are designed to require
U.S. persons’ direct and Indirect ownership of non-U.S. accounts and non-U.S. entities to be reported to the U.S. Internal Revenue
Service ("IRS"}. The 30% withholding tax regime can apply If there is a failure to provide required information regarding U.S. ownership.

Generally, the rules will subject all withholdable Payments received by the Company to 30% withholding tax (including the share that is
allocable to non-U.S. persons) unless compliance with the rules by the Company Is pursuant to an intergovernmental agreement between
the jurisdiction in which the Company Is based and the U.S. or the Company enters into an agreement {(an *FFl Agreement”) with the IRS
to provide information, representations and walvers of non-U.5. law as may be required to comply with the provisions of the new rules,
including, Information regarding its direct and indirect U.5. accountholders.

FATCA IS PARTICULARLY COMPLEX AND ITS APPLICATION TO THE COMPANY, INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY AND THE HOLDERS THEREOF
IS UNCERTAIN AT THIS TIME. EACH POTENTIAL INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISER TO OBTAIN A MORE DETAILED
EXPLANATION OF FATCA AND HOW THIS U.S. LEGISLATION MIGHT AFFECT EACH POTENTIAL INVESTOR IN THEIR PARTICULAR
CIRCUMSTANCE.

1] US-Guernsey Intergovernmental Agreement

On 13 December 2013 the Chief Minister of Guernsey signed an intergovernmental agreement with the US ("US-Guernsey IGA®) regarding the
implementation of FATCA, under which certain disclosure requirements will be imposed in respect of certain Shareholders in the Company wheo
are, or are entities that are controlled by one or more natural persons who are, residents or citizens of the US, unless a relevant exemption
applies. The US-Guernsey IGA has been implemented through Guernsey’s domestic tegislation, in accordance with guidance that is published in
draft form. See "FATCA and similar measures” on for more information.

r} Comman Reporting Standard

Guernsey has Implemented the "Common Reporting Standard” ["CRS"}. Under the CRS, certain disclosure reguirements will be imposed in
respect of certain Sharehalders in the Company who are entities that are controlled by one or more natural persons who are residents of any of
the jurisdictions that have also adopted the CRS, unless a relevant exemption applies. The CRS is implemented through Guernsey’s domestic
legislation in accordance with guidance that is published in draft form and which is supplemented by guidance issued by the Organisation for
Economic Co-operation and Development. See "Common Reporting Standard™ for more information.
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) Request for Information

The Company reserves the right to request from any | tor or potential Shareholder such information as the Company deems necessary to comply
with FATCA, any FFl Agreement from time to time in force, the CRS or any obligation arising under the implementation of any applicable
intergovernmental agreement, including the US-Guernsey IGA.

The factors mentioned above are not comprehensive and there may be other risks that relste to or may ba assoclated with an investment in the
Company.

32 Accounting Policy, Financial Statements and Reports
Accounting Policy

The audited statutory financial statements of the Company will be prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {“"IFRS") and
with the Law.

The next financial year will end on 30 September 2024,

Financial Statements and Reports

The Atcounting Period of the Company is from 1 October to 30 September in respect of each year. Electronic coples of audited financial statements will be
sent to Shareholders at their reglstered emai! address. Audited financial statements will not be posted other than pursuant to receipt by the Administrator
of a specific written or emailed request. The annual report will be published within six months of the end of the annual Accounting Period. Annual
accounts will also be available on the Administrator’s Website https://www.apexgroup.com/investec-basket-information.

The Company may declare and pay dividends (although it is not expected the Company will pay any dividends). Any dividends paid will only be paid in line

with the policy of the Sermuda Stock Exchange and the Law, and be paid in the currency of the Shares in respect of which the dividends are being paid,
please refer to "Dividends” section in this Prospectus .

Litigation and Arbitration

At the date of this Prospectus the Company is not involved in any litigation or arbitration nor are the Directors aware of any pending or threatened litigation
or arbitration since incorporation,

Contract Notes

Contract notes are issued to all Shareholders. The register of Shareholders will be maintained at the office of the Administrator.
Miscellaneous

{a) The Company does not have a place of business in the United Kingdom or South Africa

(e} Copies of all material contracts are held by the Administrator {or its nominated agent) on behalf of the Company.

{cl The Company does not have any hedging powers.

{d) The preliminary expenses and good will of the Company will not be amortised and no expenses will be written off by the Company.
(&) Any dispute resulting from this Prospectus will be governed by the laws of the Island of Guernsey.

General

{a) The Company does not have and does not expect to have, nor has it since Its incorporation had, any employees.
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{b) The Company is responsible for all its operating expenses including, without limitation, Directors’ expenses, legal costs, bank charges, Auditor's
rermyneration and expenses, costs of dealing in the assets of the Company, interest on any borrowings effected by the Company, the fees of the
GFSC and the costs and expenses of the preparation, printing (if applicable) and, where applicable, distribution or publishing of certificates, tax
vouchers, warrants, proxy cards, contract notes, this Prospectus and annual financial statements and all other documents in connection with the
Company.

fc) The Company may be subject to withholding tax on distributions received in respect of its investments, which withhalding tax may not be
recoverable.

{d) No share or loan capital of the Campany has been issued, or agreed to be issued, as fully or partly paid up otherwise than in cash.

{e) Save a5 disclosed in this Prospectus, no amount or benefit has been paid or given or is intended to be pa'd or given ta any promoter of the Company
nor has any prior right been granted to a distribution or the profits or assets of the Company.

n Save as disclosed in this Prospectus, no commissions, discounts, brokerages or other special terms have been granted by the Company in connection
with the issue or sale of any Share or loan Capital.

(gl As at the date of this Prospectus the Company has neither any loan capital {including term loans) cutstanding or created but unissued, or any
outstanding mortgages, charges, debentures or other borrowings or indebtedness in the nature of borrowings, including bank overdrafts, liabilities
under acceptance or acceptance credits, obligations under finance leases, hire purchase commitments, guarantees or other contingent liabilities.

(h} All consents, appravals, authorisations or other orders of all regulatory autharities (if any) required by the Company under the laws of Guernsey for
the offering of the Shares, for the Administrator to undertake its obligations under the Administration Agreement and for the establishment and
management of the Company have been glven.

(i} Annual reports of the Company will be sent to the Company Announcements Office of the Bermuda Stock Exchange within 6 months of the end of
the pericd to which they relate.

The Shares are offered and will be issued pursuant to a resolution of the Directors dated on or about the date of this Prospectus and as provided for in the
Articles.
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Annexure A: Most recent Financlal Statements and Accounts

[Approved by the Directors on 26 lanuary 2024. To be considered by the shareholders at the AGM in March 2024)
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CHINA SEAS BASKET LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
For the year ended 30 September 2023

The Directors present the annual report and the audited financial statements ("the financial statements”) of China
Seas Basket Limited ("the Company") for the year ended 30 September 2023.

Princlpal Activity
The principal activity of the Company is that of a limited life investment holding company.

The Company is a Guernsey Registered closed-ended investment company and is subject to the Registered
Collective Investment Scheme Rules 2018. The Company is listed on the Bermuda Stock Exchange.

Going concern

Under the terms of the Company's prospectus, and subject to exercise of the option to redeem on the part of the
issuer of the Company's debt investment (the likelihood of which is considered to be high), the life of the Company
is due to terminate on 5 June 2024. At an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company to be held on 14
February 2024, shareholders will be asked to approve a special resolution to extend the life of the Company for a
further period from the Company's current termination date, and to authorise the Directors to seek to raise
additional capital through a secondary fund raising. Should shareholders not approve the resolution, or should
insufficient capital be raised for the proposed new investment term, the Company will terminate on 5 June 2024
and its shares be radeemed. However, in the view of the Directors, the likelihood of the resolution being passed,
and of sufficient capital being raised, and therefore the Company continuing in existence beyond 5 June 2024, is
extremely strong.

During the year, the war in Ukraine has continued to impact upon financial markets. However, the Board does not

consider thal there will be any significant impact on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, for the
following reasons:

» The Company is closed-ended, as a result of which the Board has the power to decline requests to radeem
shareholdings if it believes that such redemptions are not in the best interests of the Company,;

* Should the Board agree to a redemption, it would be offered to the investor at a price that the assets can be
redeemed in the market. The Company itself would not be exposed to any losses that may arise;

« The Company is less exposed to the risk of widespread investor sell-off, because of the defensive nature of the
Company's investment profile. Other than through defauit or insolvency of the debt provider, investors will be aware
that a key element of the Company's investment strategy is to provide capital protection, therefore limiting their
exposure to falls in the markets of the kind that are currently being experienced; and

« During the year and subsequent to the reporting date, the Board has received no enquiries, either directly or via
the Investment Adviser, from investors wishing to redeem their shareholdings at any other time other than at the
predetermined planned date of redemption.

As a result of the above considerations, and as the Company has sufficient working capital and adequate
resources to continue in operations and meet its liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future, the Directors
have determined that these financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis.

Results and Dividends

The Statement of Comprehensive Income is set out on page 10. The Directors do not propose a dividend for the
year (2022: Nil).

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and to the date of this report are detailed below.

Janine Lewis
David Stephenson
Keri Lancaster-King



CHINA SEAS BASKET LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
For the year ended 30 September 2023

Directors' and Other Interests

Janine Lewis is a Diractor of the Company and a director of Sanne Fund Services (Guernsey) Limited ("SFSGL"),
the Company’s Administrator, Secretary, Custodian and Registrar, David Stephenson is a Director of the Company
and an employee of SFSGL and Keri Lancaster-King is a Director of the Company and a director of SFSGL.

During the year, no Director has had any beneficial interest in the shares of the Company.

No Director of the Company, or Investec Corporate and Institutional Banking ('[CIB"), the Investment Advisor to the
Company, holds any right, either contingent or otherwise, to subscribe for shares in the Company.

Details of fees paid to SFSGL and ICIB during the year are contained in notes 5, 10 and 18 to these Financial
Statements.

No fees were paid to the Directors by the Company during the year.

Historical Results
The results and assets and liabilities of the Company for the last 5 years are as follows:

Total
Comprehensive
Total Assets  Total Liabilities Income/(Loss)
AUD AUD AUD
Year ended 30 September 2023 113,245,178 (671,071) 11,572,510
Year ended 30 September 2022 101,973,307 (971,710) 6,288,263
Year ended 30 September 2021 94,859,704 (146,370) 12,822,010
Year ended 30 September 2020 82,067,305 (140,032) (5,355,043)
Year ended 30 September 2019 87,528,435 (82,269) 4,438,260
Investment Portfolio
The Company's investment portfolic comprises the following investments:
Percentage of Cost  Carrying Value
portfolio AUD AUD
Investec Bank Limited Structured Deposit (underlying
bonds issued by Standard Bank Group Limited) 80.6% 69,796,046 90,452,538
Goldman Sachs Call Warrants 19.4% 9,826,779 21,782,282

79,622,825 112,234,820

Investec Bank Limited, Standard Bank Group Limited and Goldman Sachs are providers of financial services.

Statement of Directors' Rasponsibllities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and financial statements in accordance with The
Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at the end of the financial year, and of the profit or loss for the
financial year.



CHINA SEAS BASKET LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
For the year ended 30 September 2023

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities (continued)

Under that law, the Diractors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRS). Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss
for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

« select suitable appropriate accounting policies and apply them consistently;
+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state whether IFRS have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements; and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements.

The Direclors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with The Companies {Guemsey) Law, 2008 and
with The Protection of Investors (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 1987. They are also responsible for safaguarding the
assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities,

The Directors confirm that:

* go far as each Diractor is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is
unaware;

s each Direclor has taken all the steps he ought to have taken as a Director to make himself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that information; and

« the financial statements give a true and fair view and have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards, with The Companies (Guemsey) Law, 2008 and with The Protection of
Investors (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 2020.

Independent Auditor
Grant Thornton Limited {'GT') has expressed its willingness to continue in office and a resolution to re-appoint GT
as auditor to the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

Keri Lancaster-King
Director
26 January 2024



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of China Seas Basket Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of China Seas Basket Limited (the “Company”) for the year
ended 30 September 2023, which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows , and Notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial statements
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the International Standards Board (IASB).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 September 2023 and of its
financial performance and its cashflows for the year then ended,;

+ are in accordance with IFRSs as issued by the IASB; and
+ comply with the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants'’ International Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Guernsey, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Materia! uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 2 in the financial statements which states that under the terms of the
Company's prospectus, the life of the Company is due to terminate on 5§ June 2024. As noted in note
2, these events or conditions, along with the other matters as set forth in note 2, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt in the Company's ability to continue as a going
concemn.

Cur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report and Financial Statements, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially missiated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
To the members of China Seas Basket Limited (continued)

Responsibilities of the directors for the financlal statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities set out on pages 5 and 6, the
Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair view
in accordance with [FRSs as issued by the IASB, and for such internal control as the Directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Diractors either intend to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 1o influence the economic decisions of users taken an
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectivaness of the Company’s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
maodify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Jeremy Ellis.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of China Seas Basket Limited {continued)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with section 262 of
the Companies (Guermnsey) Law, 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies
{Guernsey) Law, 2008 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

e proper accounting records have not been kept by the Company; or
+ the Company's financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

« we have not obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief, are necessary for the purposes of our audit.

Grant Thornton Limited
Chartered Accountants
St Peter Port

Guernsey

26 January 2024



CHINA SEAS BASKET LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 September 2023

INCOME
Interest income

GAINS/(LOSSES) ON INVESTMENTS
Gains/{losses) on investments at fair value through profit and loss
Gains/{lossas) on derivatives at fair value through profit and loss

Foreign exchange differences
Operating expenses

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)INCOME
items reclassifiable to profit or loss

Foreign exchange translation (losses)/gains

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Earnings/(loss) per ordinary share
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per A Class share

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per B Class share

Notes

-~

10

11
11

2023 2022
AUD AUD
4,259,615 3,701,396
8,814,386 (7,165,388)
312,008 (714,496)
13,386,099 (4,178,488)
14,868 (31,831)
(1,276,881) (1,145,087}
12,124,086 (5,355,406}
(551,576) 11,643,669
(551,576) 11,643,669
11,572,510 6,288,263
175.42 (77.49)
175.42 (77.49)

There are no recognised gains or losses for the year other than those reported above.

The notes on pages 14 to 27 are an integral part of these financial statements.

10



CHINA SEAS BASKET LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 September 2023
2023 2022
Notes AUD AUD
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments at fair value through profit and loss 7 21,782,282 12,937,146
Investments at amortised cost 8 90,452,538 86,784,983
112,234,820 99,722,129
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and ofher receivables 12 822,436 1,007,387
Unpaid share capital 14 10 10
Cash and cash equivalents 187,912 1,243,781
1,010,358 2,251,178
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 13 (54,074) {19,220)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 956,284 2,231,958
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Derivatives at fair value through profit and loss 9 {616,997) (940,163)
Trade and other payables 13 - (12,327)
(616,997} (952,490)
112,574,107 101,001,597
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 14 897 897
Share premium 15 79,342,351 79,342,351
Retained eamings 16 23,258,726 11,134,640
Translation reserve 17 9,972,133 10,523,709
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 112,574,107 101,001,597
Number of fully paid A Class shares 21,814,634 21,814,634
Number of fully paid 8 Class shares 47.300.085 47,300.085
Net Asset Value per A Class share AUD 1,628.80 AUD 1,461.36
Net Asset Value per B Class share UsD 1,049.76 USD 935.13

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 26 January 2024 and signed on its

behalf by:

Keri Lancaster-King
Director

The notes on pages 14 to 27 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CHINA SEAS BASKET LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 September 2023

Management Ordinary
Shareholders Shareholders Total
Share Share Share Retained Translation
capital capital pramium earnings reserve Total
Year ended 30 September 2022 AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD
At 30 September 2021 10 887 79,342,351 16,490,046 {1,119,860) 94,713,334
Loss for the year - - - (5,355,406) - (5.355,406)
Other comprehensive income
Foreign exchange translation
gains (note 17) - - - - 11,643,669 11,643,669
At 30 September 2022 10 887 79,342,351 11,134,640 10,523,709 101,001,597
Year ended 30 September 2023
At 30 September 2022 10 887 79,342,351 11,134,640 10,523,709 101,001,597
Profit for the year - - - 12,124,086 - 12,124,086
Other comprehensive loss
Forelgn exchange translation
losses (note 17) - - - - (551,576) (551,576)
At 30 September 2023 10 887 79,342,351 23,258,726 9,972,133 112,574,107

The notes on pages 14 to 27 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CHINA SEAS BASKET LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 September 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/{loss) for the year

Adjustments for:
Interest income
Interest paid

(Gain)/loss on investments at fair value through profit and loss
(Gain)/loss on derivatives at fair value through profit and loss
Foreign exchange differences

Decreasef(increase) in trade and other receivables

Increase in trade and other payables

Net cash outflow from operating activitles

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest income

Net cash inflow from Investing activitles
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents for the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Forelgn exchange translation (losses)/gains

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes

2023 2022
AUD AUD
12,124,086 (5.355,406)
(4,259,615)  (3,701,396)
20,681 7,286
(8,814,386) 7,165,388
(312,008) 714,496
{14,868) 31,831
180,704 (109.376)
1,645 2,630
(1,073,851)  (1,244,547)
35,935 7,797
35,935 7,797
(1,037,916)  (1,236,750)
1,243,781 2,239,591
(17,953) 240,940
187,912 1,243,781

The notes on pages 14 to 27 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CHINA SEAS BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2023

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Seas Basket Limited (“the Company”) is a company incorporated and domiciled in Guemsey under The
Companies (Guemnsey) Law, 2008. The address of the registered office is given on page 3. The principal activity of
the Company and its operations are detailed on page 4. These financial statements are presented in Australian
Dollars. The functional currency of the Company is US Dollars.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
material in relation to the Company's financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company, have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ('IFRS'). The financial statements comply with IFRS as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board ("IASB").

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of certain
financial instruments measured at fair value.

Going concern

Under the terms of the Company's prospeclus, and subject to exercise of the option to redeem on the part of the
issuer of the Company's debt investment (the likelihood of which is considered to be high), the life of the Company
is due to terminate on 5 June 2024. At an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company to be held early in 2024,
shareholders will be asked to approve a special resolution to extend the life of the Company for a further period
from the Company's current termination date, and to authorise the Directors to seek to raise additional capital
through a secondary fund raising. Should shareholders not approve the resolution, or should insufficient capital be
raised for the proposed new invesiment term, the Company will terminate on 5 June 2024 and its shares be
redeemed. However, in the view of the Directors, the likelihood of the resolution being passed, and of sufficient
capital being raised, and therefore the Company continuing in existence beyond 5 June 2024, is exiremely strong.

During the year, the war in Ukraine has continued to impact upon financial markets. However, the Board does not
consider that there will be any significant impact on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, for the
following reasons:

+ The Company is closed-ended, as a resuit of which the Board has the power to decline requests to redeem
shareholdings if it believes that such redemptions are not in the best interests of the Company;

» Should the Board agree to a redemption, it would be offered to the investor at a price that the assets can be
redeemed in the market. The Company itself would not be exposed to any losses that may arise;

» The Company is less exposed to the risk of widespread investor sell-off, because of the defensive nature of the
Company's investment profile. Other than through default or insolvency of the debt provider, investors will be
aware that a key element of the Company's invesiment strategy is to provide capital protection, therefore limiting
their exposure to falls in the markets of the kind that are currently being experienced; and

« During the year and subsequent to the reporting date, the Board has received no enquiries, either directly or via
the Investment Adviser, from investors wishing to redeem their shareholdings at any other time other than at the
predetermined planned date of redemption.

As a resull of the above considerations, and as the Company has sufficient working capital and adequate
resources to continue in operations and meet its liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future, the Directors
have determined that these financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis.

Adoption of amended standards
The following relevant amended standard has been applied in these Financial Statements:

« |AS 37 (amended), ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ — (relating to the costs to include
when assessing whether a contract is onerous, effective for accounting periods commencing on or after 1
January 2022).
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CHINA SEAS BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 30 September 2023

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Adoption of amended standards {(continued)

In addition, the IASB issued its publication ‘Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020°, which amended
certain existing standards, effective for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2022,

In the opinion of the Directors, the adoption of these amended standards has had no material impact on the
Financial Statements of the Company.

Amended standards and Interpretations not yet adopted
The following relevant standards, which have not been applied in these Financial Statements, were in issue at the
reporting date but not yet effective:

+ |AS 1 (amended), ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ — (amendments relating to the disclosure of
accounting policies, and to the classification of liabilities, effective for accounting periods commencing on or
after 1 January 2023 and 1 January 2024 respectively);

« JAS 8 {amended), ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' — (clarifying how
companies should distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates, effective
for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2023); and

The International Sustainability Standards Board ("ISSB") published the following Sustainability Disclosure
Standards in June 2023, effective for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2024

* |FRS 31, 'General requirements for Disclosure of Suslainability-related Financial Information'; and
¢« |FRS S2, ‘Climate-related Disclosures’.

The purpose of both standards is to provide information that is useful to primary users of general purpose financial
reports in making decisions relating to providing resources 1o the entity.

In the opinion of the Directors, the adoption of these new and amended standards will have no material impact on
the Financial Statements of the Company.

Financial assets - classiflcation
Under IFRS 8, the classification and measurement of financial assets is driven by the entity's business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristic of those financial assets.

The Company has determined that it has two distinct business models, as follows:

(i} To invest in a debt instrument issued by Investec Bank Limited. Under IFRS 9, financial assets that are debt
instruments may be classified as either (a) amortised cost, (b) fair value through other comprehensive income or
(c) fair value through profit and loss ("FVTPL"). The purpose of the Company's investment in the debt instrument
is to collect the contractual cashflows of solely payments of principal and interest arising on maturity, which will
provide capital protection for investors in the Company, and accordingly, the Company has determined that this
investment should be classified as an investment at amortised cost.

(i) To invest in one or more options linked to a basket of indices, in arder to provide investors with a potential
upside on their investment. Under the terms of IFRS 9, the options are automatically classified as investments at
FVTPL.

Financlal assets - recognition and subsequent measurement
Purchased financial assets are recognised on trade date, being the date on which the Company irrevocably
commits to purchase the asset.

All investments are measured initially at fair value net of transaction costs, except where the investment will
subsequently be measured at FVTPL. Transaction costs relating to the acquisition of investments at FVTPL are
expensed as incurred in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

After initial recognition, the Company's Warrants investment, and the interest rate swap forming part of the
Structured Deposit, are measured at FVTPL. Fair value is calculated using quoted market prices, independent
appraisals, discounted cash flow analysis or other appropriate valuation models at the reporting date. Changes in
the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised in other gains/(losses} in profit or ioss in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income as applicable.
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CHINA SEAS BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 30 September 2023

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets - recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

After initial recognition, the Company's Structured Deposit is measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. Interest income from this financial asset is included in profit or loss. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses, including expected credit losses at initial recognition and changes
to expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition, are
presented as a separate line item in profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

All gains or losses are recognised in the period in which they arise.

Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the
Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Liquid resources

Liquid resources comprise cash and cash equivalents and long-term deposits. Cash and cash equivalents
comprises bank balances and short term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. Deposits with
an original maturity of greater than three months are classified as long-term deposits.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initiafly at the amount of consideration that is unconditional, unless
they contain significant financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Company holds the
receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities, other than those at FVTPL, are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method.

Interest iIncome
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest rate method and
recognised in profit or loss.

Forelgn exchange

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (the "functional currency”). The Directors have determined that the
functional currency of the Company is US Dollars, as it is the currency in which the Company's investments are
denominated, the majority of the Company’s capital has been raised and in which the majority of the Company's
expenses are incurred. For consistency with previous years, the Directors have selected Australian Dollars as the
presentation currency of the Company.

Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated info Australian Dollars al the rale of exchange ruling on the
reporting date. Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of US Dollars at the rate of
exchange ruling on the date of the transaction and then translated into Australian Dollars for presentation
purposes. Forelgn exchange gains and losses relating to the functional currency are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Differences arising on translation from the functional
currency to the presentation currency are recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they
arise and are taken to the transiation reserve.

Expenses

Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. All expenses are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, except for expenses incurred in relation to the launch of the Company, which ware charged against share
premium.
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CHINA SEAS BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 30 September 2023

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continuad)

Taxation

The Company is exempt from Guernsey income tax under the Income Tax {Exempt Bodies) {Guernsey)
Ordinance 1989 and is charged an annual exemption fee of £1,200 (2022: £1,200).

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Board of Directors considers that the Company is engaged in a single segment of business, being the holding
of investments. The Board considers that it is the Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

The eslimates and underlying assumptions are reviewad on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate was revised if the revision affects only that period or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The areas involving significant estimates or judgements are:

« Classification of and subsequent measurement basis of financial instruments — see note 2 {(Financial assets —
classification);

+ Determination of the functional currency - see note 2 (Foreign exchange);

« Estimated falr value of financiat assets measured at FVTPL - see note 7; and

* Impairment of financial assets measured at amartised cost - see notes 8 and 12.

SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS
The following significant agreements have been entered into by the Company;

Administration, Custodian and Secretarial

Under the Administration, Custodian and Secretarial Agreement, the Company has agreed to pay or procure to be
paid to the Administrator, for its services as administrator, secretary, custodian and registrar, a fee of 0.11%
(2022: 0.11%) per annum of the Company’s funds thereafter (as reduced by any redemptions of Ordinary Shares
prior to the Redemption Date). In addition, the Administrator is entitled to receive interest eamed by the Company
on the unpaid element of the fess due to the date of termination. See notes 10, 12 and 18 for details of
administration fees and interest paid in the year and balances outstanding at the year end.

Investment Advisory Agreement

Under the Investment Advisory Agreement, the Company has agreed to pay or procure to be paid to the
Investment Advisor, for its services as Investment Advisor, a fee of 0.6% (2022: 0.6%) per annum of the
Company’s funds (as reduced by any redemptions of Ordinary Shares prior to the Redemption Date). In addition
the Investment Advisor is entitled to receive interest earned by the Company on the unpaid element of the fees
due to the date of termination. The Investment Advisor, Investec Corporate and Institutional Banking, is a part of
the same global group of companies as Investec Bank Limited, the issuer of the Company's Structured Deposit.
See notes 10, 12 and 18 for details of investment advisory fees and interest paid in the year and balances
outstanding at the year end.
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CHINA SEAS BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 30 September 2023

SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS {(continued)

Distribution Agreement

Under the Distribution Agreement, the Company has agreed to pay or procure to be paid to the Distributors a fee
of 0.6% (2022: 0.6%) per annum of that portion of the Company's funds that is derived from the subscription
amount subscribed for by Subscribers introduced by the Distributor (as reduced by any redemptions of such
Ordinary Shares prior to the Redemption Date), or holders of existing issued Ordinary Shares introduced by the
Distributor and who elect to remain invested in the Company (as reduced by any redemptions of such Ordinary
Shares prior to the Redemption Date). See notes 10, 12 and 13 for details of distribution fees paid in the year and
balances outstanding at the year end. Investec Corporate and Institutional Banking, the Company’s Investment
Adpvisor, is also a Distributor for the Company.

All fees described above are payable annually in advance on the anniversary of the Trade Date (the date of
investment of the Company’s funds) each year until the Termination Date.

INTEREST INCOME 2023 2022
AUD AUD
Interest on investment at amortised cost 4,227,927 3,691,447
Bank interest 31,688 9,949
4,259,615 3,701,396

The effective interest rate used for calculating the interest on the investment at amortised cost is 4.9753% (2022:
4.9753%).

INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS 2023 2022
AUD AUD

Goldman Sachs Call Warrants

Balance brought forward 12,937,146 18,524,148

Fair value adjustment for the year 8,814,386 (7,165,288)

Translation difference 30,750 1,578,386

Fair value carried forward 21,782,282 12,937,146

The Warrants are linked to the Euronext CDP Environmental World Index.

The Directors determine the fair value of the Warrants based on a valuation provided by Goldman Sachs. The
valuation/price of the Warrants is calculated by Goldman Sachs using a pricing model.

The Warrants have been classified as a level 2 investment in the fair value hierarchy as the valuation is derived
from observable inputs other than quoted prices in an active market (see note 19(iv)). The key inputs to the
valuation were the notional value of the Warrants (USD 72,364,334 (2022: USD 72,364,334)) and the published
bid price of the Warrants of 19.40% as at 30 September 2023 (2022: 11.44%). The key input to the published bid
price of the Warrants was the closing price as at 30 September 2023 of the Euronext CDP Environment World
index of USD 1,544.74 (2022: USD 1,395.64).
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CHINA SEAS BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the year ended 30 September 2023

INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST 2023 2022
AUD AUD

Investec Bank Limited Structured Deposits

Balance brought forward 86,784,983 73,200,096

Interest 4,227,927 3,601,447

Translation difference (560,372) 9,893,440

Carrying value carried forward 90,452,538 86,784,983

The Investec Bank Limited Structured Deposit (the “Structured Deposit") acquired during the prior year is a hybrid
instrument comprising the following components:

= A holding of Standard Bank Group Limited 5.95% bonds maturing in 2029 (the "Standard Bank bonds"). The
Standard Bank bonds were purchased in the market and are callable by the issuer at par on 31 May 2024;

* An accreting bank deposit, which commences on the date of the first coupon payment from the Standard Bank
bonds, receives all subsequent coupon payments during the life of the Company, and eams interest on a
quarterly compounding basis; and

An interest rate swap, which fixes the interest rate on the accreting deposit. Notwithstanding that the Company
regards the interest rate swap as a fundamental part of the Structured Deposit, this instrument is classified
separately in the Statement of Financial Position under the heading 'Derivatives at fair value through profit and
loss', and movements in the fair value thereof are recognised separately in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. For further details please rafer to note 9.

The Directors regard the Structured Deposit as a single financial instrument, which is measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method, except for the embedded interest rate swap, which is measured at its
mark-to-market value, based on valuations provided by the swap issuer, less a provision for unwind costs,
estimated by the Investment Advisor.

The Structured Deposit is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest used for calculating the interest income Is disclosed in note 6.

The calculation of impairment, including expected credit losses, is based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Company uses judgments in making this assumption and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation based on past history and existing market conditions (see note 19(ii)}. The Company has
assessed the investment in the Structured Deposit for impairment and expected credit losses at the reporting date
and has concluded that as at the year end no impairment or credit losses are expected over the life of the
investment (2022: no impairment or credit losses were expected over the life of the investment).

The fair value of the Structured Deposit, calculated by ICIB at 30 September 2023, was AUD 90,425,805 (2022:
AUD 86,972,221).

DERIVATIVES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS 2023 2022
AUD AUD
Balance brought forward {940,163) (127,542)
Fair value adjustment for the year 312,098 (714,496)
Translation difference 11,068 (98,125)
Fair value carried forward {616,997) (940,163}

Derivatives at fair value through profit and loss comprises an interest rate swap utilised to fix the interest rate on
the accreting deposit component of the Structured Deposit (see note 8). The interest rate swap is measured at its
mark-to-market value, based on valuations provided by the swap issuer, less a provision for unwind costs,
estimated by the Investment Advisor.
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CHINA SEAS BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 30 September 2023

10.

1.

DERIVATIVES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS (continued)

Details of specific inputs to the valuation of the interest rate swaps and related sensitivity analysis have not been
included in note 19({i){c), as the value of the swaps is not material, and also because, as noted above, the swaps
form part of the mechanism for fixing the redemption prices of the Structured Deposits, and will therefore not be

traded or realised separately.

The derivatives are classified as level 2 investments in the fair value hierarchy.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Investment advisory fee
Distribution fees
Administration fee
Auditor's remuneration
GFSC licence fee
Interest expense
Listing fee

Statutory fees
Sponsorship fee
Professional indemnity insurance
Sundry

EARNINGS/LOSS) PER SHARE
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/{loss) per share is
based on the following data:

Profit/(loss) attributable to shares:

Profit/(loss) for purpose of basic and diluted earnings/({loss) per share being
the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to shareholders

Number of shares:

Waeighted average number of shares for the purpose of basic
and diluted eamings per share

Earnings/{loss) per share attributable to A Class shares

Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to B Class shares

2023 2022
AUD AUD
552,884 507,046
544,241 499,080
112,948 96,024
17,502 12,428
7,094 6,714
20,681 7,286
6,312 5,785
3,235 2,816
5,356 4,899
2,611 2,422
4,017 587
1,276,881 1,145,087
2023 2022
AUD AUD
12,124,086 (5,355,406)
69,114.719 69,114.719
175.42 (77.49)
175.42 (77.49)

A weighted average number of shares has been calculated to enable users to gain a fairer understanding of the
earnings generated per ordinary share through the year. The weighted average has been calculated with reference
to the number of days shares have actually been in issue and hence their ability to influence income generated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
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12.

13,

14.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 2023 2022

AUD AUD
Bank interest receivable - 4,247
Prepaid investment advisory fee 378,386 459,716
Prepaid distributors' fees 370,973 452,434
Prepaid administration fee 69,370 84,280
Other prepayments 3,707 6,710
822,436 1,007,387

The balance of trade and other receivables principally comprises prepayments, therefore a provision for expected

credit losses is not required.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2023 2022
AUD ALD
Current
Audit fee 16,571 14,139
Statutory fees - 2,226
Sponsorship fees 1,358 1,367
Professional indemnity Insurance - 1,488
Distribution fees 1,324 -
Listing fees 1,612 -
interest payable 33,209 -
54,074 19,220
Non-current
Interest payable - 12,327
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised:

Following the adoption of the Company's amended Articles of Association on 18 March 2020, the Company no

longer has any defined authorised share capital.

2023 2022

Issued: AUD AUD
10 Management shares of AUD 1.00 unpaid {2022: 10 shares unpaid) 10 10
21,814.634 A Class shares of AUD 0.01 each (2022: 21,814.634) 218 218
47,300.085 B Class shares of USD 0.01 each (2022: 47,300.085) 669 669
897 897

A Class and B Class shares are entitled to 1 vote each at a general meeting of the Company. Under the terms of
the Company's prospectus, and in the absence of a further special resolution to extend the life of the Company,
the Company’s shares will be redeemed and the Company will terminate on 5 June 2024, A Class and B Class
shareholders are entitled to receive any dividends or distributions from the Company and any surplus arising on
the winding up of the Company after the payment of creditors and redemption of the Management shares at their

nominal value.

Management shares are entitled to 10,000 votes each at a general meeting of the Company. Management shares
may only be owned by The Basket Trust (see note 18) or its nominee. Management shareholders are not entitled
to receive any dividends or distributions from the Company nor any surplus arising on the winding up of the

Company in excess of the nominal value of the Management shares.
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CHINA SEAS BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 30 September 2023

15. SHARE PREMIUM
2023

Balance brought forward and carried forward

2022

Balance brought forward

Balance carried forward

16. RETAINED EARNINGS

Movements in retained earnings are attributable to A Class and B Class shareholders as follows:

2023

Balance brought forward
Net profit for the year

Balance carried forward
2022

Balance brought forward
Net ioss for the year

Balance carried forward

17. TRANSLATION RESERVE

Movements in the translation reserve are attributable to A Class and B Class shareholders as follows:

2023

Balance brought forward

Foreign exchange translation losses
Balance carried forward

2022

Balance brought forward

Foreign exchange translation gains
Balance carried forward

22

A Class B Class Total
AUD AUD AUD
21,069,943 58,272,408 79,342,351
21,069,943 58,272,408 79,342,351
A Class B Class Total
AUD AUD AUD
21,069,943 58,272,408 79,342,351
21,069,943 58,272,408 79,342,351
A Class B Class Total
AUD AUD AUD
7.487.473 3,647,167 11,134,640
3,826,717 8,297,369 12,124,086
11,314,190 11,944,536 23,258,726
A Class B Class Total
AUD AUD AUD
9,177,796 7,312,250 16,490,046
(1,690,323) {3,665,083) (5,355,406)
7487473 3,647,167 11,134,640
AClass B Class Total
AUD AUD AUD
3,321,595 7,202,114 10,523,709
{174,094) (377,482) {551,576)
3,147,501 6,824,632 9,972,133
A Class B Class Total
AUD AUD AUD
{353,489) (766,471) (1,119,960)
3,675,084 7,968,585 11,643,669
3,321,595 7,202,114 10,523,709




CHINA SEAS BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 30 September 2023

18.

19,

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The immediate controlling party at the year end date is Praxis Trustees Limited as trustee of The Basket Trust,
which owns the Management shares in the Company. There is no ultimate controlling party of the Company.

Sanne Fund Services (Guemsey) Limited ("SFSGL'), the administrator of the Company, is deemed to be a related
party, as Janine Lewis (a Director of the Company) is a director of SFSGL; David Stephenson (a Director of the
Company) is an employee of SFSGL; and Keri Lancaster-King {a Director of the Company) is a director of SFSGL.
Buring the year SFSGL eamad AUD 112,948 (2022: AUD 96,024) for their services as administrator. At the year
end date administration fees of AUD 69,370 had been paid to SFSGL in advance {2022: AUD 84,280) and interest
on outstanding fees of AUD 5,145 was payable to SFSGL {2022: AUD 1,896).

The Investment Advisor, Investec Corporate and Institutional Banking ("ICIB"), a division of Investec Bank Limited,
and Investec Bank Limited itself, are deemed to be related parties. During the year Investec Corporate and
Institutional Banking eamed AUD 552,884 (2022: AUD 507,046) for their services as investment advisor. At the
year end date advisory fees of AUD 378,386 (2022: AUD 459,716) had been paid to Investec Corporate and
Institutional Banking in advance and interest on outstanding fees of AUD 28,064 (2022;: AUD 10,431) was payable
to Investec Corporate and Institutional Banking. The balances and transactions during the year with Investec Bank
Limited related to the investments at amortised cost are disclosed in note 8.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK FACTORS

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk from the financial instruments it holds. The
Company has a fixed modus operandi, as stated in its prospectus, which is to invest its capital in a debt instrument
and a holding of an option or warrants on a specified index or basket of indices; and to retain a certain element of
cash to cover expenses to be incurred over the specified period of its life. As a result of this, the Company's
flexibility in dealing with the risks associated with these instruments is somewhat limited. However, the risk
management policies that are employed by the Company to manage these risks are discussed below. There have
been no changes to the Company’s exposure to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk; or its objectives, policies
and procedures for managing such risks, since the prior year.

{i) Markat risk

(a) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. Currency risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the Company's functional currency. As at 30 September 2023 the
Company was exposed to foreign exchange risk in relation to the following assets and liabilities:

2023 2022
Source currency AUD AUD
Cash and cash equivalents Pound Sterling 138,142 171,036
Trade and other payables Pound Sterling (16,571) (17,8563}
121,57 153,183




CHINA SEAS BASKET LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 30 September 2023

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK FACTORS (continued)
(i) Market risk (continued)

{a) Currency risk {continued)

At 30 September 2023, the foreign currency exposure of the Company against the measurement currency of
US Dollars, entirely to Pound Sterling, represented 0.11% of Equity Shareholder's Funds (2022: 0.15%). The
Company's policy is not to manage the Company's exposure to foreign exchange movements by entering into
any foreign exchange hedging transactions. If the exchange rate of the US Dollar against Pound Steriing at the
year end date had been 10% higher/lower (2022: 10% higher/lower), this would have resulted in an
increase/decrease in the year end net asset value of AUD 12,157 (2022: AUD 15,318). The sensitivity rate of
10% is regarded as reasonable as this is the approximate volatility of Sterfing against the US Dollar during the
year.

Tha Company has no other material currency exposures at elther 30 September 2023 or 30 September 2022,

{b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on its cash and
cash equivalents and interest payable on outstanding future fees. At 30 September 2023, the Company held
cash on call accounts of AUD 187,912 (2022;: AUD 1,243,781), which earned interest at a weighted average
rale of 0.80% (2022: 0.80%). At 30 September 2023, the Company had no oulstanding future fees on which
interest is payable {2022: outstanding fees of AUD 742,075, on which interest of 1.7% was payable).

Had these balances existed for the whole of the year, and all other factors remained the same, the effect on
the Profit and Loss account of an increase/decrease of 2.0% in interest rates (2022: increase of 1.0%/decrease
of 0.5%) per annum would have been an increase of AUD 3,758/decrease of AUD Nil in post-tax profit for the
year (2022: increase of AUD 4,454/decrease of AUD 1,274). The sensilivity rate of 2% is regarded as
reasonable following the increase in global interest rates during the year and in the context of the current US
Fed Rate of 5.5%, the majority of the Company's cash being held in US Dollars.

The Company had no other material interest rate exposures at 30 September 2023 or at 30 September 2022,
The Company's Structured Deposit is interast-bearing, however it eamns interest at a fixed rate and is therefore
not subject to interest rate risk.

{c) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of an instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other
than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether caused by factors specific to an individual
investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all instruments traded in the market. The Company’s investments
at FVTPL are directly affected by changes in market prices.

Price risk is managed at inception by investing in a combination of financial instruments: a structured deposit,
that should provide capital protection for investors; and a holding of warrants on an index or basket of indices
that the investment advisor believes is most likely to provide positive performance during the life of the
Company. In order to provide capital protection, the amount of the Structured Deposit acquired is calculated
with the intention that the maturing amount of the Structured Deposit will be sufficient to guarantee that all
investors who remain in the Company to maturity will at minimum get back the amount that they invested. The
Warrants provide the potential for significant upside performance, should the relevant index or indices perform
well, with the downside limited to loss of the initial Warrants premium.

The investment premise of the Fund involves participation in the potential upside afforded by the Warrants,
whilst enjoying the capital protection afforded by the Structured Deposit. Therefore, whilst the Board monitors
the performance of the Warrants and Structured Deposit, it is unlikely that the Board would consider redeeming
these at any stage, other than in relation to the redemption of investors’ shares. As a result, the management
of price risk effectively occurs at the inception of the Fund in the selection of investments, and is not an active
ongoing process during the remainder of the life of the Fund.
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19.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK FACTORS {continued)
(i) Market risk (continued)

{c) Prica risk (continued)
The investments at FVTPL expose the Company to price risk, The details are as follows:

2023 2022

AUD AUD
Interest rate swap (embedded in the Structured Deposit) (616,997) (940,163}
Goldman Sachs Warrants 21,782,282 12,937,146

21,165,285 11,996,983

As at 30 September 2023 a 50 per cent increase/decrease in the value of the Warrants would
increasef/decrease the Net Asset Value of the Company by AUD 10,891,141 (2022: AUD 6,468,573). The
sensitivity rate of 50% is regarded as reasonable due to the potential volatility of European stock markets, to
which the Warrants are linked.

{li) Credit risk

Credit risk arises when a failure by counter-parties to discharge their obligations could reduce the amount of future
cash inflows from financial assets on hand at the year end dats. These financial assets include cash and cash
equivalents, long-term deposits, trade and other recelvables and investments at FVTPL. The Company’s exposure
to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying value or fair
value of these instruments.

The Company states in its Prospectus that it will invest in a Structured Deposit instrument provided by Investec
Bank Limited ('IBL') and an option-type investment linked to a specified index, and provides extensive disclosure
to shareholders of those instruments and the risks attached thereto. As a result of this, the Company’s policy for
managing the credit risk attached to the Company's financial assets is to monitor the credit rating of the relevant
counterparty for any significant deterioration, without reference to an absolute range of credit ratings. In the event
of there being any significant deterioration in the perceived creditworthiness of the counterparty to a point where
shareholders’ interest may be at risk, the Directors in their absolute discretion would consider the following
courses of action: selling the relevant securities to third party purchasers and reinvesting the proceeds in the
purchase of securities of another issuer, such that the new securities would replicate as closely as possible the
terms and conditions of the original securities; and transferring cash to another banking institution. At initial
recognition of the Structured Deposit and the Warrants, the Directors considered the credit risk attached to these
instrumants to be low, and this remains their view. The Directors would only seek to sell the relevant securities or
transfer cash if they (in consultation with the Investment Adviser) consider that such would be in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders.

In accordance with this policy, the Board and the investment advisor have noted that the Fitch long-term credit
rating of IBL as at 30 September 2023 was BB- (2022: BB-). As a result, the Directors and the Investment Adviser
believe that it is not in the best interest of shareholders to attempt to unwind the Structured Deposit prior to its
maturity date on 3 June 2024, as they believe firstly that there has been no significant deterioration in the
creditworthiness of IBL, and secondly that oblaining an alternative investment with an institution with a higher
credit rating could only be achieved on less favourable terms than those offered by the Structured Deposit, which
could affect the Company's ability to offer capital protection to shareholders on their investment.

The Company monitors the creditworthiness of its counterparties on an ongoing basis and considers a financial
asset to be in default when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 60 days of when they fall
due. No instances of default or significant changes to the Company's credit risk or expected loss rates have been
identified in the last 12 months.

The majority of the Company's trade and other receivables consists of prepayments and there is no credit risk
associated with these balances.
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19.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK FACTORS (continued)

(il) Credit risk (continued)

The bonds which underlie the Structured Deposit are held with Standard Bank Group Limited, which has a Fitch
long-term rating of BB- (2022: BB-).The investments at fair value through profit and loss are held with Goldman
Sachs and IBL, which have Fitch long-term ratings of A+ and BB- (2022: A+ and BB-) respectively. The cash and
cash equivalents are held with Investec Bank pic, which has a Fitch long term rating of BBB+ (2022: BBB+).

{lii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet financial liability obligations as they fall due,
which may cause financial losses to the Company. The Company places its cash and cash equivalents with
financial institutions on a short-term basis in order to maintain a high level of liquidity. This ensures that the
Company is able to complete transactions in a timely manner, thus minimising the Company’s exposure to such
losses.

The Board reviews the cash resources of the Company on an ongoing basis to ensure that sufficient cash and
cash equivalents are held to meet the Company's short-term obligations. At 30 September 2023 the Company
held cash and cash equivalents of AUD 187,912 {2022: AUD 1,243,781), which is considered by the Board as
sufficient to maaet all of the Company’s short-term obligations.

The following table analyses the Company's financial liabilities, which will be settled on a net basis, into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the balance sheet date to the contraclual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Less than 6
months €-12 months 1-5years
2023 AUD AUD AUD
Trade and other payables 20,865 33,209 -
Net exposure 20,865 33,209 -
Less than 6
months 6-12 months 1-5 years
2022 AUD AUD AUD
Trade and other payables 19,220 - 12,327
Net exposure 19,220 - 12,327

(iv) Fair value hierarchy
The following tables analyse instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

» Leve! 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

« Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (ie as prices) or indirectly ({ie derived from prices);

» Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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19.

20,

21,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK FACTORS (continued)
(iv) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AUD AUD AUD AUD
Investments at FVTPL - 21,782,282 - 21,782,282
Derivative at FVTPL - (616,997) - (616,997)
- 21,165,285 - 21,165,285
2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AUD AUD AUD AUD
Investments at FVTPL s 12,937,146 - 12,937,146
Derivative at FVTPL - (940,163) - (940,163}
- 11,996,983 - 11,996,983

There have been no transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy during the year.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s capital comprises the funds it has raised through the issue of share capital.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

In order to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going concern, the Board continuously monitors
forecast and actual cash flows and matches the maturity profiles of assets and liabilities. The Board has also
considered the impact of the war in Ukraine and conflict in the Middle East subsequent to the year end, and does
not believe that these will have a significant impact on the Company’s capital or its ability to continue as a going
concern. The Company has no external borrowings.

Shareholders may be able to redeem their Shares prior to the Redemption Date, however such redemptions are
wholly at the discretion of the Directors, and any request for redemption may be refused in whole or in part. No
early redemptions will be permitted unless the Directors are satisfied that they have complied with all applicable
law, including satisfaction of the solvency test as required by the Companies {Guernsey) Law, 2008. There have
been no changes to the Company's objectives or policies and procedures for managing capital since the previous
year end.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
There were no significant post balance sheet events requiring disclosure in these financial statements,
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THE COMPANIES (GUERNSEY) LAW 2008

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

of

CHINA SEAS BASKET LIMITED
Registered on 26 May 2010

{as amended and restated by special resolutions dated 18 March 2020 and 14 February 2024)

STANDARD ARTICLES

The standard articles of incorporation prescribed by the States of Guernsey Commerce and Employment
Department pursuant to Section 16{2} of the Law shall be excluded in their entirety.

INTERPRETATION

In these Articles the following words shall bear the following meanings if not inconsistent with the subject
or context:-

Words Meanings
“A Class Share” An ordinary share In the capltal of the Company of AUD 0.01 nominal

value designated as an A Class Share and having the rights reserved
under these Articles.

"accounts” Either individual accounts prepared in accordance with Section 243
of the Law or consolidated accounts prepared in accordance with
Section 244 of the Law.

"Administrator or Such designated person, firm or ¢corporation appointed for the time

Designated being and acting as administrator of the Company.

Administrator”

"Aricles” These Arlicles of Incorporation as amended or replaced from time to
time.

"at any time" At any time or times and includes for the time being and from time to
time.

"Auditor” The Auditor of the Company for the time being who shall be or include
members of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales.



"AuUD"

"B Class Share”

"Board"”

"Business Day"

“Call Date"

“Call Option”

"clear days™

"Closing Date"

"Company”

"Company's Funds”

"Debt Instruments”

“Debt Issuer”

"Diractor”

“dividend”

“executors"”

"EIS Price”

*Electronic Means"”

*Existing Issued Shares”

The lawful currency of Australia.

An ordinary share in the capital of the Company of USD 0.01 nominal
value designated as a B Class Share and having the rights reservad
under these Arlicles.

The Directors at any time or the Directors present at a duly convened
meeting of Directors at which a quorum is present.

Any day, other than a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday, on which
banks are normally open for full banking business in Guemsey.

The First Call Date and every quarterly date thereafter.

The Debt 1ssuer’s right to elect to redeem the Debt Instruments on the
Call Date.

In relation to a period of notice means that period excluding the day
when notice is given or deemed to be given and the day for which it
is given or on which it is to take effect.

The date stipulated in the applicable Prospectus as the closing date
for investments in respact of the applicable Investment Term.

China Seas Basket Limited.

The total subscription monies received from Investors on the
applicable Closing Date, fess all Front End Fees, plus the aggregate
EIS Price of the Existing Issued Shares retained by existing
Shareholders in the Company.

Unsecured, USD-denominated subordinated or senior debt
instruments issued by a Debt Issuer, which instruments may contain
a Call Option, as further described in the applicable Prospectus.

IBL or another debt Issuer to be selected by the Investment Adviser,
which debt issuer will have a long-term rating equal to or better than
IBL's rating.

A director of the Company for the time being or, as the case may be,
the directors assembled as a Board or committee of such Board.

Includes bonus.

Includes administrators.

The Fair Market Value per Share as reviewed by the Auditor on the
applicable Termination Date. Each new B Class Share shall be
issued at the EIS Price. Each new A Class Share shall be issued at

an amount that is the AUD equivalent of the EIS Price as calcufated
at the applicable Termination Date.

Shatl have the meaning ascribed to it by Law.

The issued Shares in the Company as at the date of the applicable
Prospectus.,



“Fair Market Value
per Share"

“FATCA"

"Financial Year”

“First Call Date”

"Front End Fee"

nIBLu

"Investment Adviser”

“Investment Term"

"Investor”

"Law"

“Liguidator”

"Management Share"

"Memorandum”
"month”

“QOffering”

The fair market value of each Share as determined by the Investment
Adviser on the first Business Day of each month (as reviewed by the
Auditor on the applicable Temmination Date or the liguidator on a
winding up) acting in good faith and in a fair and reasonable manner.

Sections 1471 te 1474 of the United States Internal Revenue Code of
1986, United States Treasury Regulations made thereunder, any
agreement relating thereto and any legislation or guidance
implemanting or relating to such agreement, including in each case
any amendments, modification, consolidation, re-enactment or
replacement thereof from time to time.

An accounting reference period of the Company,

The date that is 5 years after the issue date of the applicable Debt
Instruments.

An amount not exceeding 2% {(plus South African value added tax
where applicable) of the amount subscribed for per Investor pursuant
to this Prospectus as described in the Prospectus.

Investec Corporate and Institutional Banking, a division of Investec
Bank Limited, a company incorporated in the Republic of South Africa
{registration number 1969/004763/06)

The person or enlity appointed for the time being and acting as
investment adviser of the Company.

The 'Investment Period' as defined in the applicable Prospectus.

Any person who may potentially subscribe for Shares in the
Company, being a sophisticated or professional investor who can
afford to take a higher degree of risk, which may include the risk of
the loss of his entire investment, and who has extensive knowledge
and experience in financial and business matters and is capable of
evaluating the merits and risks associated with an investment in the
Company.

The Companies (Guemsey) Law 2008 as amended, extended or
replaced and any Ordinanca, statutory instrument or regulation made
thereunder.

Includes joint Liquidators.

A management share of AUD1.00 each having the rights described
in these Articles.

The Memorandum of Incorporation of the Company.

Calendar menth.

The offering of Shares in the Company in respect of the applicable
Investment Term, commencing on the Opening Date



“Office”

“Opening Date"

“Ordinary Resolution”

"Permitted Transferee"

"Prospectus”

"proxy”

"Redemption Date”

"Register”

"Relevant Electronic
Address”

"Seal”

"Secretary”

"share"

“Shares”

"Shareholder”

“Special Resolution”

"Tax
Reporting Regime”

The registered office of the Company.

Means the date specified in the Prospectus for the opening of an
Offering related to an Investment Term,

A resolution passed by a simple majority in accordance with Section
176 of the Law.

Any person other than a person in breach of any restrictions imposed
by or pursuant to Article 12.1.

Means the prospectus of the Company issued in relation to the
applicable Offering of its Shares and the listing of the Shares on the
Bermuda Stock Exchange, as amended from time to time.

Includes attorney.

The date that is § {five) Business Days after the applicable
Termination Date.

The register of Shareholders to be kept pursuant to the Law,

Shall have the meaning ascribed to it by Law.
The Commen Seal of the Company.

Any person appointed by the Directors to perform any of the duties
of Secretary of the Company (including a temporary or assistant
secrelary) and in the event of two or more persons being appointed
as joint secretaries any one or more of the persons so appointed.

A share of whatever description in the capital of the Company being
either a Share or a Management Share and having the rights
described in these Aricles,

Together the A Class Shares and B Class Shares and each a
"Share".

A person who is registered as the holder of Shares in the Register for
the time being kept by or on behalf of the Company.

A resolution passed by a majority of not less than 75% in accordance
with Section 178 of the Law,

Means FATCA, any intergovemmental agreement batwaen any two or
more jurisdictions {or government bodies thereof) and any legislation,
rules, regulations, and other guidance enacted or issued in any
jurisdiction in each case which seeks to imptemnent tax or financia
account information reporting andfor withholding tax regimes and all
administrative and judicial interpretations thereof or practice in
connection  therewith, including without limitation any
intergovermmental agreament entered into in connection with the
automatic exchange of tax information, the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development’'s Common Reporting Standard, the
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Council of the European Union's Directives 2011/16/EU or
2014M107/EU, and any legislation, rules, regulations, and other
guidance enacted or issued in any jurisdiction in connection with any
of the feregoing and all administrative and judicial interpretations
thereof or practice in connection therawith.

"Termination Date" Means, in relation to an Investment Term, either:
(i) the Call Date if the applicable Debt Instrument contains a
Call Option and the Debt Issuer exercises the Call Option in
accordance with the terms of the Debt Instrument; or

{ii) the maturity date of the applicable Debt Instruments if the
Debt Issuer did not exercise a Call Option in accordance
with it terms;

as the case may be,

"Trade Date" Any date that is no later than 20 Business Days after the applicable
Closing Date, being the date on which the Company will invest the
Company's Funds.

"Trust" The trust known as The Basket Trust constituted by a declaration of
trust dated 2 September 2009 and made by Praxis Trustees Limited
{registered number 16783).

“Unanimous A resolution agreed to by every Shareholder of the Company in
Resolution® accordance with Section 180 of the Law.

“usp/

"United States

Doltars” The lawful currency of the United States of America

“Waiver Resolution™ A resolution passed by a majority of not less than 90% in accordance

with Section 179 of the Law.

In these Articles unless there be something in the subject or context inconsistent with such construction:-
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words importing the singular number shall be deemed to include the plural number and vice
versa;

words importing the masculine gender only shall include the feminine gender,;

words imporling persons shall include companies or assoclations or bodies of persons, whether
corporate or not;

the words:-
(a) “may" shall be construad as permissive; and
(b} "shall" shall be construed as imperative;

any reference to a share shall, where the Board has resolved to allot and issue fractions of
shares, include such fractions.

words or expressions contained in these Articles shall bear the same meaning as in the Law and
The Interpretation (Guernsey) Law 1948; and



4.1

4.2
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2.2,7 where a Section of the Law is referred to and that Section is amended or renumbered or
supplemented, then the reference shall be deamed to refer to the same Seclion as amended,
renumbered or supplemented.

BUSINESS

Any branch or kind of business which by the Memorandum or by these Arlicles is either expressly or
impliedly authorised to be undertaken may be undertaken or suspended at any time by the Board whether
commenced or not.

SHARES

Save as specifically provided in these Articles, the Shares and the Management Shares shall rank parn
passu in all respects. The Management Shares were issued to and are held by the Trust or its nominees
and shall not be capable of being transferred except to the Trust or its nominees.

The holders of Management Shares shall have the following rights;
421 Dividends

The holders of Management Shares shall have no rights to receive nor participate in any distributions of
the Company, subject to Article 40.

422 Winding up

Subject to Articla 40, on a winding up and after satisfaction of the costs associated with the liquidation and
payment of all the creditors of the Company and after payment of the nominal amount of the Shares has
been paid to the Shareholders, the nominal value of the Management Shares shall be paid to the holders
of the Management Shares.

423 \Voting

(a) The holders of the Management Shares will hava the right to receive notice of and to
attend and to vote at any general meeting of the Company, subject to {b) and {c) below.
Each holder of a Management Share who is present in person or by proxy (or being a
corporation, by a duly authorised representative) at a genera! meeting will have on a
show of hands one vote and on a poll every such holder who Is present in person or by
proxy {or being a corporation, by a duly authorised representative) will have 10,000
votes in respect of each Management Share held by them.

{b} The Management Shares exist for the sole purpose of voting on purely administrative
matters at the Company's annual general meeting if there is no quorum of Shareholders
on such date, to enable the Company to function effectively.

(c) Prior to redemption of all the Shares, the holders of Management Shares can only vote
on Ordinary Resolutions relating t¢ administrative matters such as the appointment the
Auditor, approving the financial statements and the Direclors appointments. After the
redemption of all the Shares, holders of the Management Shares may vote on any
matters under Ordinary and Special Resolution.

424  Transfer

Tha Management Shares shall be issued to and held by the Trust or its nominees and shall not be capable
of being transferred except to the Trust or its nominees.

The Shareholders shall have the following rights:

431 Dividends
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4.5

46

4.7

4.8

4.9

The Shareholders are entitied to receive, and parlicipate in, any distributions that are resolved to be
distributed in respect of any financial year or other income or right to participate therain,

432 Winding up
Subject to Article 40, on a winding up and afier satisfaction of the costs associated with the liquidation and

payment of all the creditors of the Company, the nominal value of the Shares shall be paid to the
Shareholders. After payment of the nominal amount of the Management Shares has been paid to the

" holders of the Management Shares, the Shareholders shall be entitled to any surplus.

433 Voting

The Shareholders will have the right 1o receive notice of and to attend and to vote at any general meeting
of the Company. Each holder of a Share who is present in person or by proxy (or being a corporation, by
a duly authorised representative) at a general meeting will have on a show of hands one vote and on a
pall every such holder who is present in parson or by proxy (or being a corporation, by a duly authorised
rapresentative} will have one vote in respect of each Share held by them.

Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Company may at the discretion of the Board purchase any of its
own shares (including redeemable shares) in any manner permitied by the Law. Shares repurchased by
the Company may be cancelled or held as treasury shares and dealt with by the Directors to the fullest
extent permitted by the Law.

Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Company may at the discretion of the Board give financial
assistance directly or indirecily for the purpose of or in connection with the acquisition of shares in the
Company or in connection with reducing or discharging any liability incurred in connection with the
purchase of shares in the Company.

Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Company may convert all or any of its fully paid shares the
nominal amount of which is expressed in a particular currency into fully paid shares of a nominal amount
of a different currency, the conversion being effected at the rate of exchange (calculated to not less than
three significant figures} current on the date of the resolution or on such other date as may be specified
therein.

The rights attached to A Class Shares and B Class Shares shall be identical and the rights of the Shares
may only be altered, abrogated or varied with the consent in writing of the holders of not less than three-
fourths of the Issued Shares of both classes or with the sanction of a Special Resolution of the holders of
the Shares of both classes. To any separate general meeting of a class the provisions of these Articles
relating to general meetings shall apply but so that the necessary quorum shall be:

4.7.1 for a meeting other than an adjourned mesting, two persons present in person or by proxy holding
at least one-third of the voting rights of the class in question;

4.7.2 for an adjourned meeting, one persen present holding shares of the class In question; or

4.7.3  where the class has only one shareholder, that shareholder,

and that any holder of shares of that class present in person or by proxy may demand a poll.

Subject to the Law and the provisions of these Articles, the unissued shares shall be al the disposal of
the Board which may allot, grant options over, or otherwise dispose of them to such persons on such
terms and conditions and at such times as the Board determines. Fractions of shares may be issued or

purchased by the Company.

Where an authorisation to issue shares or grant rights to subscribe for or to convert any security into
shares specifies and expires on any date, event or circumstance. the Directors may issue shares or grant
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5.1

5.2

53

5.4

6.1

6.2

6.3

rights to subscribe for or to convert any security into shares after the expiry of such authorisation if the
shares are issued or the rights are granted, in pursuance of an offer or agreement made by the Company
befere the authorisation expired and the authorisation allowed the Company to make an offer or
agreement which would or might require shares to be issued, or rights to be granted, after the authorisation
had axpired.

The Company may pay commission in money to any person in consideration of his subscribing or agreeing
to subscribe whether absolutely or conditicnally for any shares in the Company or procuring or agreeing
to procure subscriptions whether absolute or conditional for any shares in the Company PROVIDED THAT
the rate or amount of commission shall be fixed by the Board and disclosed in accordance with the Law.
The Company may also pay brokerages.

REDEMPTION OF SHARES PRIOR TO THE REDEMPTION DATE

Priar to the applicable Redemption Date there is no entitement in favour of the Shareholders to have their
Shares redeemed by the Company. Redemptions are wholly at the discration of the Directors and any
request for redemptions may be refused in whole or in part at the discretion of the Directors.

Redemption requests should be made in the manner set out in the Prospectus and are subject to the
terms and conditions applying to redemptions as set out in the Prospectus (including, in particular, the
redemption policy).

No redemption prior to the applicable Redemption Date will be considered by the Directors, where:

5.3.1 such redemption would or might leave the Company with insufficient funds to meet any future
contemplated obligaticns or contingencies; or

53.2 such redemption would render the Company insolvent; or

53.3 such redemption may in the opinion of the Directors be prejudicial to the Company or other
Sharsholders.

All redemptions of Shares prior to the applicable Redemption Date will be subject to a seftlement and
registration fee of up to 1.25% of the total value of the applicable transaction of which 0.75% is payable
to and for the account of the Investment Adviser and 0.5% of the total value of the applicable transaction
is payable to and for the account of the Administrator. This fee will be deducted by the Administratar from
the redemption proceeds due to the applicable Shareholder.

REDEMPTION ON A REDEMPTION DATE

Prior to the applicable Redemption Dale, and subject to the Debt Issuer or any relevant counterparty(ies)
having fulfilled its/their repayment abligations to the Company as described in the applicable Prospectus,
the Company shall make an offer to each Shareholder in terms of which each Shareholder may elect to
remain a Shareholder in the Company for a subsequent Investiment Term. To be valid such acceptance
must be made on such terms and by such date as the Directors shall determine, save that, the Company
shall not be obliged to make an offer to Shareholders to remain a Shareholder in the Company if the
Diractors, acting on advice from the Investment Adviser, are of the view that a subsequent Investmant
Term is not desirable because of market conditions or legal constraints.

On the applicable Redemption Date, and subject to the Debt Issuer or any relevant counterparty(ies)
having fulfiied its/their repayment obligations to the Company as described in the Prospectus, the
Company shall be obliged to redeem Shares to the extent that the holders of the Existing Issued Shares
have elected not to remain a Shareholder in the Company and payment shali be effected by the
Administrator to the relevant Shareholder no later than 10 Business Days after the applicable
Redemption Date.

The redemption price shall be determined by the Investment Adviser, acting in good faith and in a fair and
reasonable manner {as reviewed by the Auditor on the Termination Date or the liquidator on a winding
up), which price shall represent the Fair Market Value per Share.
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No settlement and registration fees will be payable in respect of redemptions effected on a Redemption
Date. The Administrator will pay the redemption proceeds to the relevant Shareholder, by no later than
10 Business Days after the Redemption Date, by electronic transfer into an account in the name of the
relevant Shareholder.

In the event that the redemption proceads cannot for any reason be paid to the relevant Sharseholder by
telegraphic transfer within 10 Business Days after the Redemption Date, the money will be transferred to
the Trust which will hold it until claimed by the relevant Shareholder or unlil three years after the
Redemption Date, whichever is the earlier, and if not claimed by the relevant Shareholder on such date,
then it will be paid to a registered charitable institution in Guemnsey.

INTERESTS IN SHARES

Without prejudice to Part XXIX of the Law, except as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or as
requirad by law the Company shall not be affected or bound by or be compelled in any way to recognise
(even when having nolice)} any equitable, contingent, future or partial interest in any share or fraction or
(except only as by these Arlicles or by law otherwise provided) any other rights in respect of any share
excepl an absolute right to the entirety in the registered halder and whether or not such share shall be
enterad in the Register as held in trust nor shall the Company be bound to see to the execution of any
trust to which any share may be subject.

The Board shall have power by notice in writing to require any Shareholder to disclose to the Company
the identity of any person athar than the Shareholder (an interested party) who has any interest in the
shares held by the Shareholder and the nature of such interest.

Any such notice shall require any information in response to such notice to be given in writing within such
reasonable time as the Board shall determine.

If any Shareholder has baan duly served with a notice given by the Board in accordance with Article 7.2
and is in default for the prescribed period (which is 28 clear days after service of the notice} in supplying
to the Company the information thereby required, then the Board may in its absolute discretion at any
time thereafter serve or catise to be served a notice (a "direction notice") upon such Shareholder which:-

7.4.1 may direct that, in respect of:-

{a) any shares in relation to which the default occurred (all or the relevant number as
appropriate of such shares being the "default shares"), and

(b) any other shares held by the Shareholder;

the Shareholder shall not be entitled 1o vote at a general meeting or meating of the holders of

any class of shares of the Company either persenally or by proxy to exercise any other right

conferred by those shares in relation to mestings of the Company or of the holders of any class
of shares of the Company; and
7.4.2  may additionally direct that in respect of the default shares:-

(a) any dividend or part thereof which would otherwise be payable on such shares shall be
retained by the Company without any liability to pay interest thereon when such money
is finally paid to the Shareholder;

{b) no transfer of the default sharas held by such Shareholder shall be registered unless:-

] the Shareholder is not himself in default as regards supplying the information
requested; and

10
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(i) when presented for registration the transfer is accompanied by a certificate by
the Shareholder in a form satisfactory to the Directors to the effect that after
due and careful enquiry the Shareholder is satisfied that no person in default
as regards supplying such information is interested in any of the shares the
subject of the transfer.

The Company shall send to each other person appearing to be interested in the shares the
subject of any direction nolice a copy of the notice, but failure or omission by the Company to do
so shall not invalidate such notice.

CERTIFICATES AND JOINT OWNERSHIP
The Company does not issue certificates in respect of the shares in the Company.

The Company shall not be bound to register more than four persons as the joint holders of any share or
shares.

Where two or more persons are registered as the holders of any share they shall be deemed to hold that
shara as joint tenants, subject to the following provisions:-

8.3.1 thejoint holders of any share shall be jointly and severally liable for all amounts payable in respect
of that share;

8.3.2 any joint holder of a share may give an effectual receipt for any dividend or return of capital
payable on that share to the joint holders of the share;

8.3.3 only the first named joint holder of any share shall be entitled to receive notices from the
Company lo attend any general meeting and any notice given to the first-named joint holder of
the share shall be deemed to be nofice given ta all joint-holders of the share,

834 the vote of the first-named joint holder of a share who tenders a vote, whather in person or by
proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders of the share; and

8.3.5 for the purpose of this Article the first-named Joint holder shall be the person whose name first
appears in the Register in respect of the share.

LIEN

The Company shall have a first and paramount lien (extending to all dividends payable) on all shares {not
belng fully paid} for all moneys whether presently payable or not called or payable at a fixed time in respect
of those shares and for all the debts and liabilities of the holder to the Company and that whether the
same shall have been incurred before or after notice to the Company of any equitable or other interest of
any person {other than such holder) and whether the time for payment or discharge shall have arived or
not and notwithstanding that the same are joint debts or liabilities of such holder and any other person
{whether a Sharsholder or not).

For the purpose of enforcing such lien the Company may sell, in such manner as the Directors think fit,
any sharas on which the Company has a lien, but no sale shall be made unless some sum in respact of
which the lien exists is presently payable, nor until the expiration of fourteen clear days after a notice in
writing, stating and demanding payment of the sum presently payable, and giving notice of intention to
sell in default, shall have bsen served on the holder for the time being of the shares or the person entitled
by reason of his death or bankruptcy to the shares. For the purpose of giving effact to any such sale the
Directors may authorise some person to transfer to the purchaser thereof the shares so sold.

The net proceeds of such sale, after payment of the costs of such sale, shall be applied in or towards

payment or satisfaction of the debt or liability in respect whereof the lien exists, so far as the same is
presently payable and any residue shall {upon surrender to the Company for cancellaticn of the certificate

1
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for the shares sold and subject to a like lien for debts or liabilities not presently payable as existed upon
the shares prior to the sale)} be paid to the person entitled to the shares at the time of the sale, The
purchaser shall be registared as the holder of the shares so transferred and he shall not be bound to see
to the application of the purchase money, nor shall his title to the shares be affected by any iregularity or
invalidity in the proceadings in relation to the sale.

CALLS ON SHARES

The Board may at any time make calls upon the Shareholders in respect of any moneys unpaid on their
shares (whether on account of the nominal value or by way of premium and not by the conditions of
allotment made payable at fixed times} and each Shareholder shall pay to the Company at the time and
place appointed the amount called. A call may be revoked or postponed in whole or in part. A call may be
raquired to be made by instalments, A person on whom a call is made shali remain liable for calls made
upen him notwithstanding the subsequent transfer of the shares in respect of which the call was made.

Joint holders shall be jointly and severally liable to pay calls,

If a sum called in respect of a share is not paid before or on the day appointed the person from whom the
sum is due shall pay interest from the day appointed to the time of actual payment at such rate as the
Board may determine.

Any sum which by the terms of issue of a share becomes payable on allotment or at any fixed date shall
for the purposes of these Articles be deemad to be a call duly made and payable on the date on which by
the terms of issue the same becomes payable and in the case of non-payment all the relevant provisions
of these Articles as to payment of interest and expenses forfeiture or otherwise shall apply as if such sum
had become payable by virtue of a call duly made and notified.

The Directors may, if they think fit, receive from any Shareholder willing to advance the same all or any
part of the money uncalled and unpaid upon the shares held by him beyond the sums actually called up
thereon as paymant in advance of calls, and such payment in advance of calls shall extinguish, so far as
the same shall extend, the liability upon the shares in respect of which it is advanced, and upon the money
so recaived or so much thereof as from time o time exceeds the amount of the calls then made upon the
shares in respect of which it has been received, the Company may {(until the same would, but for such
advance, become presently payable) pay interest at such rate as the Shareholder paying such sum and
the Directors agree upon PROVIDED THAT any amount paid up in advance of calls shall not entitle the
holder of the shares upon which such amount is paid to participate in respect thereof in any dividend until
the same would but for such advance become presently payable,

The Board may on an issue of shares differentiate between holders as to amount of calls and times of
payment.

FORFEITURE AND SURRENDER OF SHARES

If a Shareholder fails to pay any call or instalment on the day appointed the Board may at any time during
such period as any pant remains unpaid serve notice requiring payment of so much of the call or instalment
as is unpaid together with any interest which may have accrued and any expenses which may have been
incurred by the Company by reason of non-payment.

The notice shall state a further day on or before which the payment required by the notice is to be made
and the place where the payment is to be made and that in the event of non-payment the shares in respect
of which the call was made or instalment is payable shall be liable to be forfeited. If the requirements of
any such notice are not complied with any share in respact of which the notice has been given may at any
time before payment has been made be forfeited by a resclution of the Board to that effect. Such forfeiture
shall include alt dividends declared in respect of the forfeited share and not actually paid before the
forfeiture.
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Notice of forfeiture shall forthwith be given to the former halder and an entry of such natice and forfeiture
shall forthwith be made and dated in the Register opposite the entry of the share; but no forfeiture shall
be in any manner invalidated by any omission or neglect to give notice or to make entry.

A forfeited share shall be deemed to be the property of the Company and may be sold re-allotted or
otherwise disposed of on such terms as the Board shall think fit with or without all or any part of the amount
previously paid on the share being credited as paid and at any time before a sale or disposition the
forfeiture may be cancelled.

A person whose shares have been forfeited shall cease to be a Shareholder in respect of those shares
but shall notwithstanding remain liable to pay to the Company all moneys which at the date of forfeiture
were payable in respect of the shares with interest at such rate as the Board may determine. The Board
may enfarce paymant without any allowance for the value of the shares at the time of forfeiture or for any
consideration received on their disposal.

The forfeiture of a share shall extinguish all interest in and al! claims and demands against the Company
in respect of the share and all other rights and liabilities incidental to the share as between the holder and
the Company.

The Board may accept from any Shareholder on such terms as shall be agreed a surrender of any shares
in respect of which there is a liability for calls. Any surrendered share may be disposed of in the same
manner as a forfeited share.

A declaration in writing by a Director or the Secretary that a share has been duly forfeited or surrendared
an the date stated in the declaration shall be conclusive evidence of the facts therein as against all persons
claiming to be entitled to the shares.

The Company may receive the consideration given for any share on any sale or disposition and may
execute a transfer of the share in favour of the person to whom the same is sold or disposed of and he
shall thereupon be registered as the holder and shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase
money nor shall his title be affected by any irregularity or invalidity in forfeiture sale re-allotment or
disposal.

COMPULSORY TRANSFER OR REPURCHASE OF SHARES

The Board shall have power (but shall not be under any duty) to impose such restrictions as it may think
necessary for the purpose of ensuring that no share is acquired or held by:-

12.1.1 any US person cther than pursuant to an exemption available under the United States Securities
Act of 1933, as amended (the "1933 Act") and any other relevant securities law of the United
States; or

12.1.2 any person whose holding of shares would or might result in the Company having more than 80
beneficial owners of shares (whether directly or by attribution pursuant to Section 3 (c}{1){A} of
the United States Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the "Investment Company
Act™) who are US persons or any person whose holding would require the Company to register
as an "investment company” under the Investment Company Act; or

12.1.3 any person subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended or
Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended; or

12.1.4 any person in breach of any law or requirement of any country or governmental authority or by
virtue of which such person is not qualified o hold such shares or any money laundering
regulations; or

12.1.5 any person or persons in circumstances which (whether directly or indirectly affecting such

person or persons and whether taken alone or in conjunction with any other person or persons
connected or not, or any other circumstances appearing to the Board to be relevant), in the

13
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opinion of the Board, might cause or be likely lo cause the Company or Shareholders as a whole
some legal, regulatory, pecuniary, tax or material administrative disadvantage which the
Company or Shareholders might not otherwise have incurred or suffered; or

12.1.6 any person where the total subscription monies, received in relation to the subscription for
Shares, from such investor does not amount to at least the amount stipulated in the applicable
Prospectus on the applicable Closing Date, however the Directors may at their sole discretion
accept a subscription amount which is less than the stipulated subscription amount; or

12.1.7 any person whose holdings of shares would or might result in a South African resident holding
5% or more of the issued shares in the Company,

In this connection, the Board may: (i) reject in its discretion any subscription for shares or any transfer of
shares to any persons who are so excluded from purchasing or holding shares; and {ji) pursuant to Article
12.4 below at any time repurchase or require the transfer of shares held by persons who are so excluded
from purchasing or holding shares.

For this purpose the terms "US person™ and "United States” as used herein shall have the meanings
ascribed such terms in Section 902 (g) of Regulation S under the 1933 Acl.

The Board shall, unless any Director has reason tc believe otherwise, be entitled tc assume without
enquiry that none of the shares is held in such a way as to entille the Board to give a notice in respect
thereof pursuant to Article 12.4.1 below. The Board may, however, upon an application for shares or at
any other time and from time to time require such evidence and/or undertakings to be fumished to it in
connection with the matters stated in Article 12,1 above as it shall in its discretion deem sufficient or as it
may require for the purpose of any restriction imposed pursuant thereto. In the event of such evidence
and/or undertakings not being so provided within such reasonable period (not being less than 21 clear
days after service of notice requiring the same) as may be specified by the Board in the said notice, the
Beoard may, in its absolute discretion, treat any shares held by such a holder or joint holder as being held
in such a way as to entitle them to give a notice in raspect thaereof pursuant to Article 12.4.1 betow.

12.4.1 If it comes to the notice of the Board that any shares are or may be owned or held directly or
indirectly or beneficially by any person or persons in breach of any restrictions imposed under
Article 12.1 above or who have failed to provide or keep up-lodate the information,
reprasentations, certificates or forms referred to in Article 12.4.6 below (the "Relevant shares™),
the Board may give notice to the person or persons in whose names the Relevant shares are
registered requiring him to transfer (and/or procure the disposal of interests in) the Relevant
shares to a person who Is in the opinion of the Board a person who is eligible to hold them, and/or
has provided or will provide the information, representations, certificates or forms referred to in
Article 12.4.6 below, or (in the Board's discretion) to give notice in writing accepting the
repurchase of the Relevant shares in accordance with these Articles. If any person upon whom
such a notice is served pursuant to this Article 12.4.1 does not within 21 clear days after the
giving of such notice (or such extended time as the Board in its absolute discretion shall consider
reasonable)} transfer the Relevant shares to a person who is eligible io hold them or (as
appropriate) give notice as to the repurchase of the Relevant shares or establish to the
satisfaction of the Board {whose judgement shall be final and binding) that he is not subject to
such restrictions, or, as the case may be, provide to the satisfaction of the Board (whose
judgement shall ba final and binding) the information, representations, cerificates or forms
referred to in Article 12.4.6 below, the Board may in its absolute discretion upon the expiration of
such 21 clear days arrange for the repurchase of all the Relevant shares or arrange and approve
the transfer of all the Relevant shares to a person who is eligible to hold them(and/or has provided
or will provide the information, representations, certificates or forms referred to in Article 12.4.6
below} in accordance with Article 12.4.3 below and the holder of the Relevant shares shall be
bound forthwith to deliver his share certificate or certificates (if any) to the Board and the Board
shall be entitled to appoint any person to sign on his behalf such documents as may be required
for the purpose of the repurchase or transfer of the Relevant shares by the Company.

14
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A person who becomes aware that he is holding or owning Relevant shares shall forthwith unless
he has already received a notice pursuant to Article 12.4.1 above either transfer all his Relevant
shares 1o a person who is eligible to hold them or give a request in writing for the repurchase of
all his Relevant shares in accordance with these Articles.

A transfer of Relevant shares arranged by the Board pursuant to Article 12.4.1 above shall be by
way of sale at the best price reasonably obtainable and may be of all or part only of the Relevant
shares with a balance avallable for repurchase or transfer to other persons who are eligible to
hold them, Any payment received by the Company for the Relevant shares so transferred shall
be paid to the person whose shares have been so transferred subject to Aricle 12.4.4 below.

Payment of any amount due to such person pursuant to Articles 12.4.1, 12.4.2 or 12.4.3 above
shall be subject to any requisite exchange control consents first having been obtained and the
amount due to such person shall be deposited by the Company in a bank for payment to such
person upon such consents being obtained against surrender of the shares previously held by
such person. Upon deposit of such amount as aforesaid such person shall have no further
interest in such shares or any of them or any claim against the Company in respect thereof except
the right to receive such amount so deposited (without interest) upon such consents as aforesaid
being obtained. Payment of any amount due to such person pursuant to Articles 12.4.1, 12.4.2
or 12.4.3 above shall also be subject to any withholding or deduction under any Tax Reporting
Regime.

The Board shall not be required to give any decisions, determination or declaration taken or made
in accordance with these provisions. The exercise of the powers conferred by these provisions
shall not be questioned or invalidated in any case on the grounds that there was insufficient
evidence of direct or beneficial ownership of shares by any parsons or that the trus, direct or
beneficial owner of any shares was otherwise than appeared to the Board at the relevant date
PROVIDED THAT the powers shall be exercised in good faith.

The Board may upon an application for Shares or at any other time and from time to time call
upon any Shareholder {or any person who may acquire or hold Shares) by notice in writing to
provide the Board with such information, representations, certificates or forms relating to such
Shareholder or such person (or in either case its direct or indirect beneficial owners or account
holders) that the Board determinses are necessary or appropriate for the Company to:

(a) satisfy any account or payee identification, documentation or other due diligence
requirements and any reporting requirements imposed under any Tax Reporting
Regime; or

(b) avoid or reduce any tax otherwise imposed by any Tax Reporting Regime (including
any withholding upon any paymenis to such Shareholder or such person by the
Company); or

{c) permit the Company to enter into, comply with, or prevent a default under or termination
of, an agreement of the type described In section 1471(b) of the US Internal Revenue
Code of 1986 or any Tax Reporting Regime.

In this connection, the Board may: (i) reject in its discretion any subscription for Shares or any
transfor of Shares to any person who does not comply with a notice referred to in Article 12.4.6
above; and (ii) in the event of such information, representations, certificates or forms not being
provided within such reasonable period (not being less than 21 days afler service of notice
requiring the same} as may be specified by the Boand in a notice referred to in Article 12.4.6
above, the Board may, in its absolute discretion, pursuant to the provisions of this Article 12.4
repurchase or require the transfer of Shares held by person who do not comply with such notice.
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12.4.8 Each Shareholder shall promptly notify the Company upon any change in circumstances that
could affect the accuracy or correctness of the information, representations, documents,
certifications or forms provided pursuant to Article 12.4.6.

TRANSFER AND TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

All transfers of shares may be effected by transfer in writing in any form as the Board may accept
PROVIDED THAT any such Instrument of transfer shall state the transferors” and transferess’ full names
and addresses and where deemed necassary by the Board their nationalities. Any instrument of transfer
shalt be dated upon execution and shall be signed by or on behalf of the transferor who shall be deemed
to remain the holder until the name of the transferes is entered in the Register.

Every instrument of transfer shall be left at the Office or such other place as the Board may prescribe and
such other evidence as the Board may reasonably require to prove the title of the transferor or his right to
transfer the shares; and shall remain in the custody of the Board but shall be at all reasonable times
produced at the request and expense of the transferor or transferee or their respective representatives.

The Board may, in its absolute discretion and without giving a reason, refuse to register a transfer of any
share which is not fully paid or on which the Company has a lien, provided, in the case of a listed share
that this would not prevent dealings in the share from taking place on an epen and proper basis, In
addition, the directors may refuse to register a transfer of shares which is prohibited by a direction notice
given by the Board in accordance with Aricle 7.4 and may also refuse 1o register a transfer of shares
unless:-

13.3.1 itis in favour of a Pemnitted Transferee;

13.3.2 itis in favour of a single transferee or in the case of a transfer to joint holders the number of joint
holders to whom the share is to be transferred does not exceed four; and

13.3.3 it is delivered for registration to the Company's Office or such other place as the Board may
decide, accompanied by such other evidence as the Board may reasonably require to prove title
of the transferor and the due execution by him of the fransfer or, if the transfer is executed by
some other person on his behalf, the authority of that person to do so.

If the Board refuses to register the transfer of a share it shall, within two months afier the date on which
the instrument of transfer was lodged with the Company, send notice of the rafusal to the transferor and
the transferee.

The registration of transfers may be suspended at such times and for such periods (hot exceeding 30
days in any cne year) as the Board may decide and gither generally or in respect of a particular class of
share.

No fee shall be payable to the Company in respect of the registration of any transfer, probate, letters of
administration, certificate of marriage or death, power of attorney, instruction or other document relating
to or affacting the title to any shares.

The Company shall keep the Register in accordance with the Law. The Register may be closed during
such periods as the Board think fit not exceeding in all thirty days in any year.

On the death of a Shareholder the survivors where the deceased was a joint holder and the executors of
the deceasad where he was a sole holder shall be the only persons recognised by the Company as having
any title to or interest in his shares; but nothing herein shall release the estate of a deceased joint holder
from any liability in respect of any share jointly held.

A person $0 becoming enlited to a share in consequence of the death, bankruptey or incapacity of a
Shareholder shall have the right to receive and may give a discharge for all dividends and other money
payable or other advantages due on or in respect of the share, but he shall not be entitled to receive notice
of or to attend or vote at meetings of the Company, or save as aforesaid, to any of the rights or privileges
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of a Shareholder unless and until he shall be registered as a Shareholder in respect of the share
PROVIDED ALWAYS that the Board may at any time give notice requiring any such person to elect either
to be registered himself or to transfer the share and if the notice is not complied with within ninety clear
days the Board may thereafter withhold all dividends or other monies payable or other advantages due in
respact of the share until the requirements of the notice have been complied with.

ALTERATION OF CAPITAL
The Company may by Ordinary Resolution:-

14.2 consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of larger amounts than its existing
shares;

14.3 subject to Article 14.7 below, subdivide all or any of its shares into shares of a smaller amount
provided that the proportion between the amount paid and the amount, if any, unpaid on each
reduced shara shall be the same as that proportion in the case of the share from which the
reduced share was derived;

14.4 cancel shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not been taken up or
agreed to be taken up by any person, and diminish the amount of its share capital by the amount
of the shares so cancelled;

14.5 convert all or any of its shares the nominal amount of which is expressed in a parlicular currency
or former currency into shares of a nominal ameunt of a different currency, the conversion being
effected at the rate of exchange {(calculated to not less than 3 significant figures) current on the
date of the resolution or on such other day as may be specified therein;

14.6 where its share capital is expressed in a parlicular currency or former currency, denominate or
redenominate it, whether by expressing its amount in units or subdivisions of that currency or
former currency, or otherwise.

In any subdivision under Article 14.3, the proportion between the amount paid and the amount, if any,
unpaid on each reduced Share shall be the same as that proportion in the case of the Share from which
the reduced Share was derived.

The Board on any consolidation of Shares may deal with fractions of Shares in any manner.

The Company may reduce its share capital in any manner and with and subject to any incident authorised
and consent required by the Law.

GENERAL MEETINGS

Save as provided in the Law, an annual general meeting shall be held once at least in every calendar
year but so that not more than 15 months may elapse between one annual general meeting and the next,
Other mesetings of the Company shall be called extraordinary general meetings. General mestings shall
be held in Guemnsey.

A Shareholder participating by video link or telephone conference call or other electronic or telephonic
means of communication in a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be treated as having attended
that meeting PROVIDED THAT the Shareholders present at the meeting can hear and speak to the
participating Shareholder.

A video link or telephone conference call or other electronic or telephonic means of communication in
which a quorum of Shareholders participates and all participanis can hear and speak to each other shall
be a valid meeting which shall be deemed to take place where the Chair is present unless the
Shareholders resclve otherwise,

17



15.4

15.5

15.6

15.7

15.8

16

16.1

16.2

16.3

17

171

Any genaral meeting convened by the Board unless its time shall have been fixed by the Company in
general meeling or unless convened in pursuance of a requisition may be postponed by the Board by
notice in writing and the meeting shall subject to any further posiponement or adjournment be held at the
postponed date for the purpase of transacting the business covered by the original notice.

The Board may whenever it thinks fit and shall on the requisition in writing of one or more holders
raprasenting not less than one-tenth of the issued share capital of the Company upon which all calls or
other sums then due have been paid forthwith proceed to convene an extraordinary general meeting.

The requisition shall be dated and shall state the abject of the meeting and shall be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at the Office and may consist of several decuments in like form each signed
by one or more of the requisitionists.

If the Board does not proceed to call a general meeting within twenty-one days from the date of the
requisition being so deposited to be held within 28 days after the date of the notice convening the meeting,
the raquisitionists or any of them reprasenting more than one half of the total voting rights of the
reguisitionists may themselves convene the meeting.

Any meeting convened by requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner (as nearly as possible)
as that in which meetings are convened by the Board.

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS

Not less than ten clear days' notice specifying the time and place of an annual general mesting and not
less than fourteen clear days' notice in respect of any other general meeting shall be given by nofice
{which may be published on a website in accordance with Section 208 of the Law) to every Shareholder
and every Director PROVIDED THAT with the consent in writing of all the Shareholders entitled to attend
and vote, the meeting may be convened by a shorter notice or at no notice and in any manner they think
fit. In every notice there shall appear:

16.1.1 the time and date of the meeting;
16.1.2 the place of the meeting;
16.1.3 a statement of the general nature of the business to be deatt with at the meeting;

16.1.4 where the notice contains a resolution to ba passed as a Special Resolution, a Waiver Resolution
or an Unanimous Resolution, the text of the resolution and the intention to propose the resolution
as a special, waiver or Unanimous Resoclution {as the case may be).

16.1.5 contain a statement that the Shareholder who is entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint
one or more proxies to attend and vole instead of him and that a proxy need not be a Shareholder.

The accidental omission to give notice of any meeting io or the non-receipt of such notice by any
Shareholder shall not invalidate any resolution (or any proposed resolution otherwise duly approved)
passed or proceeding at any meeting.

All Shareholders are deemed to have agreed to accept communications from the Company by Electronic
Means in accordance with Article 38.2,

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

The ordinary business of a general meeting shall be to receive and consider the financial statements of
the Company and the reports of the Directors and the Auditor to elect Directors and appoint the Auditor
in the place of those retiring to fix the remuneration of the Auditor to sanction or declare dividends (if
required by these Articles) and to transact any other ordinary business which ought to be transacted at
such meeting, Al other business shall be deemed special and shall be subject to nofice as hereinbefore
provided.
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The quorum for a general meeting shall be two (2} Sharsholders present in person or by proxy, at least
one of whom shall be the holder of a Management Share provided that, if the Company shall have only
one (1) Shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the general meeting, that Shareholder shall constitute
a quorum.

If within half an hour after the time appointed for the meeting a quorum is not present the meeting if
convened by or upon a requisition shall be dissolved. If otherwise convened it shall stand adjoumed for
seven clear days at the same time and place or to such other day and at such other time and place as the
Board may determine and (subject to Article 17.3) no notice of adjoumment need be given. On the
resumption of an adjourned meaeting, those Shareholders entitlad to attend and vote prasent in person or
by proxy shall constitute the guorum.

The Chair (if any) or, if absent, the Deputy Chair (if any) of the Board or, failing him, some other Director
nominated by the Directors shall preside as Chair at every general meesting of the Company, but if at any
meeting none of the Chair nor the Deputy Chair nor such other Director be present within fifteen minutes
after the time appointed for holding the meeting, or if none of them be willing to act as Chair, the Directors
present shall choose some Director present to be Chair, or if no Directors be present, or if all the Directors
present decline to take the chair the Shareholders entitled to attend and vote present in person or by proxy
shall choose some Shareholder present to be Chair.

The Chair may with the consent of any meeting at which a quorum is present and shall If so directed by
the meeting adjourn the meeting at any time and to any place but no business shall be transacted at any
adjoumned meeting other than tha business left unfinished at the meeting from which the adjournment took
place. When a meeting is adjoumed for thirty days or more notice of the adjoumed meeting shall be given
as in the case of an original meeting. Save as aforesald it shall not be necessary to give any notice of an
adjournment or of the business to be transacted at an adjoumed meeting.

At any meating a resolution put to the vote shall be decided by a show of hands or by a poll at the option
of the Chair. Nevertheless before or on the declaration of the result a poll may be demandad:-

17.6.1 Dby the Chair; or
17.6.2 a holder of a Management Share: or
17.6.3 by not less than five (5) Shareholders having the right to vote on the resolution; or

17.6.4 by a Shareholder or Shareholders representing not less than ten (10} percent of the total voting
rights of all Shareholders having the right to vote on the resolution.

The demand for a poll may be withdrawn.

Unless a poll be demanded a declaration by the Chair that a resclution has on a show of hands been
carried or carried unanimously or by a particular majority or lost and an entry to that effect in the minute
book shall be conclusive evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of the votes
recorded.

A poll if demanded shall be taken at the mesting at which the same is demanded or at such other time
and place as the Chair shall direct and the result shall be deemed the resclution of the meeting.

If a poll is duly demanded, it shall be taken in such manner and at such place as the Chair may direct
(including the use of ballot or voting papers or tickets) and the result of a poll shall be deemed to be the
resolution of the meeting at which the poll was demanded. The Chair may, in the event of a poll appoint
scrutineers and may adjourn the meeting to some place and time fixed by him for the purpose of declaring
the result of the poll.

A poll demanded on the election of a Chair and a poll demanded on a question of adjournment shall be
taken forthwith. A poll demanded on any other question shall be taken at such time and place as the Chair
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directs not being more than thirty days from the date of the meeting or adjoumed meeting at which the
poil was demanded.

In case of an equality of voies on a show of hands or on a poll the Chair shall have a second or casting
vota.

VOTES OF SHAREHOLDERS

Save as otherwise provided in these Articles and subject to any special rights or restrictions for the time
being attached to any class of share:-

18.1.1 On a show of hands every holder of a Share present in person or by proxy shall have 1 {one)
vote and every holder of a Management Share present in person or by proxy shall have 10,000
(ten thousand) votes.

18.1.2 On a poll every holder of a Share present in person or by proxy shall have 1 (one) vote for each
share held by him and every holder of a Management Share present in person or by proxy shall
have 10,000 (ten thousand) votas for each fully paid Management Share held by him.

Where there are joint registered holders of any share such persons shall not have the right of voting
individually in respect of such share but shall elect one of their number to represent them and to vote
whether in person or by proxy in their name. In default of such election the person whose name stands
first on the Register shall alone be entitled to vote.

Any Shareholder being incapable or of unsound mind may vote by his curator or other legal guardian. Any
such persons may vote either personally or by proxy.

On a poll votes may be given either personally or by proxy and a Shareholder entitled to mare than one
vote need not use all his votes or cast all the votes he uses in the same way. A proxy need not be a
Shareholder. An instrument of proxy may be valid for one or more meetings.

No Shareholder shall be entitled to be present or take part in any proceedings or vote either parsonaily or
by proxy at any meeting unless all calls due from him have been paid. No Shareholder shall be entitled to
vote in respect of any shares unless he has been registered as their holder.

No objection shall be raised to the qualification of any voter except at the mesting or adjourned meeting
at which the vote objected ta is given or tendered and every vote not disallowed shall be valid for all
purposes. Any objection made in due time shall be referred to the Chair whose decision shall be final and
binding.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appaointor or of his attorney
duly authorised in writing or if the appointor is a corporation under its common seal or under the hand of
an officer or attorney duly authorised.

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attomey or other authority (if any) under which it is
signed or a notarised certified copy of that power or authority shall be deposited at the Office not less than
48 hours, excluding any day or part of any day which is not a Business Day, before the time for holding
the meeting or adjoumed meeting at which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote and in
default unless the Board directs otherwise the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

The instrument appointing a proxy may be in any form which the Board may approve and may include an
instruction by the appointor to the proxy either to vote for or against any resolution to be put to the meeting.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be deemed to confer authority to demand or join in demanding a
poll and shall be as valid for any adjournmant as for the meeting to which it relates,

Without prejudice to Section 226 of the Law, a vole given in accordance with the terms of an instrument
of proxy shall be valid notwithstanding the previous death or disability of the principal or revocation of the
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proxy or of the authority under which the proxy was executed PROVIDED THAT no intimation in writing
of such death disability or revocation shall have been received by the Company at the Office before the
commencement of the meeting or adjournment or the taking of the poll at which the proxy is used.

Any corporation which is a Shareholder may by resolution of its directors or other gaverning body authorise
such person as it thinks fit to act as its representative at any meeting of the Company or of any class of
Shareholders of the Company or to approve any resolution submitted in writing and the person so
authorised shall be entitled to exercise on behalf of the corporation which he represents the same powers
{other than to appoint a proxy) as that corporation could exercise if it ware an individual Shareholder of
the Company.

NUMBER AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

The first Directors of the Company shall be appointed by the subscribers to the Memorandum, Unless
otherwise determined by Ordinary Resolution of the Company the Directors {disregarding alternate
Directors) will not be less than 3 (three) nor more than 10 {ten). At no time shall a majority of Directors be
resident in either the United Kingdom or in the Republic of South Africa.

The Board shall have power at any time to appoint any person eligible in accordance with Section 137 of
the Law to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors but so
that the total number of Directors shall not at any time exceed the number (if any) fixed pursuant to these
Articles. Any Diractor so appointed shall hold office only until the next following annual general mesting
and shall then be eligible for re-election,

No parson other than a Director retiring at an annual general meeting shall unless recommended by the
Directors be eligible for election by the Company to the office of Director unless not less than four nor
more than twenty-eight clear days before the date appointed for the general mesting there shall have
given to the secretary of the Company notice in writing signed by a Shareholder duly qualified to attend
and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to propose such person for election
together with notice in writing signed by that person of his willingness to be elected. There is no provision
far the retirement of Directors on their attaining a certain age.

The Company at the meeting at which a Director retires in manner aforesaid may fill the vacated office by
appointing a persen thereto by Ordinary Resolution and in default the retiring Diractor shall, if willing to
act, be deemed to have been re-appointed unless at such meeting it is expressly resolved not to fill the
vacated office or a resolution for the re-appointment of such Director shall have been put to the meeting
and lost. The Company at such meeting may also {(subject to Articte 19.1) fill any other vacancles.

Without prejudice to the powers of the Board the Company in general meeting may appoint any person to
be a Diractor either to filt a casual vacancy or as an additional Director.

At a general meeting a motion for the appointment of two or more persons as Directors of the Company
by a single resolution shall not be made unless a resolution that it shall be so made has been first agreed
to by the mesting without any vote being given against it.

Tha Directors or Sacretary shall cause to be maintained a register of Directors In accordance with Sections
143 and 147 of the Law.

QUALIFICATION AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

A person must not be appointed as a Director unless he has, in writing, consented to being a Director and
declared that he is not ineligible to be a Director under the Law.

A Diractor need not be a Shareholder of the Company but shall be entitled to receive notice of and
attend all general meetings of the Company.

A Director shall be entitled to attend and speak at any general meeting and at any separate meeting of

the holders of any class of shares in the Company, regardless of whether that Director is a Shareholder
of the Company or of the relevant class.
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No fee will ba paid to the Dirgctors save as provided in Article 20.5.

Notwithstanding Article 20.4, if any Director having been requested by the Board shall render or perform
extra or special services or shall travel or go to or reside in any country not his usual place of residence
for any business or purpose of the Company he shall be entitled to receive such sum as the Board may
think fit for expenses and also such remuneration as the Board may think fit either as a fixed sumoras a
percentage of profits or otherwise and such remuneration may as the Board shall determine be either in
addition to or in substitution for any other remuneration which he may be entitled to receive.

ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

Any Director may by notice in writing under his hand served upon the Company appoint any person
{whether a Shareholder or not) as an altemate Director, other than a person resident in the United
Kingdom or in the Republic of South Africa, unless the Director seeking to appoint the altemate director
is himself resident in the United Kingdom or in the Republic of South Africa (as the case may be), to attend
and vote In his place at any meeting of the Directors at which he is not personally present or to undertake
and perform such duties and functions and to exercise such rights as he could personally and such
appointment may be made generally or specifically or for any period or for any particular meeting and with
and subject to any particular restrictions. Every such appointment shall be effective and the following
provisions shall apply:-

Evary alternate Director while he holds office as such shall be entitled:-
21.2.1 if his appointor so directs the Secrelary, to notice of meetings of the Directors; and

21.2.2 o attend and to exercise (subject to any restrictions} all the rights and privileges of his appointor
at all such meetings at which his appointor is not personally present.

Every altemate Director shall ipso facto vacate office if and when his appointment expires by effluxion of
time or his appointor vacates office as a Director or removes the alternate Director from office as such by
notice in writing under his hand served upon the Company.

No altemate Director shall be entitled as such to receive any remuneration from the Company but every
alternate Director shall be entitled to be paid ali reascnable expanses incurred in exercise of his duties.

Director may act as alternate Director for another Director and shall be entitled to vote for such other
Director as well as on his own account but no Dirgctor shall at any meeting be entitled to act as alternate
Director for more than one other Director.

BORROWING POWERS OF THE BOARD

Subject to the Company borrowing only up to 10 per cent of the value of its net assets and only for
temporary purposes, the Board may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow or raise money
and secure or discharge any debt or obligation of or binding on the Company in any manner, including,
subject to the Law, the issue of debentures and other securities and to secure the repayment of any
maney borrowed raised or owing by guarantees mortgage charge hypothecate pledge or lien upon all or
any part of its undertaking property or assets (present or future} and uncalled capital and also by a similar
mortgage, charge, pledge or lien to secure and guarantee the performance of any debt, obligation or
liability of the Company or of any third party.

OTHER POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD
The business of the Company shall be managed by the Board who may exercise all such powers of the
Company as are not required to be exercised by the Company in a general meeting subject nevertheless

to these Aricles and to the Law and to such regulations as may be prescribed by the Company in a
general meeting but no regulation so made shall invalidate any prior act of the Board. The general powers
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given by this Article shall not be limited or restricted by any special authority ar power given to the Board
by any other Article.

The Board may arrange that any branch of the business carried on by the Company or any other business
in which the Company may be interested shall be carried on by or through one or more subsidiary
companies and the Board may on behalf of the Company make such arrangements as it thinks advisable
for taking the profits or bearing the losses of any branch or business so carried on or for financing assisting
or subsidising any such subsidiary company or guaranteeing its contracts obligations or liabilities,

The Board may establish any local boards or agencies for managing any of the affairs of the Company
and may appoint any one or more of its number or any other persons to be members of such local Boards
or any managers or agents and may fix their remuneration and may delegate to any local board manager
or agent any of the powers autharities and discretions vested in the Board with power to sub-delagate and
may authorise the Shareholders of any local board to fill any vacancies and to act notwithstanding
vacancies and any such appeintment or delegation may be made upon such terms and subject to such
conditions as the Board may think fit and the Board may remove any person so appointed and may annul
or vary any such delegation but no person dealing in good faith and without notice of any such annuiment
or variation shall be affected thereby.

The Board may at any time by power of attorney given under the hand of such person or parsons duly
authorised in that behalf appoint any person or any fluctuating body of persons whether nominated directly
or indirectly by the Board to be the attomey of the Company for such purposes and with such powers and
discretions and for such periods and subject to such conditions as the Board may think fit and any such
powaer of attorney may contain such provisions for the protection and convenience of persons dealing with
any attorney as the Board may think fit and may also authorise any attomey to sub-delegate all or any of
his powers and discretions,

All cheques promissory notes drafts bills of exchange and other negotiable instruments and all receipts
for moneys paid to the Company shall be signed drawn accepted endorsed or otherwise execuled in such
manner as the Board shall at any time determine.

The Board shall cause minutes to be made and maintained at the Office in books provided for the
purpose:-

23.6.1 of all resolutions and proceedings at meetings of the Board and of Board commitlees in
accordance with Section 154 of the Law; and

23.6.2 of all proceedings at general meetings of the Company or otherwise and all decisions of a sole
Shareholder in accordance with Sections 228 and 230 of the Law.

Any such minutes if purperting to be signed by the Chair of the meeting at which the proceedings taok
place, or by the Chair of the next succeeding meeting, shall be evidence of their proceedings.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

A Director must, immediately after becoming aware of the fact that he is interested in a transaction or
proposed transacticn with the Company, disclosa to the Board in accordance with Section 162 of the Law,
the nature and extent of that interest.

Article 24.1 does not apply if:-

24.2.1 the transaction or proposed transaction is between the Director and the Company; and

24.2,2 the transaction or proposed transaction is or is to be entered into in the ordinary course of the
Company's business and on usual terms and conditions.

Ageneral disclosure to the Board to the effectihat a Director has an interest (as director, officer, employee,
member or ctherwise) in a party and is to be regarded as interested in any transaction which may after
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the date of the disclosure be entered into with that parly is sufficient disclosure of interest in relation to
that transaction,

Nothing in Aricles 24.1, 24.2 or 24.3 applies in relation to:-
24.4.1 remuneration or other benefit given to a Director;
24.4.2 insurance purchased or maintained for a Director in accordance with Section 158 of the Law; or

24.4.3 qualifying third parly indemnity provision provided for a Director in accordance with Section 159
of the Law,

A Director who is interested in a transaction entered into, or to be entered into, by the Company, may:-
24.5.1 vote on a matter relating to the transaction;

24.5.2 attend a meeting of Directors at which a matter relating to the transaction arises and be included
among the Directors present at the meeting for the purpose of a quorum;

24,5.3 sign a document relating to the transaction on behalf of the Company; and
24,54 do any other thing in his capacity as a Director in relation to the transaction;
as if the Director was not interested in the transaction.

Subject to Aricle 24.7, a Director is interested in a transaction to which the Company is a party if the
director:-

24.6.1 s a party to, or may derive a material benefit from, the transaction;
24.6.2 has a material financial intarest in another party to the transaction;

24.6.3 s a director, officer, employee or Shareholder of ancther party {other than a party which is an
associated company) who may derive a material financial benefit from the transaction;

24.6.4 s the parent, child or spouse of another party who may derive a material financial benefit from
the transaction; or
24.6.5 is otherwise directly or indirectly materially interested in the transaction,

A director is not interested in a transaction to which the Company is a party if the transaction comprises
only the giving by the Company of security to a third party which has no connection with the Director, at
the request of the third party, in respect of a debt or obligation of the Company for which the Director or
another person has personally assumed responsibility in whole or in party under a guarantee, indemnity
or security.

A Diractor may hold any other office or place of profit under the Company (other than Auditor) in
conjunction with his office of Diractor for such period and on such terms (as to remuneration and
otherwise) as the Board may determine and no Director or intending Director shall be disqualified by his
office from contracting with the Company, either with regard to his tenure of any such other office or place
of profit or as vendor purchaser or otherwise, nor shall any such contract or any contract or arrangement
entered into by or on behalf of the Company in which any Director is In any way interestad ba liable to be
avoided nor shall any Director so contracting or being so interested be liable to account to the Company
for any profits realised by any such contract or arrangement by reason of such Director helding that office
or of the fiduciary refationship thereby established.

Any Director may act by himself or his firm in a professional capacity for the Company and he or his firm
shall be entitled to remuneration for professional services as if he were not a Director.
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DISQUALIFICATION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS
The office of a Director shall ipso facto be vacated:-

25.1.1 if he (not being a person holding for a fixed term an executive office subject to tarmination if he
cease from any cause to be a Director) resigns his office by written notice signed by him sent to
or deposited at the Office , provided that the Company may agree to accept the resignation to
take effect on a later date as specified by the resigning Director;

25.1.2 if he shall have absented himself (such absence not being absence with leave or by arrangement
with the Board on the affairs of the Company) from meetings of the Board for a consecutive
period of twelve months and the Board resclves that his office shall be vacated;

25.1.3 if he bacomes bankrupt, suspends payment or compounds with his creditors, or is adjudged
insolvent or has his affairs declared en désasire or has a preliminary vesting order made against
his Guernsey realty;

25.1.4 if he becomes of unsound mind or incapable;

25.1.5 if he becomes insolvent suspends payment or compounds with his creditors;

25.1.6 if he is requested to resign by written notice signed by all his co-Directors;

25.1.7 if the Company in general meeting shall declare that he shall cease to be a Director;
25.1.8 if he becomes prohibited from acting as Director pursuant to the Law; or

25.1.9 if he bacomes resident in the United Kingdom or in the Republic of South Africa and, as a resuit
therecf, a majority of the Directors are resident in the United Kingdom cr in the Republic of South
Africa.

If the Company in general meeting removes any Director before the expiration of his period of office it
may by an Ordinary Resolution appoint another person to be a Director in his stead who shall retain his
office so long only as the Director in whose stead he is appointed would have held the same if he had not
been removed. Such removal shall be without prejudice to any claims such Director may have for
damages for breach of any contract of service between him and the Company.

PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

The Board may meet for the despatch of business adjourn and otherwise regulate its meetings as it thinks
fit. Questions arising at any meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes. In case of an equality of votes
the Chair at the meeting shall have a second or casling vote, All mestings of Direclors shall take place
outside of the United Kingdom and the Republic of South Africa and any decision reached or resclution
passed by the Directors at any meeting held within the United Kingdom or in the Republic of South Africa
or at which a majority of United Kingdom or South African resident directors is present shall be invalid and
of no effect.

A video link or telephone conference call or other electronic or telephonic means of communication in
which a quorum of Directors participates and all participants can hear and speak to each other shall be a
valid meeting PROVIDED THAT no Directors physically present in the United Kingdom or in the Republic
of South Africa at the time of any such meeting may participate in a mesting by means of video link,
telephone conference call or other electronic or telephonic means of communication.

The Board shall also determing the notice necessary for its meetings and the persons to whom such
notice shall be given.

A meeting of the Board at which a quorum is present shall be competent to exercise all powers and
discretions exercisable by the Board.
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The continuing Directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy but if and so long as their number is
reduced below the minimum number fixed pursuant to these Arlicles the continuing Directors may act for
the purpose of increasing the number of Directors to that number or of summoning a general meeting but
for no other purpose. If there be no Directors able or willing to act then any holder may summon a general
meeting for the purpose of appointing Direclors.

The Board may elect one of their number as Chair of their meetings who will hold office only for the
duration of the meeting at which he was elected. If no such Chair be elected or if at any meating the Chair
be not present within five minutes after the time appointed for holding the same the Directors present may
choose one of their number to be Chair of the mesting,

The Board may delegate any of their powers to committees consisting of such one or more Directors as
they think fit. Such committees shall meet only outside the United Kingdom and the Republic of South
Africa. Any commitiee so formed shall in the exercise of the powers so delegated conform to any
regulations that may be imposed on it by the Board.

The quorum necessary for the transaction of the business of the Board may be fixed by the Board and
unless so fixed shall be two except that where the minimum number of Directors has been fixed at one a
sola Diractor shall be deemed to form a quorum. For the purposes of this Article an allernate appointed
by a Director shall be counted in a quorum at a meeting at which the Director appointing him is nol present.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The Board may at any time appoint one or more of their body (who is resident outside the United Kingdom
and the Republic of South Africa) to be holder of any executive office including the office of Managing
Director for such periods and upon such terms as the Board may determine and may revoke or terminate
any such appointments. Any such revocation or termination as aforesaid shall be without prejudice to any
claim for damages that such Director may have against the Company or the Company may have against
such Director far any breach of any contract of sarvice between him and the Company which may be
involved in such revocation or termination.

The Board may entrust to and confer upon a Direclor holding any executive office any of the powers
exercisable by the Board upon such terms and conditions and with such restrictions as it thinks fit either
collaterally with or to the exclusion of their own powers and may at any time revoke withdraw alter or vary
all or any of such powers,

SECRETARY

The Secretary shall be appointed by the Board. Anything required or autharised to be done by or to the
Sacretary, may, if the office Is vacant or there is for any other reascn no Secretary capable of acting be
done by or to any assistant or deputy secretary or if there is no assistant or deputy secretary capable of
acting, by or to any officer of the Company authorised generally or specially in that behalf by the Directors.
No person shall be appointed or hold office as Secretary who is:-

29.2.1 the sole Dirsctor of the Company, or

29.2.2 a corporation the sole Director of which is the sole Director of the Company, or

29.2.3 the sole Director of a corporation which is the sole Director of the Company.

Where the Company has appointed a Secretary, and without prejudice to the responsibility of any other
person or to any other responsibilities he may hold, the functions and responsibilities of a Secretary are
those which are set out in any agreement under which the Secretary is appointed from time to time or,

failing such agreement the Secretary shall take reasonable steps to ensure:

29.3.1 that all registers and indexas are maintained in accordance with the provisions of the Law;
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29.3.2 that all notices and documents required (o be filed or served upon the Registrar of Companies or
other persons are duly so filed or served;

29.3.3 that all resolutions, records and minutes of the Company are proparly kept;
29.3.4 that copies of the Memorandum and Articles are kept fully up to date; and
29.3.5 that the Directors are aware of any obligations impased by the Asticles.

The Secretary may be removed by rasolution of the Directors or otherwise in accordance with Article 25
which shall apply mutatis mutandis as if the Secretary were a Director, save that Article 25.1.9 shall not
apply.

RESIDENT AGENT

If Part XXIX of the Law applies to the Company, the Board shall ensure that a resident agent is appointed
in accordance with the Law.

THE SEAL

If the Board determines to maintain a Seal it shall provide for the safe custody of the Seal which shall only
be used by authority of the Board or of a committee and every instrument to which the Seal shall be affixed
shall be signed by any such persons as are authorised by the Board in that behalf, The Board may
authorise the use of a duplicate or facsimile Seal for use outside Guernsey in such manner as the Board
may at its discretion determine.

COMMON SIGNATURE

The common signature of the Company may be either:-

32.1.1 the name of the Company with the addition of the signature(s) of one or more of the Directors or
officers of the Company authorised generally or specifically by the Board for such purpose, or
such other person or persons as the Board may from time to time appoint; or

32.1.2 if the Board resolves that the Company shall have a Seal, it shall be affixed in such manner as
these Articles or the Board may from time to time provide.

AUTHENTICATION OF DOCUMENTS

Any Director or the Secretary or any person appointed by the Board for the purpose shall have power to
authenticate any documents affecting the Company (including the Memorandum and these Articles) and
any resolutions passed by the Company or the Board and any books records documents and accounts
relating to the business of the Company and te certify copies or extracts as true copies or extracts; and
where any books records documents or accounts are elsewhere than at the Office the local manager or
other officer of the Company having their custody shall be deemed to be a person appointed by the Board
as aforesaid.

DIVIDENDS

Subject to the Law the Company in general meeting may at any time declare dividend's but no dividend
shall exceed the amount recommeanded by the Board. All dividends will be paid in accordance with the
policy of the Bermuda Stock Exchange.

Subject to the Law the method of payment of dividends shall be at the discretion of the Board.

Subject to Article 18, unless and to the extent that the rights attached to any shares or the terms of issue

thereof otherwise provide, all dividends shall be declared and paid according to the amounts paid up or
credited as paid-up on the shares in respect whereof the dividend is paid.
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The Directors may at any time if they think fit declare and pay such interim dividends as appear to be
justified by the position of the Company.

With the sanction of the Company in general meseting, any dividend may be paid wholly or in part by the
distribution of specific assets and, in particular, of paid-up shares of the Company. Where any difficulty
arises in regard to such distribution the Board may settle the same as it thinks expedient and in particular
may issue fractional shares and fix the value for distribution of such specific assets and may determine
that cash payments shall be made to any Shareholders upon the footing of the value so fixed in order to
adjust the rights of Shareholders and may vest any such specific assets in trustees for the Shareholders
entitled as may seem expedient to the Board.

The Board may deduct from any dividend payable to any Shareholder on or in respect of a share all sums
of money (if any) presently payable by him to the Company on account of calls or otherwise.

The Board may retain any dividend or other moneys payable on or in respect of a share on which the
Company has a lien and may apply the same in or towards satisfaction of the liabilities or obligations in
raspect of which the lien exists,

The Board may retain dividends payable upon shares in respect of which any person is entitled to become
a Shareholder until such person has become a Shareholder.

Any dividend interest or other moneys payable in cash in respect of shares may be paid by cheque or
warrant sent through the post at the risk of the person entitled 1o the money represented thereby to the
registered address of the holder or in the case of joint holders to the registered address of that one of the
joint holders who is first named on the Register. Any one of two or more joint holders may give effactual
raceipts for any dividends interest bonuses or other moneys payable in respect of their joint holdings.

No dividend or other moneys payable an or in respect of a share shall bear interest against the Company.

All unclaimed dividends may be invested or otherwise made use of by the Board for the benefit of the
Company until claimed. No dividends will bear intarest against the Company. All dividends unclaimed for
a period of six years after having been declared or became due for payment shall be forfeited and shall
revert to the Company and the payment by the Directors of any unclaimed dividend or other monies
payable on or In respect of a share into a separate account will not constitute the Company a trustee in
raspeact thereof.

RESERVES

The Board may before recommending any dividend set aside such sums out of the profits or otherwise of
the Company as it thinks proper as reserves which shall at the discretion of the Board be applicable for
any purpase to which such sums may be properly applied and pending such application may either be
employed in the business of the Company or be invested in such investments as the Board may at any
time think fit. The Board may also without placing the same to reserve carry forward any profits or other
sums which it may think prudent not to distribute.

ACCOUNTS AND REPORTS

The Board shall cause proper books of account to be kept with respect to all the transactions assets and
liabilities of the Company in accordance with the Law and International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

The books of account shall be kept at the Office or at such other place as the Board shall think fit and
shall at all times be open to the inspection of the Directers but no person other than a Director or Auditor
or other person whose duty requires and entitles him to do so shall be entitled to inspect the books,
accounts and documents of the Company except as provided by the Law or authorised by the Board or
by the Company in general meating.
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The accounts shall include a Statement of Financial Position and shall be laid before the Company at its
annual general meeting in each year. Save where the Directors’ duty o prepare a repor is exempted or
waived in accordance with the Law, the accounts shall be accompanied by a report of the Directors which
includes a statement of the principal activities of the Company in the course of the Financial Year and
may be in summary form. The Auditor's report shall be attached to the accounts or there shall be inserted
at the foot of the accounts a reference to the report.

A copy of the accounts and of all documents annexed thereto including the reports of the Directors (if any)
and the Auditor shall at least ten clear days before the date of the meeting be delivered or sent by post or
electronically to each of the registered holders and to the Auditer. Any holder may by written notice served
on the Company waive this requirement.

AUDITORS
A Director shall not be capable of being appointed as an Auditor.

A person other than a reliring Auditor shall not be capable of being appointed Auditor at an ordinary
general meeting unless notice of intention to neminate that person as Auditor has been given by a
Shareholder to the Company not less than fourteen clear days before the meeting and the Board shall
send a copy of any such notice to the retiring Auditor and shall give notice to the Shareholders not less
than seven clear days before the meeting PROVIDED THAT if after notice of the intention to nominate an
Auditor has been so given a meeting is called for a date fourteen clear days or less after such notice has
been given the requirements of this provision as to time in respect of such notice shall be deemed to have
been satisfied and the notice to be sent or given by the Company may instead of being sent or given
within the time required by this Articte be sent or given at the same time as the notice of the meeting.

The first Auditor shall be appointed by the Board before the first general meeting and they shall hold office
until the first ordinary general meeting unless previously removed in which case the Shareholders at such
meeting may appoint the Auditor.

The Board may fill any casual vacancy in the office of Auditor but while any such vacancy continues the
surviving or continuing Auditor (if any) may act.

The remuneration of the Auditor shall be fixed by the Company in a general meeting or in such manner
as the Company may determine except that the remuneration of any Auditor appointed by the Board shall
be fixed by the Board.

Every Auditor shall have a right of access at all times to the books accounts and documents of the
Company and as regards books accounts and documents of which the originals are not readily avallable
shall be entitled to rely upon copies or extracts certified by an officer of the Company and shall be entitted
to require from the Board such information and explanations as may be necessary for the performance of
their duties and the Auditor shall make a report to the Shareholders on the accounts examined by them
and the report shall state whether in their opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of the
Company's affairs and whether they have been prepared in accordance with the Law.

Any Auditor shall be eligible for re-election.
NOTICES

Any Shareholder may notify the Company of a Relevant Electronic Address for the purpose of his
receiving communications by Electronic Means from the Company at any time.

Any document or notice which, in accordance with these Articles, may be transmilted by the Company in
electronic form and by Electronic Means shall, if so transmitted, be deemed to be regarded as served
immediately after it was transmitted. Proof (in accordance with the formal recommendations of best
practice contained in the guidance issued by the United Kingdom Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) that a communication was transmitted by Electronic Means by the Company shall be
conciusive evidence of such transmission.
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A communication by Electronic Means shall not be treated as served by the Company if it is rejected by
computer virus protection arrangements.

A notice may be given by the Company to any Shareholder either personally or in electronic form by
Electronic Means (including publication on a website in accordance with Section 208 of the Law) or by
sending it by prepaid post addressed to such Sharehclder at his registered address or if he desires that
notices shall be sent to some other address or person to the address or person nominated for such
purpose. Notices to be posted to addresses outside the Channel Islands and the United Kingdom shall so
far as practicable be forwarded by prepaid airmail.

The Cempany shall, where no other period is specified in these Articles, give all Sharehclders sufficient
notice to enable them to exercise their rights or comply with the terms of the notica.

Any notice or other document, if served by post (including registered post, recorded delivery service or
ordinary letter post), shall be deemed to have baen served on the second day after the day on which the
same was posted from Guemsey to an address in the United Kingdom, the Channel Islands or the Isle of
Man and, in any other case, on the third day following that on which the same was posted and, in each
case, excluding any day which is a Saturday, Sunday, Good Friday, Christmas Day, bank holiday in
Guemsaey, or a day appointed as a day of public thanksgiving or public mouming in Guemsaey.

Any notice or document delivered or sent by post to or lefi at the registered address of any Sharsholder
shall notwithstanding the death disability insolvency of such Shareholder and whether the Company has
notice therecf be deemed to have been duly served in respect of any share registered in the name of such
Shareholder as sole or joint holder and such service shall for all purposes be deemed a sufficient service
of such natice or document on all persons interested {whethar jointly with or as claiming through or under
him} in any such share.

Service of a document sent by post shall be proved by showing the date of posting, the address thereon
and the fact of pre-payment.

Any notice or other document, if transmitted by Electronic Means, facsimile transmission or other similar
means which produce or enable the production of a document containing the text of the communication,
shall be regarded as served immediately after it was transmitted.

A notice may be given by the Company to the joint holders of a Share by giving the notice to the joint
holder first named in the Register in respect of the Share.

All Shareholders shall be deemed to have agreed to accept communication from the Company by
Electronic Means in accordance with Sections 523, 524 and 526 and Schedule 3 of the Law unless a
Shareholder notifies the Company otherwise. Notice under this Article must be in writing and signed by
the Shareholder and delivered 1o the Company's Office or such other place as the Board directs.

RECORD DATES

Subject 1o any restriction thereon contained in the Law, for the purposes of serving notices of meetings,
whether under the Law or under a provision in these Articles or any other instrument, the Directors may
determine that those persons who are entered on the Register at the close of business on a day
determined by the Directors shall be persons who are entitied to receive such notices provided that such
day may not be more than 21 days before the day on which the nofices of the meeting are sent.

For the purposes of determining which persons are entitled to attend or vote at a meeting, and how many
votes they may cast, the Directors may specify in the notice of the meeting a time, being not more than
48 hours, excluding any days which are not Business Days, before the time fixed for the meeting, by which
a person must be entered on the Register in order to have the right to attend or vote at the meeting.



39.3

394

40

40.1

40.2

40.3

40.4

40.5

40.8

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in these Articles, changes to entries on the Register after
the time specified under Arlicle 39.2 shall be disragarded in determining the rights of any person to attend
or vote at the meeting unless the Directors in their discretion decide otherwise.

Subject to any restriction thereon contained in the Law or in the terms of issue of any share in the
Company, for the purposes of issuing any share, making any distribution or paying any dividend, the
Directors may determine that those persons who are entered on the Register at the close of business on
a day determined by the Directors shall be the persons who are entitled to receive such shares, dividends
or distributions.

WINDING UP

In the event of the Company being wound up, the Liquidatar will apply the assets of the Company, subject
to the provisions of the Law, in satisfaction of the costs associated with the liquidation creditors’ claims in
such manner and order as he thinks fit.

The assets available for distribution among the Shareholders shall then be applied in the following priority:-

40.2.1 firstly, in payment to the Shareholders a sum equal to the nominal amount of the Shares held by
such holders respectively;

40,22 secondly, in the payment to holders of Management Shares of sums up to the nominal amount
paid up thereon; and

40.2.3 thirdly, in payment to the Shareholders of any balance then remaining, such payment being made
in proportion to the number of shares held.

If the Company shall be wound up whether voluntarily or otherwise the Liquidator may with the authority
of a Special Resolution divide among the Shareholders in specie the whole or any part of the assets of
the Company and whether or not the assets shall consist of propenty of a single kind and may for such
purposes set such value as he deams fair upon any one or more class or classes or property and may
determine how such division shall be carried out as between the Shareholders or different classes of
Shareholders. The Liquidator may with the like authority vest any part of the assets in trusteas upon such
trusts for the benefit of Shareholders as the Liquidater with the like authority shall think fit and the
liquidation of the Company may be closed and the Company dissclved but so that no Shareholder shall
be compelled to accept any shares or other assets in respect of which there is any outstanding liability.

if thought expedient subject to the obtaining of any necessary consents or sanctions any such division
made in accordance with Article 40.2 above may be otherwise than in accordance with the then existing
rights of the Shareholders and in particular any class may be given preferential or special rights or may
be excluded altogether or in part but in default of any such provision the assets shall subject to the rights
of the holders of shares issued with special rights or privileges or on special conditions be distributed
rateably according to the amount paid up on the shares.

In case any of the shares to he divided as aforesaid involve a liability to calls or otherwise any person
entitled under such division to any of the said shares may within fourteen clear days after the passing of
the Special Resolution by nofice in writing direct the Liquidator to sell his propertion and pay him the net
proceeds and the Liquidator shall if practicable act accordingly.

Where the Company is proposed to be or is in course of being wound up and the whole or part of its
business or property is proposed to be transferred or sold to another company (the "transferee”) the
Liquidator of the Company may, with the sanction of an Ordinary Resolution, conferring either a general
authority on the Liquidator or an authority in respect of any particular arrangement, receive in
compensation or part compensation for the transfer or sale, shares policies or other like interests in the
transferee for distribution among the Shareholders of the Company or may enter into any other
arrangement whereby the Shareholders of the Company may, in lieu of receiving cash, shares, policies
or other like interests, or in addition thereto, participate in the profits of or receive any other benefits from
the transferee.
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DURATION

The Company is of unlimited duration subject to the right of (but not the obligation on) the Directors in
their absclute discretion o convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company to be held within
25 days after a Redemption Date at which a Special Resolution may be proposed requiring that the
Company be wound up voluntarily. At such meeting the vote of those Shareholders entitled to vote shall
be taken by poll and the provisions of Article 41.2 shall apply in relation to such vote.

At any such extraordinary general meeting, those holders of shares who (being individuals} are present
in person or by proxy or (being corporations) are present by proxy or by duly authorised representative
and entitled to vote and who vote in favour of the resolution shall, on a poll, have such number of votes in
raspect of each share held by them (including fractions of a vote) so that the aggregate number of votes
cast in favour of the resolution is four times the aggregate number of votes cast against the resolution and
each Shareholder present in person or by proxy and entitied to vote and who votes against such resolution
shall on a poll have one vote for each share held.

INDEMNITY

To the greatest extent possible under the Law, every Director Managing Director manager agent Auditor
Secretary and other officer or servant for the time being of the Company and any trustee (if any) for the
time being acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company and each of their respective heirs and
executors shall be fully indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions expenses and liabilities which they or their respective heirs or executors may incur by reason of
any contract entered into or any act in or about the execution of their respeclive offices or trusts except
such {if any) as they shall incur by or through their own negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of
trust respectively and none of them shall be answerable for the acts receipts neglects or defaults of the
others of them or for joining in any receipt for the sake of conformity or for any bankers or other person
with whom any moneys or assets of the Company may be lodged or deposited for safe custedy or for any
bankers or other persons into whose hands any money or assets of the Company may come or for any
defects of title of the Company to any property purchased or for insufficiency or deficiency of or defect in
file of the Company to any security upon which any moneys of the Company shall be placed out or
invested or for any loss misfortune or damage resulting from any such cause as aforesaid or which may
happen in or about the execution of their respective offices or trusts except the same shall happen by or
through their own negligence, default, breach of duty or braach of trust.

INSURANCE

Without prejudice 1o any other provisions of these Articles, the Directors may exercise all the powers of
the Company to purchase and maintain insurance for or for the benefit of any persons who are or were at
any time Directors, officers, employees or auditors of the Company, or of any other body (whether or not
incorporated) which is or was its subsidiary of the Company (together “Group Companies") or otherwise
assoclated with the Company or any Group Company or in which the Company or any such Group
Company has or had any interest, whether direct or indirect, or of any predecessor in business of any of
the foregoing, including (without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing) insurance against any costs,
charges, expenses, losses or liabilities suffered or incurred by such persons in respect of any act or
omission in the actual or purported exacution andfor discharge of their duties and/or the exercise or
purported exercise of their powers and discretions andfor otherwise in relation to or in connection with
their duties, powers or offices in relation o the Company or any such other body.

INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS

The Board shall determine whether and to what extent and at what times and places and under what
conditions the accounts books and documents of the Company shall be epen to inspection and no
Shareholder shall have any right of inspecting any account or book or document except as confarred by
the Law or authorised by the Board.

AMENDMENT TO ARTICLES
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These Articles may from time to time be amended in accordance with the Part IV of the Law PROVIDED
THAT no such amendment shall be made unless prior written approval has been sought and obtained
from the Bermuda Stock Exchange for such amendment (including any delstion or addition} for so long
as any shares are listed on the Bermuda Stock Exchange.

MISCELLANEOUS

The Company or its agents shall, if required to do so under the legislation of any jurisdiction 1o which any
of themn are subject, be entitled to release or disclose any information in their possession regarding the
Company or its affairs or any of its Shareholders {or their direct or indirect owners or account holders),
including without limitation information required under any Tax Reporting Regime. In making payments to
or for the benefit of Shareholders, the Company may also make any withholding or deduction required by
any Tax Reporting Regime,






